HARTMARX

. 2007 Annual Report

T Rad se¢ T TPROCESSE, S
FEB 23 2009 ‘Mﬂﬁ T
HOMIS (IR "Yl e S
Washirgion, DC_2054 FIANC: AL \7 T




a_
O
- €D
5
=
=
e
Lig
ey

FINANCIAL HIGHLGHTS

Years ended Novembe: 30,

ploierg

2006

Net Sales

Eornings‘(Loss) Before Taxes

Net Earnings {Lc‘:lss]‘

Eamings {loss) Per Sh-dgezll
Basic .
Diluted

Equity Per Share at Nove;nber 30

Avercngé Number of Cqﬁmon Shares Vo,rfd--{'-
Common Share Equivalents: I

Basic

$562,416,000
6,749,000)
(4,178,000

(12)

{12)
6.39

35,974,000

$597,890,000
11,752,000
7,286,000

.20

20
713

36,427,000

35,974,000

37,081,000

Diluted




Babby Jones apparel and equipment in 20 countries,
including the European Union, Switzerland, Turkey
and South Africa. Youngor, our Chinese partner, has
opened its first free-standing Hart Schaffner Marx
store in Ningbo, China. This spectacular 2,220
square foot shop will serve as the prototype for a
significant number of free-standing shops to be

opened in 2008.

5. continve to manage debt tevels prudently, utiliz-
ing excess cash flow [after acquisitions} to buy back

stock if market conditions are favorable.

Total debt ar November 30, 2007, was $120.7 mil-
lion, compared with $113.4 million at the end of
2006. During the 2007 fiscal year, we paid $21
million for the Monarchy and Zooey acquisitions
and earnouts for previous acquisitions, and we used
$8 million for share repurchases through November
30. Pro-forma debt was reduced by more than $20
million at year end.

We continue to believe that our stock price is
very attractive, and under the three million share
repurchase program authorized by our Board of
Directors on October 18, 2007, we have continued
to buy back stock. Through February 4th, we bought
back 423,400 addicional shares in fiscal 2008 at an
average price of $2.99. We will continue to buy back
our stock prudently, utilizing excess cash flow after
acquisitions to purchase additional shares as condi-

tions allow.

For 2008, we have established the following goals:

I. to achieve sales in the range of $580-$600
million;

2. to grow diluted earnings per share to between
$.30 and $.40; and

3. to reduce debt on a comparable basis (excluding
the impact of acquisitions and stock buy-backs)
by 10%.

Our long-term goals are:

1. to achieve earnings per share of $.75 by 2010, and
$.90-10 a dollar thereafrer; and
2. to bear the three- and five-year stock market

indexes.

In 2007, we accomplished our long-term goal of
maintaining a 50/50 split between tailored clothing
and non-tailored clothing, so this is no longer an
objective,

It is easy for our various constituents to remain
loyal in good times, buc I am pleased to report that
our employees continue to show incredible loyalty
and dedication through this challenging period. The
supporrt of our customers, suppliers and unions also
remains strong and solid. For all of chis, we are truly
grateful. To our stockholders, we pledge to do all
thar is in our power to grew our stock price and to

justify your continued confidence in Hartmarx.

Ww

Homi B. Patel
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Bobby Jones, our country club lifestyle brand,
expanded its offerings in luxury high-technology
performance products. Its Women’s Collection is
growing very nicely, and we have expanded our staff
in order to make this a substantial business. Qur
four free-standing Bobby Jones stores continue to

show improved sales each year.

3. Reduce dependence on moderate priced tai-
lored clothing by aggressively eliminating unprofit-

able licensed brands.

Under intense competitive pressures and in a dif-
ficulc environment, retailers serving the moderate
tailored price points have continued to narrow the
number of brands offered for sale, while increasing
their private label offerings through direct sourcing.
In the past two years, we have tried to deal with
this dynamic as well as with increased demands for
price allowances by gradually and opportunistically
shrinking our business in this category. This effort
has clearly not been enough. Accordingly, we have
taken significant additional actions to eliminate
several lines of moderate priced clothing, which
will better position the Company for an earnings
recovery for the full year 2008, We believe that
our strategy of reducing our dependence on men'’s
moderate priced tailored clothing products and rede-
ploying assets to luxury and bridge products is a
sound long-term strategy that will be successful.

We have reached agreement to terminate the
DKNY Donna Karan New York men's railored cloth-
ing license effective immediately and have reached
an agreement to conclude our Perry Ellis wailored
clothing license at the end of 2008. We are substan-
tially reducing the number of tailored clothing
in-stock replenishment programs, and we have inid-
ated discussions to vacate an underutilized office/
distribution facility in Buffalo, New York, by the end
of fiscal 2008. Accounting rules require that expenses
associated with licenses chat are being terminated
in 2008 be recorded as incurred; this will result in

several million dollars of losses relating to such

programs, principally affecting the first half of 2008.
However, as a result of these measures, we anticipate
that each of the tailored clothing lines remaining
at year-end 2008 will make a positive contriburion
in 2009.

In January, we announced the appointment of
Michael Parker as Group President of our tailored
division. Michael has many years of experience mar-
keting to the department store channel and will play
an important role in reorganizing this operarion.
While we have discontinued several unprofitable
designer licenses, the tilored division continues to
market several profitable brands, including Austin
Reed, Palm Beach, Concepts by Claiborne, and Axcess
by Clziborne, which we intend to grow. Through
these initiatives, we are making substantial progress
toward our goal of significantly reducing our depen-
dence on the moderate tailored clothing business
from 27% of sales in 2005 to 17% in 2006 o 11%
in 2007.

4. Focus on geographical expansion in @ manner
that continves to position Hartmarx os an upscale

global apparel company.

Our Canadian-based operation reported another
vear of sales growth despite a much stronger
Canadian dollar that adversely affected its sales in
the U.S. Strategically, this business has consolidared
several of its less prominent offerings into the Coppley
Collection, which now includes dress shirts and
neckwear. In addition to tailored clothing, Coppley’s
core competency in all of its product categories is the
ability to offer “custom in 7 days”—a service that its
competitors have been unable to duplicate.

In 2007, our International Marketing Depart-
ment added 11 new licenses, ending the year with a
total of 57 licensed programs in 35 countries. We
are in discussions with a number of potential part
ners in India to launch several different retail formats
for our brands. One of our most important new part-
nerships is our agreement with Bobby Jones (Europe)

Limited and Bobby Jones Lifestyle Lid. to launch




In 2007, we acquired Monarchy LLC. Monarchy

designs and markets premium casual sportswear for

men and women to leading specialty stores nation-
wide under the Monarchy and Manchester Escapes
brands. Monarchy currently markets nationwide
to Nordstrom and Bloomingdale's, as well as to
more than 800 upscale specialty store accounts.
Menarchy's brands have attracted a strong following
among its target customer, the affluent 25-40 year-
old fashien-forward consumer with high disposable
income. Product categories include embellished
denim that uses innovative washes, quality t-shirts
with signature artwork, woven shirts and selected
outerwear. We are very pleased that the founders
of the business, Eric Kim and Henry Kim, have
agreed to continue in their current roles under seven-
year employment agreements. Monarchy’s current
annualized sales are in excess of $20 million. For
fiscal 2008, this acquisition is anticipated to con-
tribute revenues in the $25 million-$30 million
range and be accretive to diluted earnings per share
by $.03-3.05. This Los Angeles-based enterprise
operates as an autonomous business unit.

Prior to Monarchy, we purchased Zooey and
Sweater.com. Zooey specializes in upscale women’s
knits, while Sweater.com, as its name implies, is
focused on women’s sweaters and related products.
Both companies launched new lines in 2007, as
did our other womenswear companies. In addition
to its Owe Girl Whe... product line, Sweater.com
introduced a new line called Pursuit of Harmony
to specialty stores, which relies on natural, eco-
friend!y fibers, such as bamboo and soy, and uses
only environmentally compatible dyes. The launch
of b.chyll, an upscale line of cashmere sweaters, was
very well received by the Sweater.com specialty store
retail base. Zooey grew its “green line,” which
appeared in stores for Fall 2007. Qur earlier wom-
enswear acquisitions of Misook and Simply Blue are
doing very well, and both had increases in sales and
earnings for 2007. The Simply Blue women’s jeans

division introduced another new jeans brand—Blue

House Drive—to complement its Christopher Blue
luxury priced line, and it also added a fag Sport line
for delivery in early 2008,

In men’s sportswear, the completely re-
constituted Jack Nicklaus line has received an excep-
tionally positive response from its green-grass
customers and is now recognized as a premier golf
collection, affording us considerable growth oppor-
tunities. Fixturing and imagery for all our sportswear
brands continue to be very important. We have
installed 15 shops for Lyle & Scott at Bon-Ton stores
and are testing various shop-in-shop concepts with
othet retailers. Hickey-Freeman successfully launched
its new hickey line, which targets a young affluent
preppy consumer looking for clothes thar have a

a . » .y
rcncgadc Americana sSpirit.

2. Adopt a multi-channel {wholesale, regular retail,
outlet, web, catalog) and multi-product growth strat-
eqy for the Hickey Freeman, Hart Schaffner Marx
and Bobby jones brands by prudently increasing
retail and outlet stores and by adding additional

product categories.

The two Hickey Freeman New York stores continue
to do very well. In Fall 2007, we opened a Hickey
Freeman store in the Four Seasons Hotel on Markert
Street in San Francisco, and a hickey store in Soho,
New York. The fourth Hickey Freeman store will
open just off Michigan Avenue in Chicago sometime
in the Spring. E-commerce sites for both hickey
and Hart Schaffner Marx, and two outlet stores, one
each for Hart Schaffner Marx and Hickey Freeman,
started operations this year.

Hart Schaffner Marx, an iconic American brand
that has defined traditional clothing for over a cen-
tury, was brought into the Luxury Group to better
reflect the brand’s prestigious market position. It
now has a full collection of tailored clothing, sports-
wear, and shires and ties, positiening us o open one
or more Hart Schaffner Marx retail stores this year.

We are actively looking for rerail locations.



HARTMARX CORPORATION

LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

February 18, 2008

[t’s hard to imagine a more difficult year than 2007. Everything we are associated with—small cap

stocks, the apparel sector, department stores and retail—was out of favor. We experienced

challenges that were difficult to predict as recently as six months ago. For the first time in six years,

we reported a loss, and our stock price declined precipitously. Obviously, this has been a very

difficult period for our long-term stockholders, and there is every reason to be dissarisfied with

our performance. We can only pledge that, as we have done in difficult periods like the one that

followed September 11, 2001, we will reverse this trend and grow both our sales and earnings.

Full year net sales were $562.4 million in 2007,
compared with $597.9 million in 2006. The net loss
was $4.2 million or $.12 per diluted share, compared
with net earnings of $7.3 million or $.20 per diluted
share the prior year. The decrease reflected a gross
margin rate of 31.7% in 2007, compared with
32.3% in 20006. This decrease is primarily the result
of inventory markdowns and customer allowances
atrributable to our decision to exit various moderate-
priced tailored clothing licenses.

As we enter fiscal 2008, we continue to be very
cautious about the current retail environmenr. We
anticipate that our first quarter 2008 results will
approximate last year's first quarter revenues of $120
million and diluted loss per share of $.09, which
includes the effect of licenses thar will not be
renewed. Because retailers in general and most of
our major customers reported very disappointing
Christmas and post-Christmas sales and earnings,
this guidance anticipates that there will be a build-
up in retail inventories for the first half of the
year. We do, however, expect significant improve-

ments in the second half of the year, and as a resul,

we expect to generate full year revenues in the range
of $580 million-$600 million, reflecting anticipated
increases from recent acquisitions and the expansion
of luxury-priced product lines. We are estimating
our full year 2008 diluted earnings per share to be in
the range of $.30-3$.40, reflecting the favorable
impact of shifting our product mix towards higher
price point products, which should result in improved
gross margins and higher operating earnings. We
remain confident that the value inherent in our long-
standing brands, such as Hickey Freeman and Hart
Sc‘baﬂher Marx, augmenred by the increasing impor-
tance of the upscale brands we have acquired through
acquisitions, will result in long-term revenue and

earnings growth and increased shareholder value.

Our strategies for driving both sales and earnings

are to:

1. Maintain an ongoing focus on growing our
luxury/upscale product mix through the expansion of
existing brands and through acquisitions in womens-
wear and men’s sportswear that meet our clearly

defined financial and other criteria.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

" Certain portio'n's' of the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement dated February 27, 2008 for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held April 16, 2008 are incorporated by reference into Part 111 of this report.
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. ;CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING
T R TTES FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The comments set forth below contain forward-looking statements made in reliance upon the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Such forward-looking statements can be

LE LI

identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, “estimate”,
“expect”, “intend”, “may”, “should”, or “will” or the negatives thereof or other comparable terminology.
Forward-looking statements are not guarantees as actual results could differ materially from those expressed or
implied in such forward-looking statements. The statements could be significantly impacted by such factors as
the level of consumer spending for men’s and women’s apparel, the prevailing retail environment, the
Company’s relationship with its suppliers, customers and licensees, actions of competitors that may impact the
Company’s business, possible acquisitions and the impact of unforeseen economic changes, such as interest
rates, or in other external economic and political factors over which the Company has no control. The Company
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Definitions

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless the context requires otherwise, the “Company” or
“Hartmarx” means Hartmarx Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. The following terms represent:

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
FIN FASB Interpretation Number

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

Zooey Zooey Apparel, Inc.

Monarchy Monarchy Group, Inc.

Sweater.com Sweater.com Apparel, Inc.

Simply Blue Simply Blue Apparel, Inc.

Misook Exclusively Misook division

The following terms represent the period noted:

Fiscal 2007 or 2007 Twelve months ended November 30, 2007
Fiscal 2006 or 2006 Twelve months ended November 30, 2006
Fiscal 2005 or 2005 Twelve months ended November 30, 2005
Fiscal 2004 Twelve months ended November 30, 2004
Fiscal 2003 Twelve months ended November 30, 2003
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PART 1

Item 1—Business
General and Operating Segments

Hartmarx Corporation, a Delaware corporation, functions essentially as a holding company, overseeing the
various operations of its subsidiaries and providing these subsidiaries with resources and services in financial,
administrative, legal, human resources, advertising and other areas. The management of the respective operations
has responsibility for optimum use of the capital invested in them and for planning their growth and development
in coordination with the strategic plans of the Company.

Established in 1872, the Company believes it is the largest manufacturer and marketer of men’s suits and
sport coats (“men’s tailored clothing”™) in the United States. From this established position, Hartmarx has
diversified into casual pants, men’s and women’s sportswear, including golfwear, dress furnishings (shirts and
ties) and women'’s apparel.

The Company operates exclusively in the apparel business. Its operations are comprised of the Men’s
Apparel Group and Women's Apparel Group. The Men’s Apparel Group designs, manufactures and markets
men’s tailored clothing, stacks, sportswear (including golfwear and denim products) and dress furnishings (shirts
and ties); products are sold under a broad variety of business and casual apparel brands, both owned and under
license, to an extensive range of retail department and specialty stores. Product price points comprise luxury,
premium and moderate. The Women’s Apparel Group designs and markets women’s career apparel, designer
knitwear, sportswear, including denim products, and accessories to department and specialty stores under owned
and licensed brand names and directly to consumers through its catalogs and e-commerce websites. The
Operating Segment Information in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Cperations, as well as in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements further describe the
Company’s operations.

Substantially all of the Company’s products are sold to a wide variety of retail channels under established
brand names, both owned and under license, and to a much lesser extent utilizing the private labels of major
retailers. The Company owns two of the most recognized brands in men’s tailored clothing—Hart Schaffner
Marx®, which was introduced in 1887, and Hickey Freeman®, which dates from 1899. The Company also offers
its products under other brands which it owns such as Exclusively Misook®, Christopher Blue®, Wormn®, Pine
IV®, One Girl Who ...®, zooey®, zooey by alice heller™, eye®, b.chyll™, Monarchy®, Manchester Escapes™,
Sansabelt®, Palm Beach®, Barrie Pace®, Naturalife®, Pusser’s of the West Indies®, Society Brand Ltd.®,
Coppley™ and Racquet Club® and under exclusive license agreements for specified product lines including Jack
Nicklaus®, Golden Bear®, Bobby Jones®, Burberry® men’s tailored clothing, Austin Reed®, Perry Ellis®,
Tommy Hilfiger®, Ted Baker®, Claibone®, Pierre Cardin®, Lyle & Scou®, JAG® and Starington®. To broaden
the distribution of the apparel sold under its owned and licensed trademarks, the Company has also entered into
57 license or sublicense agreements with third parties for specified product lines to produce, market and
distribute apparel in 35 countries outside the United States, Additionally, the Company has direct marketing
activities primarily in Europe, but also in Asia, North and South America, selling golfwear in 25 countries.

On August 14, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and operations of Monarchy, LLC, a designer and
marketer of premiem casual sportswear to leading specialty stores nationwide principally under the Monarchy
and Manchester Escapes brands. On December 11, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets and operations
related to the Zooey brand of high end women’s tee shirts and fine knitwear marketed principally to upscale
women’s specialty stores. On August 29, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets, properties and operations of
Sweater.com, a privately held marketer of high quality women’s knitwear, tops and related preducts. On
October 31, 20035, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired certain assets, properties and operations
of Simply Blue, a privately-held marketer of women’s denim products. On July 20, 2004, the Company acquired
certain assets, properties and operations of Misook, a privately-held marketer of women’s designer knitwear.
These acquisitions further expanded and diversified the Company’s women’s product offerings.




Products Produced and Services Rendered

The Company’s merchandising strategy is to market a wide selection of men’s tailored clothing, sportswear
and dress furnishings, and women’s career apparel, designer knitwear and sportswear, including denim products,
across a wide variety of fashion directions, price points and distribution channels. Men’s Apparel Group
represented approximately 77% of sales in 2007, 80% of sales in 2006 and 85% of sales in 2005. Women’s
Apparel Group represented approximately 23% of sales in 2007, 20% of sales in 2006 and 15% of sales in 2005.
As a manufacturer and marketer, the Company is responsible for the design, manufacture and sourcing of its
apparel. Its men’s tailored clothing and slacks are manufactured in five Company operated facilities located in
the United States and three facilities in Canada, as well as at numerous independent contractors located
principally outside of the United States. Some of the Company’s dress furnishings are produced at a Company
operated facility in Canada. However, the Company utilizes domestic and foreign contract manufacturers to
produce a substantial portion of its moderate priced tailored clothing, its non-tailored clothing products,
principally men’s sportswear, as well as women’s carecer apparel and sportswear, including denim products, in
accordance with Company specifications and production schedules.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Raw materials, which include fabric, linings, thread, buttons and labels, are obtained from domestic and
foreign sources based on quality, pricing, fashion trends and availability. The Company’s principal raw material
is fabric, including woolens, cottons, polyester and blends of wool and polyester. The Company procures and
purchases its raw materials directly for its owned manufacturing facilities and may also procure and retain
ownership of fabric relating to garments cut and assembled by contract manufacturers. In other circumstances,
fabric is procured by the contract manufacturer directly but in accordance with the Company’s specifications. For
certain of its product offerings, the Company and selected fabric suppliers jointly develop fabric for the
Company’s exclusive use. Approximately 66% of the raw materials purchased by the Company in fiscal 2007
was acquired direct]y from foreign mills. Purchases from foreign mills, especially with respect to higher quality
fabrics, reflect both enhanced diversity of available styles relative to United States sourced fabric and reduced
duties on such foreign purchases. A substantial portion of these purchases is denominated in United States
dollars. Purchases from the Company’s largest fabric supplier represented approximately 21% of the Company’s
total fabric requirements in fiscal 2007 compared to 17% in 2006 and approximately 10% in 2005. No other
supplier accounts for over 10% of the Company’s fiscal 2007 total raw material requirements. As is customary in
the industry, the Company has no long-term contracts with its suppliers. The Company believes that a variety of
alternative sources of supply are available to satisfy its raw material requirements.

Product lines are developed primarily for two major selling seasons, spring and fall, with smaller lines for
the summer and holiday seasons. The majority of the Company’s products are purchased by its customers on an
advance order basis, five to seven months prior to shipment. Seasonal commitments for a portion of the expected
requirements are made approximately three to five months in advance of the customer order. For certain of the
Company’s product lines, in-stock inventory programs are maintained on selected product styles giving
customers the capability to order electronically with resulting shipment within one to two business days.
Programs with selected fabric suppliers provide for availability to support in-stock marketing programs. The
normal production process from fabric cutting to finished production is five to six weeks for tailored suits and
sport coats and three to four weeks for tailored slacks. A substantial portion of sporiswear and women’s apparel
is produced by unaffiliated contractors utilizing Company designs.

Competition and Customers

The Company emphasizes quality, fashion, brand awareness and service in engaging in this highly
competitive business, While no manufacturer of men'’s clothing accounts for more than a small percentage of the
total amount of apparel produced by the entire industry in the United States, the Company believes it is the
largest domestic manufactorer and marketer of men's tailored clothing and men’s slacks with expected retail
prices over $75. The Company’s women’s apparel sales do not represent a significant percentage of the total
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market for women’s apparel sales. The Company’s customers include major department and specialty stores
(certain of which are under common ownership and control), value-oriented retailers and direct mail companies.
The Company’s largest customer, Dillard’s Department Stores, represented approximately 21%, 21% and 20% of
consolidated sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Nordstrom’s represented approximately 13%, 12% and
£1% of consolidated sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company's top ten customers represented
approximately 50% of consolidated sales in 2007, 54% of consolidated sales in 2006 and 55% of consohdated
sales in 2005.

Advance Orders

As of November 30, 2007 and 20006, advance orders for the next Spring season aggregated approximately
$142 million and $139 million, respectively, all of which will be or were shipped within the subsequent six
months. Backlog information is not necessarily indicative of sales to be expected for the following year due to
the level of in-stock EDI replenishment programs with many retailers and dlfferences between years as to when
the retailer places orders for the Company’s products.

Geographic Distribution of Sales

Information on sales and long-lived assets by geographic region for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 is included
in the Operating Segment Information note to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Trademarks, Licensing Agreements and Research

A significant portion of the Company’s sales are of products carrying brands and trademarks owned by the
Company. As noted previously, the Company also manufactures and markets products pursuant to exclusive
license agreements with others. While the terms and duration of these license agreements vary, typically they
provide for certain minimum payments and are subject to renewal and renegotiation.

With the acquisition of Monarchy in August 2007, the Company acquired the Monarchy and Manchester
Escapes trademarks. With the acquisitions of Sweater.com in August 2006 and Zooey in December 20086, the
Company acquired the One Girl Who ... and Zooey trademarks, respectively. The Company acquired the
Christopher Blue, Wom and L. Paseo trademarks, as well as the rights to the JAG trademark under a design
services agreement with the acquisition of Simply Blue in October 2005. The Tommy Hilfiger casual pant license
agreement terminated in 2005 resulting in a $19 million reduction in sales in 2006 compared to 2005. The
Kenneth Cole license agreement expired December 31, 2006 and was not renewed. Annual sales of Kenneth Cole
products during 2006 were approximately $19 million.

In the apparel industry, new product development is directed primarily towards new fashion and design
changes and does not require significant expenditures for research. The Company’s fixed assets include
expenditures for new equipment developed by others. The Company does not spend material amounts on
research activities relating to the development of new equipment.

Conditions Affecting the Environment

Regulations relating to the protection of the environment have not had a significant effect on capital
expenditures, earnings or the competitive position of the Company. The making of apparel is not energy
intensive, and the Company is not engaged in producing fibers or fabrics.

Employees

The Company presently has approximately 3,800 employees, of which approximately 89% are employed in
Men’s Apparel Group. Most of the employees engaged in manufacturing and distribution activities in the United
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States and Canada are covered by union contracts with UNITE HERE. The Company considers its employee
relations to be satisfactory.

Seasonality; Working Capital

The men’s tailored clothing business has two principal selling seasons, spring and fall, Additional lines for
the summer and holiday seasons are marketed in men’s and women’s sportswear. Men’s tailored clothing,
especially at higher price points, generally tends to be less sensitive to frequent shifts in fashion trends, economic
conditions and weather, as compared to men’s sportswear or women’s career apparel and sportswear. While there
is typically little seasonality to the Company’s sales on a quarterly basis, seasonality can be affected by a variety
of factors, including the mix of advance and fill-in orders, customer directed shipping date parameters, the
distribution of sales across retail trade channels and overall product mix between traditional and fashion
merchandise. The Company generally receives advance orders from its wholesale customers approximately five
to seven months prior to shipment. Some of the Company’s operating businesses also routinely maintain in-stock
positions of selected inventory in order to fill customer orders on a quick response basis.

Sales and receivables are recognized when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an
agreement exists, delivery has occurred, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably
assured. Payment terms are generally 30 to 60 days from the date of shipment. With respect to the tailored
clothing advance order shipments, customary industry trade terms are 60 days. In-stock shipments generally have
30 day terms. Peak borrowing levels occur towards the end of March and September, just prior to the collection
of receivables from men’s tailored clothing advance order shipments. Borrowing availability levels generally
decline towards the end of the first and third quarters and increase during the second and fourth quarters.

Availability of Reports Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, Code of Conduct, Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Charters for Committees of the Board of Directors

The Company’s annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K
and ail amendments to those reports are available free of charge through the Company website,
www.hartmarx.com, as s00n as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Also available on the website under the heading “Investor
Relations” are current copies of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics, its Corporate Governance
Guidelines and Charters for the Audit and Finance, Compensation and Stock Option, and Nominating and
Governance Committees of the Board of Directors. Print copies of the current Corporate Governance Guidelines,
or the respective committee charters are also available at no charge to stockholders upon request addressed to the
Corporate Secretary at Hartmarx Corporation, 101 North Wacker Drive, Chicago, 1. 60606. The Company’s
internet website and the information contained therein or incorporated therein are not intended to be and are not
incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A—Risk Factors

The Company’s business is subject to a number of risks. If any of the events contemplated by the following
risks actually occur, then its business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely
affected. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known or currently deemed to be immaterial may also
materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

» The apparel environment is cyclical and the level of consumer spending on apparel can decline during
periods of general economic uncertainty or during recessionary periods when disposable income
declines. The overall retail economy in the United States could affect retailers’ expectations of future
apparel product sales. A more pessimistic evaluation by retailers compared to 2007 could adversely
affect both the advance order and in-stock product lines marketed by the Company. The Company’s
sales and earnings could also be adversely impacted to the extent that the financial strength of its
existing or new retail customers worsens.




The Company’s two largest customers represented approximately 21% and 13% of consolidated sales,
respectively, in fiscal 2007 and 21% and 12% of consolidated sales, respectively, in fiscal 2006. The
Company’s ten largest customers represented approximately 50% and 54% of consolidated sales in
fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company believes it maintains an excellent business
relationship with these customers. The Company does not have any long term agreements with its
customers. An unanticipated decline in sales with the Company’s largest customers would adversely
affect profitability as it would be difficult to immediately replace this business with new customers or
increase sales volume with other existing customers. During 2005 and 2006, there were several changes
in ownership control regarding several of the Company’s customers, including Federated’s acquisition
of the May Company stores and the sale of certain store groups formerly owned by Saks, Incorporated.
During 2006 and 2007, the Company experienced declining sales largely in its moderate priced tailored
clothing brands marketed to the mainstreamn department store customers impacted by such ownership
changes; profitability could be adversely affected by further revenue declines.

The tailored clothing market has continued to experience unit declines. Also, certain retailers have been
increasing their direct sourcing of apparel products, including tailored clothing, especially at the
moderate price points, under brands exclusive to the retailer. The Company has been, among other
things, placing less emphasis on brands which do not have the potential of achieving acceptable profit
margins and introducing new brands with higher gross margin potential. The Company’s sales and
profitability have been adversely affected over the past two years by declining demand for tailored
clothing at moderate price points, and profitability would be adversely affected further if demand
continues to decline, if wholesale prices, net of allowances, decline further, or if large retailers further
increase their direct sourcing of tailored clothing.

Sales derived from products which utilize licensed brand names, while declining in scope over the past
several years, represent an important current component of the Company’s overall revenues and
profitability. The Company also serves as a licensing agent for several of its principal licensors. The
Company believes the relationships with its principal licensors are generally favorable and the
termination of any single licensing agreement would not have a material adverse effect on its business
taken as a whole. Nonetheless, during the past few years, in response to inadequate profitability of
certain licensing arrangements, the Company elected to terminate several licensing arrangements
through both the non-renewal of expiring licenses and through renegotiated settlements of others. The
Company also announced that during 2007 it renegotiated terms of certain ongoing licenses and would
not be renewing a license which has experienced declining sales upon its expiration at the end of 2008.
Qver the past few years, the Company has experienced an increased level of product returns, allowances
granted to customers, and increased inventory markdown requirements to value inventories at net
realizable value related to several moderate priced tailored clothing licenses, the aggregate of which had
a significant adverse impact on revenues and profitability. The long-term prospects of the Company
assume the continuation of a significant percentage of the remaining licensing arrangements and
continued consumer acceptance of the products sold under those licensed brands.

Substantially all of the Company’s men’s and women’s sportswear, including denim products, men’s
ties, women's career apparel and designer knitwear, and a portion of its men’s tailored suits, sport coats,
slacks and dress shirts are manufactured utilizing independent contractors, a significant percentage of
which are located outside of the United States. The Company is dependent upon the contractors’ ability
to deliver such products on a timely basis. Labor, delivery or transportation difficulties regarding
contractor sourced products which result in delays not readily controllable by the Company could
negatively affect operating profits. Also, adverse political or economic disruptions in these countries
and/or currency fluctuations could unfavorably impact overall Company profitability.

Continuation of widespread casual dressing in the workplace could further reduce the demand for
tailored clothing products, especially for tailored suits. While the Company markets several sportswear
and casual product lines, consumer receptiveness to the Company’s casual and sportswear product
offerings may not offset the potential decline in tailored clothing unit sales.
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The Company depends on third-party fabric suppliers. Fabric purchases from the Company’s ten largest
fabric suppliers approximated 54% of the total fabric requirements in fiscal 2007 compared to 55% in fiscal
20006. As is customary in the industry, there are no long-term contracts with fabric suppliers. The Company
believes that there are alternative sources of supply available to satisfy its raw material requirements.
However, a prolonged, unanticipated disruption of scheduled deliveries from these suppliers could adversely
affect production scheduling and ultimately the Company’s ability to meet customer delivery dates.

The Company sources substantially al! of its men’s sportswear and womenswear, as well as a portion of
men’s tailored clothing from foreign countries. It is at risk to changes relating to the laws and
regulations governing the importing and exporting of apparel products into and from the countries in
which it operates. Substantially all of the Company’s import operations are subject to tariffs and other
charges imposed on imported products. In addition, the countries in which the Company’s products are
manufactured or countries into which the Company’s products are imported may impose additional or
new quotas, duties, tariffs, taxes or other restrictions or adversely modify existing restrictions.

The Company’s operations are also subject to international trade agreements and regulations such as the
North American Free Trade Agreement and the World Trade Organization. Trade agreements can
impose tequirements that adversely affect its business, such as limiting the countries from which raw
materials can be purchased and setting quota on products that may be imported into the United States
from a particular country,

The Company’s or any of its suppliers’ failure to comply with customs or similar laws could restrict its
ability to import product or result in fines or other penalties. The Company cannot guarantee that future
trade agreements will not provide its competitors with a material advantage, which may negatively
impact the Company’s business,

The Company actively seeks to acquire new businesses consistent with its business strategies and
acquisition criteria. Sales growth may be limited if suitable acquisition candidates are not found at
reasonable prices or if the acquisitions do not achieve the anticipated results. These acquisitions may
strain the Company’s administrative, operational and financial resources and distract management from
existing operations. The integration process could create a number of challenges and adverse
consequences, including the unexpected loss of key employees, suppliers, customers and sales, or an
increase in other operating costs. Further, the Company may not be able to manage the combined
operations and assets effectively or realize all or any of the anticipated benefits of the acquisition,

As a result of acquisitions that have occurred or may occur in the future, the Company may become
respansible for unexpected liabilities that were not discovered in the course of performing due diligence
in connection with acquired businesses. The Company cannot be assured that any indemnification to
which it may be entitled from the sellers will be enforceable, collectible or sufficient in amount, scope
or duration to fully offset the possible liabilities associated with the business acquired.

The terms of future acquisitions may require the Comipany to make substantial payments to the sellers in
earnings-based contingent payments for a number of years following an acquisition, similar to the terms of the
Misook, Simply Blue, Sweater.com, Zooey and Monarchy acquisitions. As certain of the sellers’ principals
may continue their responsibilities as senior management, it is possible that their interests with respect to the
contingent payments would differ from the longer term interests of the Company as a whole. Such differences
may occur if they have incentives to maximize the profitability of the acquired business during the contingent
payment terms, which may be to the detriment of the longer term prospects for the business.

The execution of the Company’s business strategy is dependent on having competent management in the
key operating and staff functions of its business. The loss of any members of the Company’s executive
officers or key employees or senior operating unit management, without an appropriate succession plan, or
the inability to attract or retain qualified personnel, could adversely affect profitability.

The Company believes that its trademarks and other proprietary and intellectual property rights are of great
value and important to its success and competitive position. The Company is susceptible to others
imitating its products and infringing its intellectual property rights. The Company’s licensing agreements
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may cause it to be more susceptible to infringement of its intellectual property rights, as some of the
Company’s brands enjoy significant worldwide consumer recognition and generally higher pricing, thus
creating additional incentive for counterfeiters and infringers. Imitation or counterfeiting of the Company’s
products or infringement of its intellectual property rights could diminish the value of its brands or
otherwise adversely affect its revenues. The Company cannot assure that the actions it has taken to
establish and protect its trademarks and other intellectual property rights will be adeguate to prevent
imitation of its products by others or to prevent others from seeking to invalidate its trademarks or block
sales of its products as a violation of the trademark and intellectual property rights of others. From time to
time, third parties may challenge the Company’s ownership of its intellectual property. The Company
cannot assure that others will not assert nights in, or ownership of, its trademarks and other intellectual
property rights or in similar marks or marks that the Company licenses and/or markets or that it will be
able to successfully resolve these conflicts to the Company’s satisfaction. The Company may need to
resort to litigation to enforce its intellectual property rights, which could be time consuming and costly.

The Company believes its liquidity and expected cash flows are sufficient to finance its operations.
However, if current economic trends worsen, operating cash flow and capital resources could be reduced.
During fiscal 2007, the Company’s variable rate debt (based on the prime or LIBOR rates in effect from
time to time) averaged approximately $85 million under its Credit Facility. A large increase in total
borrowings and/or in the borrowing rates under the Credit Facility could adversely affect profitability.

The Company is involved in various claims and lawsuits incidental to its business. In the opinion of
management, these claims and lawsuits in the aggregate will not have a material adverse effect on the

Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 1B—Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2—Properties

The Company’s principal executive and administrative offices are located in Chicago, Illinois. Its office,
manufacturing and distribution operations are conducted at the following locations:

Approximate Expiration
floor area date of
int square material

Location feet Principal Use leases
Anmniston, AL ................... 72,000 Manufacturing 2010
Buffalo, NY .................... 280,000  Distribution; office 2015
Cape Girardeau, MO .. ........... 167,000  Manufacturing; distribution *
Chicago, IL .................... 77,000  Executive and admin. offices 2009
Des Plaines, IL . ................ 361,000  Manufacturing; distribution *
Easton, PA..................... 220,000  Distribution; office *
Los Angeles, CA (4 locations) .. ... 35,000 Distribution; office 2008
to 2011
Michigan City, IN (2 locations) .... 266,000 Distribution; office *
New York, NY (16 locations) .. .... 99.000  Sales offices/showrooms/retail store/distribution 2008
to 2017
Redmond, WA ................. 18,000  Distribution; office 2008
Rochester, NY .................. 234,000  Manufacturing; distribution; office *
RockIsland, IL ................. 43,000 Manufacturing *
Rouses Point, NY ............... 30,000  Distribution 2011
Hamilton, Ontario, Canada
(3locations) ................. 164,000  Manufacturing; distribution; office 2008
Concord, Ontario, Canada ........ 24,000  Manufacturing 2009

* Properties owned by the Registrant




The Company believes that its properties are well maintained and its manufacturing equipment is in good
operating condition and sufficient for current production. For information regarding the terms of the leases and
rental payments thereunder, refer to the “Commitments and Contingencies” note to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this Form 10-K.

In fiscal 2005, the Company completed a significant modernization of its Hickey-Freeman manufacturing
and distribution facility in Rochester, New York, at a cost of $8.0 million. In connection with this project, the
Company entered inio agreements with various local and state governmental agencies, in which the various
agencies reimbursed the Company $5.0 million of the modernization costs in the form of participating grants; an
additional $.7 million has been received related to this modernization from non-governmental sources. Among
other things, the terms of the governmental grant monies require that a minimum employment level be
maintained at the facility through 2011. If the required minimum employment level is not maintained, a portion
of the grant monies could be converted into loans based on a sliding amortization schedule through 2011, The
facility’s employment levels have been substantially in excess of the minimum level for a number of years and
the Company expects that employment will exceed the minimum level through 2011.

Substantially all of the Company’s assets, including real property and equipment, are pledged as security
under its Credit Facility or subject to mortgages with other lenders.

Item 3—Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in various claims and lawsuits incidental to its business. In the opinion of
management, these claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4—Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Nomne.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Each of the executive officers of the Company listed below has served the Company in various executive
capacities for at least the past five years, except as otherwise noted below. Each corporate officer is elected
annuaily by the Board of Directors, normally for a one-year term and is subject to the removal powers of the
Board.

Years of
Service
with
Name Position A£ M
Homi B. Patel .......... Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer (Director since
1994) 58 28
Glenn R, Morgan ....... Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 60 28
Taras R. Proczko . ....... Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 53 27
Raymeond C. Giuriceo .... Vice President and Managing Director, International Licensing 64 46
James T. Conners ....... Vice President and Controller, Chief Accounting Officer 44 —_

Mr. Patel was elected to his current position as Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer in July
2004, From April 2002 to April 2004, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer. From February 1993
to April 2002, he served as President and Chief Operating Officer.
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Mr. Morgan was elected to his current position as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer in April 2001.

Mr. Proczko was elected to his current position as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary in
December 2001.

Mr. Giuriceo was elected to his current position as Vice President and Managing Director—International
Licensing in November 1992.

Mr. Conners joined the Company in August 2007 and was elected to his current position as Vice President
and Controller in November 2007.




PARTII

Item 5—Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Hartmarx Corporation common stock is traded on the New York and Chicago Stock Exchanges. The
quarterly composite price ranges of the Company’s common stock for the past three fiscal years were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
High Low High Low High Low
FirstQuarter ............. i, ... $740 3638 $896 $7.33 $9.05 $7.38
SecondQuarter ........... ... . ... ... i 797 565 997 737 1029 8.1
Third Quarter . .. .. ... .. e 869 6.00 753 573 1048 834
FourthQuarter .......... ..o it 735 398 786 550 925 6.09

The Company has not paid a quarterly cash dividend since November 1991. Generally, dividends may be
paid so long as excess borrowing availability, as set forth in the Credit Facility, exceeds $25 million, after
reflecting the payment of such dividends.

As of January 31, 2008, there were approximately 3,200 holders of the Common Stock. The number of
holders was estimated by adding the number of registered holders furnished by the Company’s registrar together
with the number of participants in the Company’s Savings Investment and Stock Ownership Plan.

Purchase of equity securities by the issuer and affiliated purchasers.

Maximum
Number of
Total Total Number of Shares
Number of  Average  Shares Purchased  That May Yet
Shares Price Paid as Part of Publicly  Be Purchased

Periot'l_ Purchased per Share Announced Plans Under the Plans
September 1, 2007 to

September 30,2007 ... .. ... .. .. ... 28,700 $6.98 28,700 333,068
October 1, 2007 to

October 31,2007 . ... ... . ... ... . .. ... 485,500  $5.16 485,500 2,847,568
November 1, 2007 to

November 30,2007 ... .. . i i 557,800  $4.71 557,800 2,289,768
Total .o e e e e 1,072,000 1,072,000

On October 28, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of the
Company’s $2.50 par value common stock from time to time in the open market, through privately negotiated
transactions, block transactions or otherwise. Repurchases under this authorization were completed in October
2007.

On October 18, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 3,000,000 additional shares
of the Company’s $2.50 par value common stock from time to time in the open market, through privately
negotiated transactions, block transactions or otherwise. Repurchases under this authorization commenced in

October 2007. The current authorization expires on December 31, 2009.

All shares purchased above were acquired in open-market transactions.
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Total Cumulative Stockholder Return for Five-Year Period Ending November 30, 2007

The following graph compares the five year cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s common
stock to the Standard & Poor's 500® Index and the Peer Group. The information presented assumes $100
invested at the close of business November 30, 2002 in Hartmarx Corporation common stock and each of the
indices, plus the reinvestment of any dividends.

The Peer Group, including Hartmarx Corporation, is comprised of: Ashworth Inc., Columbia Sportswear
Co., Cutter & Buck Inc., Haggar Corporation, Kellwood Company, Marisa Christina, Incorporated, Oxford
Industries, Inc., Perry Ellis International, Inc., Philips-Van Heusen Corporation, Russell Corporation, Salant
Corporation, Sport-Haley, Inc. and Tropical Sportswear Int’l Corporation. Salant Corporation has been excluded
from Peer Group returns for 2003 — 2007 due to its having been acquired by Perry Ellis International, Inc. during
2003. Haggar Corporation has been excluded from Peer Group returns for 2005 — 2007 due to its having been
acquired by an investor group during 2005. Tropical Sportswear Int’l Corporation has been excluded from Peer
Group returns for 2005 ~ 2007 due to its having been acquired by Perry Ellis International, Inc. during 2005.
Marisa Christina, Incorporated has been excluded from Peer Group returns for 2006 and 2007 due to its having
been acquired by Hampshire Group, Lid. during 2006. Russell Corporation has been excluded from Peer Group
returns for 2006 and 2007 due to its having been acquired by Berkshire Hathaway Inc. in 2006. Cutter & Buck,
Inc has been excluded from Peer Group results for 2007 due to it having been acquired by New Wave Group AB
(Publ) in 2007.

Hartmarx Corporation
Total Cumulative Shareholder Return for
Five-Year Period Ending November 30, 2007
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Itern 6—Selected Financial Data

The following table summarizes data for the fiscal years 2003 through 2007. The Company’'s complete
audited financial statements and notes thereto for the three years ended November 30, 2007 appear elsewhere in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Income Statement Data
In Thousands, Except Per Share Data
For Years Ended November 30 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Netsales ......ccvviiriie e e $562,416 $597,890 $598,167 $586,413 $561,849
Licensing and otherincome ..................... 2,454 2,573 2,118 2,445 1,898
Costof goodssold ............................ 384,110 404,618 395,680 396272 392350
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ....... 178,271 174924 159,063 160,207 148,788
Operating earnings . ...........ooieiaer vnen- 2,489 20,921 45,542 32,379 22,609
Interestexpense ...........ccoiiiiiiniainaon. (9,238) (9,169) (7,182) (6,474) (7,429
Refinancing expense ....................c...... — — — — (795)
Eamings (loss) before taxes ..................... (6,749) 11,752 38,360 25,905 14,385
Tax (provision) benefit . . ....................... 2,571 (4,466) (14.805) (10,040) (5,680)
Netearnings (loss) . ........ .. ... (4,178) 7,286 23,555 15,865 8,705
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare ................. (.12) 20 .63 44 25
Cash dividends pershare ....................... — — — — —
Diluted average number of common shares and

equivalents ........... .. 35,974 37,081 37,212 36,286 34,645
Balance Sheet Data
In Thousands, Except Per Share Data
At November 30
Cash and cashequivalents ...................... $ 4430 $ 2304 § 1,257 $§ 2356 $ 2,964
Accounts receivable,net ......... ... .. 93,465 113,688 123,058 119,033 117,778
INVENIOMIES ...\ ot et e e e 142,399 146,440 153,263 130,139 124,010
Prepaid expenses and other assets ................ 24203 17,368 19,158 14,284 12,485
Net properties .. .....oiiniiniee i iiiinaens 35,273 33,964 37,250 27,643 29,323
Prepaid / intangible pension asset ................ — 36,550 35,963 39,411 42,860
Goodwill and intangible assets . .................. 100,104 83,458 75,831 59,725 23,787
Deferred income taxes .. ........ovuvnreninen,.- 59,978 39,312 48,865 55,950 68,157
Total ass€lS . . oo vt i e e 459,852 473,084 494,645 448,541 421,364
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ........... 96,188 90,764 99,841 98,307 78,342
Totaldebt ...t 120,745 113,355 119,513 102,032 104,404
Accred pension liability . . ... e 14,882 8,300 29,445 26,416 46,167
Shareholders’ equity™™ ................ ... ...... 228,037 260,656 245,846 221786 192,451
Equity pershare ................ .. ... . ... ..., 6.39 7.13 6.62 6.16 5.49
Other Data '
In Thousands
For Years Ended November 30
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets ... .... $ 5541 $ 6301 § 5111 $§ 5559 % 5870
Amortization of intangible assets, long-lived assets

anddebtdiscount ............... ... . ... ..inn 4,124 3,027 3,241 3,034 2,200
Stock compensation expense® . .. ... ... ... 2,235 2,311 425 1,413 817
Capital expenditures® .. ... ... ... .. ... . ..., 18,030 3,130 14,588 4,180 2,566

(1) Effective November 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158 related to pension plans, the effect of
which, among other things, resulted in a non-cash reduction to Shareholders’ Equity of $27.3 million.

(2) Effective December 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-
Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R™),” which regquires the Company to recognize expense for the grant date
fair value of its employee stock option awards. The Company recognizes the expense of all share-based
awards on a straight-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period {generally the vesting period of

the award).
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(3) Capital expenditure amounts for 2007 include approximately $11.2 million of capitalized software
acquisition and related costs applicable to the future upgrading of certain of the Company’s computer
systems. Amounts represent capital expenditures during the respective year irrespective of whether the
amounts were paid during the respective period. Approximately $744, $281 and $773 related to capital
expenditures were included in accounts payable at November 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Capital
expenditures for 2005 include modemization of the Company’s Hickey-Freeman manufacturing and
distribution facility as described in Item 2—Properties.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements provide additional information relating to the comparability of the
information presented above.

Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

The Company operates exclusively in the apparel business. Its operations are comprised of the Men’s
Apparel Group and Women’s Apparel Group. The Men’s Apparel Group designs, manufactures and markets
men’s tailored clothing, slacks, sportswear (including golfwear) and dress furnishings (shirts and ties). Products
are sold at luxury, premium and moderate price points under a broad variety of apparel brands, both owned and
under license, to an extensive range of retail channels. The Women's Apparel Group designs and markets
women’s career apparel, designer knitwear, sportswear, including denim products, and accessories to department
and specially stores under owned and licensed brand names and directly to consumers through its catalogs and
e-commerce websites. Consolidated revenues were $562.4 million in 2007, $597.9 million in 2006 and $598.2
million in 2005. The Men’s Apparel Group segment represented 77% of consolidated revenues in 2007, 80% in
2006 and 85% in 2005. The Women’s Apparel Group segment represented 23% of consolidated sales in 2007,
20% in 2006 and 15% in 2005. Direct-to-consumer marketing, although currently representing only a small
percentage of consolidated revenues, is increasing, as a result of additional Hickey-Freeman retail stores and
enhanced internet-based marketing for certain womenswear and higher end men’s sportswear products. Sales of
non-tailored product categories (men’s sportswear, golfwear, pants and womenswear) were 51% of total sales in
2007 compared to 48% in 2006 and 46% in 2005. Sales of non-tailored product categories are expected to further
increase in fiscal 2008, principally from the full year impact of the August 2007 acquisition of Monarchy, growth
in the men’s sportswear and women’s brands and from reduced moderate priced tailored clothing revenues as a
result of the actions described below.

Significant Factors Impacting Operating Results

The Company incurred a consolidated pre-tax loss of $6.7 million in 2007 compared to pre-tax earnings of
$11.8 million in 2006 and $38.4 million in 2005. The net loss was $.12 per diluted share in 2007 compared to
earnings per diluted share of $.20 in 2006 and $.63 in 2005. The declines in consolidated earnings in 2007
compared to 2006 and 2006 compared to 2005 were largely attributable to the conditions impacting the
Company’s moderate priced tailored clothing and pant product categories included in the Men’s Appare! Group
segment results. During 2007, various actions described below to more aggressively reduce the Company’s
moderate tailored product lines resulted in aggregate charges of over $13 million, representing approximately
$.22 per diluted share. These charges principally reflected inventory markdowns and liquidations but also
included charges related to licenses, severance and facility impairments.

To a lesser extent, fiscal 2007 results were also impacted adversely by the full year effect of three recent
acquisitions. Monarchy and Zooey, acquired during fiscal 2007, and Sweater.com, acquired in August 2006, had
aggregate 2007 revenues of approximately $21 million and incurred a net loss equating to $.11 per diluted share,
reflecting product development and infrastructure investments and required purchase accounting adjustments.
These acquisitions are anticipated to be profitable in 2008, and contribute to the Company’s strategic growth and
provide further diversification of non-tailored clothing product categories.
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The Company achieved increased revenues and earnings in 2007 compared to 2006 from its Luxury men’s
product lines, consisting of Hickey-Freeman, Burberry men’s tailored clothing and Bobby Jones, and from its
women’s segment, principally from the earlier acquisitions of Misook and Simply Blue, which markets its
products under the Christopher Blue and Jag Jeans lines; however, the significant revenue and eamnings declines
in the moderate tailored clothing product brands in 2006 and 2007 overshadowed those product lines which
experienced improvements.

Principal Operational Challenges
The Company’s principal operational challenges have been the following:

»  The trend to casual dressing in the workplace has been a major contributor to the overall market decline
for tailored clothing products {suits and sport coats) for a number of years, especiaily for tailored suits,
the Company’s core product offering.

¢ The need to diversify the Company’s product offerings in non-tailored product categories in light of the
reduced demand for tailored clothing, largely affecting the moderate priced category, e.g., at retail price
points below $300.

+ The consolidation and ownership changes of national and regional retailers, an important distribution

channel for the Company, along with certain large retailers’ narrowing of number of lines carried in

" their stores, increasing their emphasis on direct sourcing of product offerings and exerting increased
demands for pricing allowances and product returns.

+ Declining demand for certain licensed tailored products marketed at moderate price points resulting
from the factors noted above, but also from branding and/or retail channel distribution decisions made
by certain licensors with regard to product categories controlled by the licensors.

Effect of Declines in Moderate Priced Tailored Clothing Product Lines

Regarding its tailored clothing product offerings, the Company began reducing the number of its
domestically owned tailored clothing facilities during the 1990’s in response to declining demand, and initiated
sourcing of moderate-priced tailored clothing to non-domestic unaffiliated contractors in order to lower costs and
improve margins. During 2001 and 2002, the Company closed seven facilities engaged in fabric cutting and
sewing operations, one distribution center and several administrative offices, and enacted early voluntary
retirement programs and other administrative workforce reductions. During the 2003-2005 pericd, operating
earnings improved significantly on small revenue increases, as product mix changes, largely from acquisitions,
and a more stable tailored clothing environment, resulted in improved gross margins.

The 2006 decline in consolidated earnings compared to 2005, as well as the 2007 decline compared to 2006,
was principally attributable to the moderate priced tailored clothing and pant product categories included in the
Men's Apparel Group segment results. Over this 2006-2007 two-year period, moderate priced tailored ciothing
and pant revenues declined by approximately $77 million and profitability has been adversely impacted by,
among other things, wholesale pricing and allowance pressures from certain large retailers who have been
reducing the number of different lines carried by them and increasing their direct sourcing of apparel products,
including tailored clothing. The Company has accelerated its actions to reduce its overall investment relating to
this product category over the past two years, including the closing of three manufacturing facilities in calendar
2006. These manufacturing facility closings and refated sales, administrative and staffing reductions resulted in
$3.0 million of incremental costs, charged against operations in fiscal 2006. Domestic tailored clothing
manufacturing levels overall were lower compared to 2005 which further affected gross margins unfavorably due
to under uiilization of manufacturing and sourcing capacities. The Company also elected not to renew two
tailored clothing licenses which generated fiscal 2006 revenues of over $19 million. These incremental costs, the
related operational inefficiencies incurred as off-shore sourcing and domestic production levels were scaled
down and losses associated with related inventory liquidations collectively impacted 2006 earnings adversely.
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The . unfavorable market conditions affecting the moderate tailored clothing product lines during 2006
worsened during 2007 as a result of: (1) increased pressures by retailers for price reductions as a condition of
advance order placement, (2) additional requests for end of season pricing allowances and returns, (3) a
narrowing of the number of brands offered for sale and reduction in purchasing volume of moderate priced
apparel by the largest retailers in the mainstream/popular channel, and (4) increased private label direct sourcing
by retailers which reduced the demand for moderate priced brands marketed by the Company. Although the
Company’s men’s and women’s product lines marketed at the higher price points to upscale specialty store
retailers experienced higher sales and margins in 2007 compared to 2006, the 2007 losses from the moderate
priced tailored clothing lines more than offset the favorable impact from the higher price point product lines.

This market environment contributed to the following conditions which the Company is continuing to
address:

»  The liquidation of remaining inventories relating to brands the Company has discontinued.

+  Excess quantities related to brands marketed during 2007 which will be discontinued upon expiration of
licensing agreements to be concluded by the end of 2008.

+ The significant reduction in demand for moderate priced clothing in-stock replenishment programs in
general which has resulted in the decision to discontinue or significantly curtail several replenishment
programs at these moderate price points.

+ Uncertain outlook for several brands currently marketed by the Company where the licensor has
established exclusive marketing relationships with certain retailers. These licensor initiated actions have
in certain cases diminished the brand’s overall appeal to other retailers, adversely impacting the demand
for the moderate tailored product category marketed by the Company.

These worsening conditions during the latter part of 2007, coupled with actions impacting several of the
Company’s licensing relationships, resulted in more aggressive management actions including the decision to
eliminate several additional lines of moderate priced tailored clothing which, among other things, resulted in
significant losses relating to inventory dispositions and required markdowns, and additional staff reductions in
the procurement, selling and administrative areas affected by the moderate tailored product lines. Collectively,
these actions in 2007 to address the inventory valuation requirements, severance and facility impairment charges
aggregated approximately $13 million in pre-tax expense, reflected principally as a component lowering
consolidated gross margin.

Impact of Acquisitions

As further discussed below, the decline in operating carnings in the Men’s Apparel Group segment in 2006
and 2007 were only partially offset by the favorable impact of the Company’s product diversification strategies,
principally from earlier acquisitions in its Women’s Apparel Group segment. Regarding product diversification,
the Company has continued to expand its non-tailored clothing product offerings principally from acquisitions.
The Company completed the following acquisitions in the past three years:

Purchase Price
. at Acquisition
Company Date of Acquisition (in millions)
Monarchy ... ... August 14, 2007 ‘ 3121
ZO0CY oot e December 11, 2000 31
SWeater.com . .......viiiiiii i August 29, 2006 12.4
SimplyBlue .. ... i October 31, 2005 . 21.0

These acquisitions, financed through the Company’s Credit Facility and from cash generated from operating
activities, provide for strategic growth opportunities in womenswear and, with respect to Monarchy, further
diversification of men’s non-tailored product categories. During fiscal 2007, the Monarchy, Zooey and

15




Sweater.com acquisitions together contributed approximately $21 million in revenues; these enterprises incurred
a loss per diluted share of $.11 and reflected certain purchase accounting adjustments and other first year costs to
expand and realign certain product lines and related merchandising and selling staffs. The product lines acquired
with the Simply Blue acquisition in fiscal 2005 have been a significant contributor to earnings in 2006 and 2007
as has Exclusively Misook, a designer and marketer of upscale women’s knit products sold through leading
specialty and department stores, acquired in fiscal 2004. In 2001, the Company acquired the Consolidated
Apparel Group, a2 marketer of moderate priced men’s sportswear. These product diversification actions, along
with the introductions of Bobby Jones and Nicklaus golfwear in earlier years, have opened up or expanded
distribution channels for the Company’s non-tailored products, such as through “green grass” and resort shops
far golfwear,

Results of Operations

Consolidated revenues were $562.4 million in 2007 compared to $597.9 million in 2006 and $5398.2 million
in 2005. Operating earnings were $2.5 million in 2007 compared to $20.9 million in 2006 and $45.5 million in
2005.

The following summarizes sales and operating results for the Company’s business segments (in millions):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005
Sales:
Men's Apparel Group . . ......... o i i $4329 $479.7  $511.1
Women’s Apparel Group ........... ... ... ... ... 129.5 118.2 87.1
Total ... $562.4 $5979 $598.2
Operating earnings: '
Men's Apparel Group . . . ........ ... ..l $ 21 $234 §$513
Women’s Apparel Group ........... ... .. ... ... 13.6 12.2 8.9
Other and adjustments ........................... (13.2y (147 (14D
Total ... $ 25 $209 3§ 455

Men’s Apparel Group

Men’s Apparel Group revenues were $432.9 million in 2007, $479.7 million in 2006 and $511.1 million in
2005. The revenue decrease in 2007 compared to 2006 was principally attributable to lower sales of men’s
tailored clothing lines, principally at the moderate price points, as described previously. Tailored clothing
revenues at higher price points were slightly higher while sportswear product lines declined in the aggregate. The
current year included $7.6 million related to the August 2007 acquisition of Monarchy.

The adverse conditions affecting the Men’s Apparel Group moderate clothing product lines described
previously resulted in a 24% decline in tailored clothing unit sales, principally attributable to the moderate price
points. Tailored clothing average wholesale selling prices increased approximately 19% from 2006, attributable
to the product mix change to a greater percentage of higher price point units to total units. Average wholesale
selling prices for tailored clothing at the higher price points were about even for comparable products. Unit sales
of sportswear products, excluding the newly acquired Monarchy brands, decreased approximately 27% while
average wholesale selling prices were approximately 15% higher than 2006, reflecting product mix changes
towards higher priced sportswear units.

The revenue decrease in 2006 compared to 2005 also reflected declines in moderate tailored clothing as well
ags from casual pants resulting from the conclusion of a men’s casual pant product category license that was not
renewed for fiscal 2006. These declines were partially offset by increases in the sportswear product categories. In
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general, wholesale selling prices for comparable products were approximately even in 2006 compared to 2005,
although product mix changes impacted comparability of both unit sales and average wholesale selling prices.
Men’s Apparel Group comparability of unit and average prices were impacted by more off-price sales and
customer allowances in 2006 compared to 20035, partially offset by the introduction or expansion of several
moderate priced sportswear lines and the now concluded casual pant license. Tailored clothing average wholesale
selling prices declined approximately 3% in 2006 compared to 2005. Suit unit sales were approximately 8%
lower. Unit sales of sportswear products increased approximately 36% and average wholesale selling prices were
approximately 14% lower than 2005, reflecting the expansion of moderate priced sportswear lines.

Men’s Apparel Group operating earnings were $2.1 miltion in 2007 compared to $23.4 million in 2006 and
$51.3 million in 2003, attributable to the decline in segment sales and from the actions taken with the moderate
tailored product lines. The gross margin ratio to sales was 25.8% in 2007, 28.1% in 2006 and 31.3% in 2005.
Operating expenses were $112.0 million in 2007 compared to $113.7 million in 2006 and $110.9 million in 2005.

Women's Apparel Group

Women’s Apparel Group sales, comprising approximately 23% of consolidated sales in 2007, 20% in 2006
and 15% in 2005, aggregated $129.5 million in 2007, $118.2 million in 2006 and $87.1 million in 2005. Product
lines acquired in recent years (including Exclusively Misook, Christopher Blue, Jag Jeans, One Girl Who...,
b.chyll and Zooey) represent an increasingly significant component of Women’s Apparel Group revenues. The
following table summarizes the revenues attributable to acquisitions commencing with the July 2004 acquisition
of Exclusively Misook:

Sales
2007 2006 2005
Product lines, excluding acquisitions . ........... ... ..covii . $472 § 508 §$526
Acquisitions .................... e e 82.3 674 345

$129.5 $1182 $87.1

Fiscal 2007 reflected $10.3 million of incremental sales attributable to Sweater.com and Zooey when
compared to 2006. The additional product lines acquired with these acquisitions increased the number of
women’'s units sold at an average unit price lower than the other women’s products taken as a whole. Excluding
these product lines, comparable unit sales of women’s apparel increased approximately 2% and average
wholesale prices were slightly lower, attributable to product mix changes.

Fiscal 2006 reflected $24.1 million of incremental sales attributable to Simply Blue and $2.9 million related
to Sweater.com, when compared to 2005. The addition of the Sweater.com products and the full year of Simply
Blue significantly increased the number of women’s units sold at an average unit price point lower than the other
women’s products taken as a whole, resulting in an increase in women’s units and a decrease in average unit
price.

Women’s Apparel Group’s operating earnings were $13.6 million in 2007 compared to $12.2 million in
2006 and $8.9 millicn in 2005. The operating earnings improvement in 2007 compared to 2006 was attributable
to incremental sales and earnings from the brands related to Misook and Simply Blue, as well as from improved
results from the Company’s legacy brands, which more than offset the operating losses incurred by the One Girl
Who... and Zooey product lines, acquired in August 2006 and December 2006, respectively. In 2007, these
recently acquired lines incurred an aggregate operating loss of approximately $4.6 million, which reflected
purchase accounting adjustments, product development and administrative expenditures required to position
these brands for longer term growth. Women’'s Apparel Group segment gross margin improved to 51.4% in 2007
from 49.6% in 2006, while operating expenses increased $6.5 million to $53.0 million, principally reflecting the
full year of Sweater.com and Zooey. The operating earnings improvement in 2006 from 2005 was attributable to
the incremental sales and operating margins from the Simply Blue brands for the full year and improvements at
Misook, offset in part by declines in the other women’s product lines taken as a whole, principally from lower
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sales and new product line initiatives which were not successful. Sweater.com incurred a small loss in 2006
during the three month period following the acquisition, which included the impact of purchase accounting
adjustments. Women’s Apparel Group segment gross margins improved to 49.6% in 2006 from 48.6% in 2005,
while operating expenses increased $13.0 million to $46.4 million, principally reflecting the full year of Simply
Blue.

Gross Margins. The consolidated gross margin percentage of sales was 31.7% in 2007, 32.3% in 2006 and
33.9% in 2005. The significantly lower gross margins associated with the moderate tailored product lines more
than offset the favorable impact from product mix changes to higher margin product lines, including the greater
percentage of women'’s products.

The adverse gross margin impact of the specific actions taken to address the moderate tailored clothing
product lines, including the effect of the incremental returns and allowances, inventory liquidations, inventory
markdown provisions, product related severance costs and costs of license termination and minimums, was
significant. In addition, the gross margin decline in 2007 compared to 2006 both in dollars and as a percentage to
sales was affected adversely by the drop in unit volume, wholesale pricing pressures, increased customer
allowances and off-price sales, principally impacting the moderate tailored product lines. The decline in the 2006
consolidated gross margin rate compared to 2005 was also attributable to the Men’s Apparel Group segment,
principally from the effect of increased customer allowances, off-price sales and inventory liquidations mainly
affecting the moderate priced product categories. Also, unit costs were higher reflecting unfavorable
manufacturing utilization overall from fewer units produced in owned tailored clothing manufacturing facilities
affecting all tailored clothing production, including the operational inefficiencies incurred as production levels in
the manufacturing operations to be closed were scaled down. Import duties were also higher. The consolidated
gross margin percentage decline from the factors described above was only partially mitigated by the favorable
impact in each year of product mix changes from the higher women’s consolidated revenue component.

Gross margins may not be comparable to those of other entities, since some entities include all of the costs
related to their distribution network in arriving at gross margin, whereas the Company included $21.3 million in
2007, $22.2 million in 2006 and $20.0 million in 2005 of costs related to warehousing, picking and packing of
finished products as a component in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $178.3
million in 2007, $174.9 million in 2006 and $159.1 million in 2005. As a percentage of sales, the expense ratio
was 31.7% in 2007 compared to 29.3% in 2006 and 26.6% in 2005. The current year included $13.2 million of
expenses associated with the Monarchy, Zooey and Sweater.com acquisitions ($1.6 million of comparable
expenses in 2006 related to Sweater.com) and approximately $1 million of severance and facility impairment
charges related to reductions in moderate tailored product lines discussed previously. The 2007 percentage
increase relative to sales also reflected, in part, changes in revenue mix towards more women's and men’s
sportswear products with higher gross margin and operating expense ratios to sales, as well as ongoing expenses
which did not decline proportionately with the lower sales. The $15.9 million increase in 2006 compared to 2005
reftected, among other things, incremental expenses of $11.3 million related to the Simply Blue and Sweater.com
businesses, approximately $3.7 million of incremental costs associated with the two new retail stores, the launch
of the “hickey” brand and additional Hart Schaffner Marx brand marketing costs, $1.2 million of administrative
severance and other costs associated with the reduction in moderate price tailored product lines and $1.4 million
of incremental stock compensation expense resulting from the adoption of FASB Statement No. 123(R) effective
for the Company’s fiscal year beginning on December 1, 2005, partially offset by an $.8 million recovery related
to an insurance claim (an additional $.6 million is reflected as a reduction of cost of sales) and a $1.5 million
lower provision for incentive compensation.

Advertising expenditures, including costs related to the Barrie Pace direct-to-consumer catalog operation,
were $20.8 million in 2007, $24.7 million in 2006 and $23.2 million in 2005, representing 3.7%, 4.1% and 3.9%
of consolidated sales, respectively.
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Operating Earnings. Operating earnings were $2.5 million in 2007, $20.9 million in 2006 and $45.5 million
in 2005, representing .4%, 3.5% and 7.6% of sales, respectively.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $9.2 million in 2007, $9.2 million in 2006 and $7.2 million in 2005,
representing 1.6% of sales in 2007, 1.5% in 2006 and 1.2% in 2005. While average borrowing levels in 2007
were about the same as 2006, comparable borrowing levels increased during the fourth quarter, attributable to the
Monarchy acquisition in August 2007 and increased share repurchases. Although year end 2006 debt levels were
$6.2 million lower than year end 2005, interest expense increased in 2006 compared to 2005 reflecting both
higher borrowing levels during the year, which included the $12.4 million paid in August 2006 for the
Sweater.com acquisition, $21 million paid in October 2005 for the Simply Blue acquisition, $7.9 million of
treasury share repurchases, as well as higher interest rates on Credit Facility borrowings. Interest expense
included non-cash amortization of financing fees and expenses of $.3 million in 2007, $.3 million in 2006 and $.4
million in 2005. The effective interest rate for all borrowings, including non-cash amortization costs, was 7.4% in
2007, 7.2% in 2006 and 6.0% in 2005. The Company’s weighted average short term borrowing rate for the year
was 7.0% in 2007, 6.7% in 2006 and 5.0% in 2005.

Pre-Tax Earnings (Loss) and Net Earnings (Loss). The pre-tax loss was $6.7 million in 2007 compared o
pre-tax earnings of $11.8 million in 2006 and $38.4 million in 2005. The Company's effective income tax rate
(benefit) was (38.1)% in 2007, 38.0% in 2006 and 38.6% in 2005. The net loss was $4.2 millien or $.12 per
diluted share in 2007 compared to net earnings of $7.3 million or $.20 per diluted share in 2006 and $23.6
million or $.63 per diluted share in 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash balances were $4.4 million at November 30, 2007 compared to $2.3 million at November 30, 2006.
Total debt at November 30, 2007 of $120.7 million increased $7.4 million compared to November 30, 2006,
attributable to $21.5 million of acquisition related payments, $8.2 million to share repurchases, higher capital
expenditures and to the lower earnings during the year; lower working capital substantially offset the increases.
The $5.9 million of borrowings classified as current at November 30, 2007 comprises approximately $.9 million
of required debt principal repayments during fiscal 2008 related to mortgages, and $5 million representing the
Company's estimate of additional debt reduction during 2008, excluding the impact of future acquisitions, if any.
Total cash provided by operating activities aggregated $38.1 million in 2007, $29.1 million in 2006 and $7.4
million in 2005. The $9.0 million of incremental cash provided by operating activities compared to 2006 was
attributable to lower working capital, primarily accounts receivable, in part offset by the lower earnings. The
increase in 2006 compared to 2005 was primarily attributable to lower working capital, principally related to the
favorable change in inventory and receivable levels, in part offset by the lower carnings. As discussed below, the
Company has significant federal tax operating loss carryforwards available to offset current taxable income
otherwise payable.

Net cash used in investing activities was $38.7 million in 2007, $19.7 million in 2006 and $36.6 million in
2005. The current year reflected $21.5 million related to the Monarchy and Zooey acquisitions and higher
contingent earnout payments applicable to acquisitions consummated in prior years; capital expenditures were
$17.3 million in 2007 and included $11.2 million for capitalized software acquisition and related costs applicable
to the in-process upgrading of certain of the Company’s computer software systems and $1.4 million related to
additional retail stores. Capital expenditure levels for 2008 are expected to be comparable to 2007, autributable to
software upgrades and additional retail stores. The decrease in cash used for investing activities in 2006
compared to 2005 was $16.9 million, as cash utilized for an acquisition and earnout payments in 2006 in the
aggregate were approximately $7 million lower than 2005, and capital expenditures were $£10.2 million lower.
The $36.6 million use in 2005 reflected the $21 million related to the Simply Blue acquisition, $1.2 million of
earnout payments related to acquisitions consummated prior to fiscal 2005, $7.3 million paid related to the
modernization of the Hickey-Freeman manufacturing and distribution facility (exclusive of $4.6 million of grant
monies received which are reflected in financing activities), and $3.0 million related to the opening of a Hickey-
Freeman store in New York City and a Bobby Jones store in Hawaii.
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Cash provided by financing activities was $2.8 million in 2007 compared to a use of $8.3 million in 2006
and $28.1 million provided in 2005. The 2007 amount reflected $7.4 million of increased borrowings, $1.1
million proceeds from exercise of stock options and $1.5 million from the sale of shares to employee benefit
plans, substantially offset by $8.2 million of treasury share repurchases. The $8.3 million cash used in financing
activities in 2006 reflected $7.9 million of treasury share repurchases and a $6.2 million repayment of
borrowings during 2006, in part offset by $2.2 million proceeds from stock option exercises and stock sales to
employee benefit plans and $1.7 million of grant proceeds received related to the facility modernization. The
$28.1 million cash provided by financing activities in 2005 reflected the additional borrowings to finance the
Simply Blue acquisition, $4.6 million of grant proceeds related to the Hickey-Freeman modemization and $4.9
million of equity sale transactions attributable to employee stock purchases, including stock option exercises.

Total debt, including borrowings classified as current, represented 35% of the Company’s total $349 million
capitalization at November 30, 2007, compared to 30% at November 30, 2006. The higher debt capitalization
ratio at year end 2007 reflected the small increase in total debt at November 30, 2007 compared to 2006
principally resulting from acquisitions and share repurchases as well as from the lower current year earnings.
Also, equity at November 30, 2007 reftected a $27.3 million non-cash reduction resulting from the adoption of
SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Retirement Plans”, effective
November 30, 2007, which had a 2.5% unfavorable impact on the capitalization ratio.

Effective August 30, 2002, the Company entered into its current $200 mitlion senior revolving credit facility
(“Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility was amended effective January 1, 2005, extending #s original term by
three years, to February 28, 2009; the Company retained its option to extend the term for an additional year, to
February 28, 2010. The Credit Facility provides for a $50 million letter of credit sub-facility. Interest rates under
the Credit Facility are based on a spread in excess of LIBOR or prime as the benchmark rate and on the level of
excess availability. The weighted average interest rate was 6.6% at November 30, 2007, based on LIBOR and
prime rate loans. The facility provides for an unused commitment fee of .375% per annum, based on the $200
million maximum, less the outstanding borrowings and letters of credit issued. Eligible receivables and
inventories provide the principal collateral for the borrowings, along with certain other tangible and intangible
assets of the Company. At November 30, 2007, the stated interest rate on all borrowings on a weighted average
basis was approximately 7.1% compared to 7.6% at November 30, 2006.

The Credit Facility includes various events of default and contains certain resirictions on the operation of
the business, including covenants pertaining to minimum net worth, operating leases, incurrence or existence of
additional indebtedness and licns, asset sales, and limitations on dividends, as well as other customary covenants,
representations and warranties, and events of default. During fiscal 2007 and as of November 30, 2007, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Credit Facility and its other borrowing agreements.
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 as described above had no effect on the calculation related to compliance with debt
covenants.

The Company has discussed several risk factors in Item 1-A Risk Factors, which could affect the
Company’s ability to remain in compliance with the financial covenants currently contained in its Credit Facility,
and to a lesser extent, in its other borrowing arrangements.

At November 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $16 million of letters of credit outstanding,
relating to either contractual commitments for the purchase of inventories from unrelated third parties or for such
matters as workers’ compensation requirements in lieu of cash deposits. Such letters of credit are issued pursuant
to the Credit Facility and are considered as usage for purposes of determining borrowing availability. Availability
levels on any date are impacted by the level of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility, the level of
eligible receivables and inventory and outstanding letters of credit. Availability levels generally decline towards
the end of the first and third quarters and increase during the second and fourth quarters. During fiscal 2007,
additional availability levels ranged from $32 million to $99 million. At November 30, 2007, additional
borrowing availability under the Credit Facility was approximately $70 million. The Company has also entered
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into surety bond arrangements aggregating approximately $12 million with unrelated parties, primarily for the
purposes of satisfying workers’ compensation deposit requirements of various states where the Company has
operations. At November 30, 2007, there was an aggregate of approximately $1.4 million of outstanding foreign
exchange contracts attributable to the sale of approximately 77.7 million Japanese yen primarily for anticipated
licensing revenues to be received in the next six months. The Company has no commitments or guarantees of
other lines of credit, repurchase obligations, etc., with respect to the obligations for any unconsolidated entity or
to any unrelated third party.

The Company’s various borrowing arrangements are described in the accompanying Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and are either fixed rate or variable rate borrowing arrangements. None of the
arrangements have rating agency “triggers” which would impact either the borrowing rate or borrowing
commitment.

The Company believes that its liquidity and expected cash flows are sufficient to finance its operations after
due consideration of its various borrowing arrangements, other contractual obligations and earnings prospects.
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contain information regarding payments required
under existing borrowing arrangements, lease obligation commitments and other contractual obligations. The
following presents a summary of the Company’s significant contractual obligations as of November 30, 2007 (in
millions):

Payments Due by Period
Less After
than 1 1-3 4-5 5
_ Contractual Obligations year years  years years Total
Long-TermDebt . ............oiiiviennanaannn $59 $8%0 373 $185 81207
Interest on Long-Term Debt® ... ... .. ... ...... 2.1 4.0 3.1 3.2 124
Capital Leases ............. .. .o iiiiiinunnn.. — — — — —
Operating Leases . .......c.oooiirieeenennnneann. 139 24.7 16.5 253 804
Unconditional Purchase Obligations .............. —_ — — — —
Purchase Commitments . ....................... 51.7 — — — 517
Other Long-Term Obligations ................... 17.5 16.5 5.8 1.4 41.2
Total ... . $91.1  $1342 $327 %484 $30064

(1) Interest on long-term debt above includes anticipated interest payments on the Company’s fixed rate debt,
including mortgages, industrial development bonds and other debt. Annualized interest expense on the
Company’s total variable rate debt would be approximately $6.1 million, assuming no change in the
borrowings under the Credit Facility of $92.1 million at November 30, 2007, and no change in the average
interest rate of 7.4% at November 30, 2007. A 1% change in the effective interest rate on the Company’s
total borrowings under its Credit Facility would impact annual interest expense by approximately $.9
million based on borrowings under the Credit Facility at November 30, 2007.

The $5.9 million of long term debt payments in 2008 reflected in the table comprises $.9 million of required
payments related to certain morigages and $5.0 million representing the Company’s estimate of additional debt
reduction during fiscal 2008 and assumes no new acquisitions during fiscal 2008.

Purchase commitments represent open purchase orders and letters of credit primarily related to the purchase
of raw materials and finished goods.

Other long term obligations comprise minimum obligations related to licensing and employment agreements,
With respect to licensing arrangements, the Company manufactures and markets certain of its product offerings
pursuant to exclusive license agreements with unaffiliated licensors for specified product lines. Royalty amounts are
generally based on a stipulated percentage of revenues, although certain of these agreements contain provisions for
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the payment of minimum annual royalty amounts. The licensing agreements are generally for a three to five year
term with additional renewal options, provided that minimum sales levels are achieved. Under terms of the current
agreements, the Company has minimum payments of approximately $13 million in 2008, $7 million in 2009, $3
miltion in 2010, $2 million in 2011 and $2 million in 2012. Additionally, there are certain license agreements that
have a perpetual term and annual minimum payments under these agreements are approximately $2 million.

The Company has employment agreements in place covering certain of its corporate and subsidiary officers
providing for the payment of base salaries and contingent additional compensation; severance amounts would be
payable in lieu of compensation in the event of involuntary termination by the Company. Aggregate annual base
salaries for these covered employees are approximately $4.6 million. In the event of a change in control and
termination of employment, as defined in the agreements, the Company would be required to make severance
payments in lieu of compensation under the employment agreements in addition to reimbursement payments to
eliminate the effect of any excess personal income taxes, if any, associated with these payments.

In fiscal 2005, the Company completed a significant modernization of its Hickey-Freeman manufacturing
and distribution facility in Rochester, New York, at a cost of $8.0 million. In connection with this project, the
Company entered into agreements with various local and state governmental agencies, in which the various
agencies reimbursed the Company $5.0 million of the modemization costs in the form of participating grants; an
additional $.7 million was received from non-governmental sources related to this modernization. Among other
things, the terms of the governmental grant monies require that a minimum employment level be maintained at
the facility through 2011. If the required minimum employment level is not maintained, a portion of the.
governmental grant monies could be converted into loans based on a sliding amortization schedule through 2011.
The facility’s employment levels have been substantially in excess of the minimum level for a number of years
and the Company expects that employment will exceed the minimum level through 2011,

As further described in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, each of the purchase agreements
related to the Misook, Simply Blue, Sweater.com, Zooey and Monarchy acquisitions provides for additional cash
purchase consideration if certain specified financial targets are achieved over a five to seven year period
following the acquisition date as summarized below (in millions):

Misook Simply Blue Sweater.com Zooey Monarchy
Minimum leve!l of operating
earnings, as defined ... ... $i20 $6.7 $2.0 $1.0 $3.0
Duration ................. Aug. 1,2004 Dec. 1,2005 Dec.1,2006 Dec. |,2006 Dec. 1, 2007
to to to to to

July 30, 2009 Nov. 30, 2010 Nov. 30,2011 Nov. 30,2011 Nov. 30, 2014
Additional annual
consideration at minimum
threshold level .......... $3.6 $1.3 $0.5 $0.15 $0.75
Contingent purchase
consideration payable as of
November 30, 2007 ... ... $4.7 $1.7 —_ — —

Under each agreement, the amount of consideration increases with increased levels of earnings and there is no
maximum amount of incremental purchase consideration.

Pension Plans. At November 30, 2007, the accumulated benefit obligation related to the Company’s pension
plans was approximately $258 million. The Company contributed $2.8 million to the plans in fiscal 2007, $9.1
million in 2006 and $7.6 miltion in 2005. Contributions to be made during fiscal 2008 are currently estimated to
be within a range of $3 million to $4 million. Funding requirements applicable to fiscal 2008 and subsequent
years will be determined, in part, after consideration of the fair market value of plan assets and the appropriate
pension obligation discount rate; however, it is not anticipated that funding requirements will be significantly
different than that experienced during 2007.
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Pension expense for the Company’s plans reflected in the accompanying financial statements, including
amounts applicable to a non-quatified supplemental pension plan, was $1.5 million in 2007, $3.6 million in 2006
and $3.6 million in 2005. The principal assumptions to be utilized for 2008 in the determination of annual
pension expense for financial reporting purposes are as follows:

DASCOUNT FAIE .. oo ittt ettt e e et e et et e e e e 5.8%
Return on plan assets ... .....vo ittt et e e 8.75%
Rate of compensation INCIease . ... ... .ottt iin it iaaenennnn, 4.00%

In determining the discount rate, the Company considered the average duration of its pension liabilities in
relation to the rate derived by reference to the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve. The average duration of the
Company’s pension plan obligations is calculated to be approximately twelve years, representing the midpoint of
which the sum of the present values of payments in the earlier vears of the benefit payment stream equals the
present value of payments in the later years. Determination of the discount rate also considered the yield at
November 30, 2007 on high quality fixed income investments, represented by the Moody’s Aa bond rating,
adjusting its estimated average duration for the Company’s average duration.

The asset return assumption takes into consideration historical and expected long term returns based upon
the weighted allocation of equities, fixed income and other asset components comprising the pension plan’s
assets at November 30, 2007. The rate of compensation increase considers both historical and anticipated rates of
future salary and other contingent compensation. The RP2000 Blended Healthy Employees and Retiree Tables
were used for mortality assumptions at November 30, 2007. The following illustrates the sensitivity to a
one-tenth percent (.10%) change in assumptions on annual pension expense based upon the most recent available
actuarial valuation during 2007 and asset levels at November 30, 2007 (in millions):

DisCOUNt FAtE . .. ... ... .. e $.006
Returnon plan assets .. ... i i e 251
Rate of compensationincrease . .......... ... ittt i .049

Effective November 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB “Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and
132R.” The statement requires an employer to record non-cash adjustments to recognize the funded status of each
of its defined pension and postretirement benefit plans as a net asset or liability in its statement of financial
position with the offsetting amount in accumulated other comprehensive income, At each fiscal year end changes
to the funded status will be recognized prospectively through charges to accumulated other comprehensive
income. At November 30, 2007, the Company recorded a net pension liability of $14.9 million.

Other Balance Sheet Components Impacting Liquidity. During 2007, the principal working capital
components (i.e., receivables and inventories net of accounts payable, accrued payrolls and accrued expenses)
decreased approximately $31 million compared to 2006. At November 30, 2007, net accounts receivable of $93.5
million decreased $20.2 million or 17.8% compared to November 30, 2006, primarily attributable to the lower
sales and a reduction in days sales from product mix changes. Inventories at November 30, 2007 were $142.4
million compared to $146.4 million at November 30, 2006; current year amounts included approximately $7
million related to the fiscal 2007 acquisitions of Zooey and Monarchy. The inventory decrease in 2007,
excluding the impact of acquisitions, was principally attributable to actions taken during 2007 to reduce
inventory levels principally in the moderate tailored clothing product category commensurate with reduced sales
levels, although the inventory declines were less than the corresponding revenue declines. LIFO inventory
reserves were $31.2 million and $29.8 million at November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Deferred income taxes at November 30, 2007 aggregated $60.0 million compared to $39.3 million at
November 30, 2006, The current year balances reflected approximately $17 million of additional deferred
income taxes related to the adoption of SFAS No. 158 related to pensions, as described previously. SFAS
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” requires, among other things, (1} the recognition of deferred 1ax assets,

23




including the future benefit associated with operating loss carryforwards, (2) a periodic evaluation of the
likelihood that the deferred tax assets are realizable and (3) the establishment of a valuation allowance to offset
deferred tax assets to the extent realization is not considered more likely than not. The Company has concluded
that it is more likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable eamings and available tax planning strategies to
fully utilize the operating loss carryforwards, the deferred tax assets will be fully realized and a tax valuation
allowance was not required. Approximately $38.4 million of the total deferred income taxes has been classified
as non-current at November 30, 2007, principally associated with the benefit recognized attributable to expected
future utilization of operating loss carryforwards and to the effect of adopting SFAS No. 158. At November 30,
2007, the Company had approximately $76 million of federal tax operating loss carryforwards available to offset
future taxable income. Approximately $54 million of the $76 million of available operating loss carryforwards
expire over the 2008-2009 periods, $2 million expires in 2010 and the remainder expire through 2022.

At November 30, 2007, net properties of $35.3 million increased by $1.3 million, as capital additions
exceeded depreciation expense. Capital additions related to net properties were $6.1 million in 2007 and $3.6
million in 2006; total capital expenditures for 2007 reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows of $17.3 million also included the capitalized software acquisition and related costs included in the
non-current Other Assets caption in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. Capital additions for 2008
are anticipated to be comparable to 2007 and reflect both additional retail stores and additional capitalization
costs to complete the Company’s major systems upgrade. Covenants under existing lending arrangements do not
restrict capital additions otherwise being considered by the Company. Depreciation expense related to properties
was $5.5 million in 2007, $6.3 million in 2006 and $5.1 million in 2005.

Shareholders’ equity of $228 million at November 30, 2007 represented $6.39 book value per share
compared to $7.13 book value per share at November 30, 2006. The $33 million equity decrease during 2007
reflected the net loss for the year, $8.2 million of treasury share repurchases, and the $27.3 million non-cash
reduction associated with adopting SFAS No. 158 related to pensions. These reductions were only partially offset
by proceeds from the exercise of stock options and ongoing equity sales to employee benefit plans. Dividends
have not been paid since 1991.

In October 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program to acquire up to
two million of the Company’s common shares. Repurchases under this authorization commenced in April 2006
and were completed in October 2007 at an average cost of $6.47 per share. In October 2007, the Company’s
Board authorized up to three million additional shares for repurchase from time to time based on prevailing
market conditions and other factors. As of November 30, 2007, 710,232 shares have been repurchased pursuant
to this second authorization at an average cost of $4.79 per share; 423,400 shares were repurchased subsequent to
November 30, 2007 through February 4, 2008 and additional shares may be repurchased as conditions warrant.
The current authorization expires on December 31, 2009,

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. The Company has not entered into off balance sheet financing
arrangements, other than operating leases, and has made no financial commitments or guarantees with any
unconsolidated subsidiaries or special purpose entities. All of the Company’s subsidiaries are wholly owned and
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. There have been no related party transactions
nor any other transactions which have not been conducted on an arm’s-length basis.
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. Critical Accounting Policies

' The Company’s significant accounting policies are contained in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and include amounts based on informed estimates and judgments of management with due

consideration given to materiality. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company
has discussed its critical accounting policies with the Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors.
The following represents those critical accounting policies where materially different amounts would be reported
under different conditions or using different assumptions.

Receivables, net of allowances—At November 30, 2007, accounts receivable, net of allowances, were
$93.5 million. Net receivables were determined based upon the Company’s evaluation of known
requirements, aging of receivables, historical experience and the current economic environment.
Amounts associated with potential return of products as well as customer chargebacks, net of expected
recoveries, are reflected in net accounts receivable. These types of allowances are reflected as a
reduction of sales upon the determination that such allowances can be reasonably estimated and are
probable, While the Company believes it has appropriately considered known or expected outcomes, its
customers’ ability to pay their obligations, including those to the Company, could be adversely affected
by declining sales of apparel at retail resulting from such factors as contraction in the economy or a
general decline in consumer spending. The potential additional allowance that would be required arising
from the above described possible adverse economic conditions cannot be quantified with precision. If
an additional allowance of 1% of gross receivables was necessary, an additional provision of
approximately $1.0 million would result.

Inventory valuation—At November 30, 2007, inventories were $142.4 million, and reflected the LIFO
valuation method for certain work-in-process and finished goods, as well as reductions from cost when
required in order to state inventories at the lower of cost or market. The lower of cost or market
valuation considers the estimated realizable value in the current economic environment associated with
disposing of surplus inventories. Additional downward valuation adjustments could be required should
the current economic climate significantly worsen, resulting in retailers being unwilling to accept
deliveries of advance orders placed (or the Company electing not to ship inventories to those retailers
where additional credit risk is not deemed appropriate), or if a significant contraction were to occur in
demand for the Company’s “in-stock” replenishment business for selected product categories. The
potential additional downward valuation adjustments could result from unanticipated additional excess
quantities of finished goods and raw materials, and/or from lower disposition values offered by the
parties who normally purchase surplus inventories. The potential additional reserve that would be
required arising from the above described possible adverse economic conditions cannot be quantified
with precision. If an additional allowance of 1% of gross inventories was necessary, an additional
provision of approximately $1.9 million would result.

Deferred tax assets—At November 30, 2007, the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet reflected $60
million of deferred tax assets, of which approximately $27 million related to expected utilization of
available tax operating loss carryforwards with finite utilization dates. The Company had approximately
$76 million of federal tax operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable income, of which
approximately $54 million expire in the 2008-2009 period and $2 million will expire in 2010. In general,
such carryforwards must be utilized within 15 years of incurring the net operating loss (within 20 years
with respect to the tax losses incurred in 2001 and 2002). At November 30, 2007, the Company concluded
that it is more likely than not that there would be sufficient taxable earnings and available tax planning
realization strategies to fully utilize the operating loss carryforwards and no tax valuation allowance was
required. A tax valuation reserve could be required, in whole or in part, in the future should the Company’s
actual earnings or prospective earnings decrease the likelihood that sufficient taxable earnings will be
generated to fully utilize the available carryforwards. Fully utilizing the $54 million available operating
loss carryforwards expiring by the end of fiscal 2009 will require average annual taxable earnings of
approximately $27 million over the 2008-2009 period, exclusive of available tax planning strategies.
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Goodwill and other intangible assets—Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over
the value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets are not being amortized, but instead are tested for impairment on an
annual basis or more frequently if impairment indications arise. Impairment tests involve the use of
estimates related to the fair market value of the business operations with which goodwill is associated,
taking into consideration both historical operating performance and anticipated financial position and
earnings in the future, discounted by the Company's weighted average cost of capital. Impairment tests
were performed by the Company in the second quarter of 2007 and this evaluation indicated that no
goodwill or intangible asset impairment adjustments were required. Aggregate goodwill increased $9.0
million to $37.0 millien in fiscal 2007 primarily attributable to both 2007 acquisitions and additional
contingent consideration paid or payable related to acquisitions consummated in prior years. As
described in the Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements, the Company allocated a portion of the
purchase price of acquisitions to the tradenames, which were deemed to have an indefinite life and are
not being amortized. With the assistance of independent third party appraisals, such tradenames were
recorded at estimated fair values utilizing an income approach employing relief from royalty and excess
earnings methodologies. The estimated remaining useful life was determined to be indefinite based on
the current expectation to continue to use and promote the tradenames indefinitely and the lack of any
legal or economic constraint associated with the tradenames. The value attributed to all tradenames
having an indefinite life aggregated $55.5 million at November 30, 2007.

Should the operations of the businesses with which goodwill or indefinite life intangible assets are
associated incur significant declines in profitability and cash flow in future years, some or all of the
recorded goodwill or intangibles could be subject to impairment. The values assigned to these
tradenames could be subject to possible impairment to the extent that the products sold under those
tradenames were to experience significant future declines in demand resulting from such factors as
consumer spending for apparel and retailers expectations of future apparel product sales.

Revenue recognition—Sales are recognized when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of
an agreement exists, delivery has occurred, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Revenues are net of anticipated returns, discounts and allowances. As noted
previously, amounts associated with the potential return of products and customer chargebacks (net of
expected recoveries) are reflected as a reduction of sales and accounis receivable upon the determination
that such allowances can be reasonably estimated and are probable. Shipping and handling revenues
charged to customers are included in revenues while the related actual costs are reflected in cost of
sales. Sales taxes, if any, are excluded from revenues. !

" Stock-Based Compensation. Stock compensation expense is calculated by estimating the fair value of

each option using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R). The
determination of fair value of stock option-based payment awards is made as of their respective dates of
grant using the option-pricing model and is affected by the Company’s stock price, as well as
assumptions regarding a number of other subjective variables. These variables include, but are not
limited to, the expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, the actual and projected
employee stock option exercise behavior, the expected risk-free interest rate and dividend vield, if any.
The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the value of traded options
that have no vesting or hedging restrictions and are fully transferable. Because the Company’s employee

- stock options have certain characteristics that are significantly different from traded options, the existing

valuation models may not provide an accurate measure of the fair value of its outstanding employee
stock options. Although the fair value of employee stock options is determined in accordance with
SFAS No. 123(R) using an option-pricing model, that value may not be indicative of the fair value
observed in a willing buyer or willing seller market transaction. Compensation expense is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the option after consideration of the estimated forfeiture
rate. Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is calculated by determining the fair value of
each such award as of their respective dates of award using the average of the high and low price of the
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Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange at such dates without any discount.
Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of the restricted stock award. The Company believes it is unlikely that materially different
estimates for the assumptions used in estimating the fair value of stock options grants and restricted
stock awards would be made based on the conditions suggested by actual historical experience and other
data available at the time estimates were made.

»  Self-insurance accruals—The Company retains certain of the financial risk for insuring workers’
compensation and certain non-union employee group health claims. Operations are charged with the
cost of claims reported and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. Insurance accruals include
estimated settlements for known claims, as well as accruals of estimates, some of which are actuarially
determined, of incurred but not reported claims. The determination of insurance claims and the
appropriateness of the related liability accruals are reviewed and updated at regular intervals, based
upon such factors as recent experience of ongoing claims, new claims initiated and claims settled during
the period. The amount of future payments to be made for workers compensation and employee group
health claims cannot be quantified with precision. If it were necessary to increase the respective self-
insurance accruals by 1%, an additional charge of approximately $.1 million would result.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective December 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 154, “Accounting for Changes and Error
Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” SFAS No. 154 changes the
requirements with regard to the accounting for and reporting a change in an accounting principle. The provisions
of SFAS No. 154 require, unless impracticable, retrospective application to prior periods presented in financial
statements for all voluntary changes in an accounting principle and changes required by the adoption of a new
accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the new pronouncement does not indicate a specific
transition method. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in depreciation, amortization or depletion method
for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, which requires
prospective application of the new method. Adoption of SFAS No. 154 had no effect on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
SFAS No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes that a company
should use a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold based on the technical merits of the tax position taken.
Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be measured in order to determine
the tax benefit 1o be recognized in the financial staterents. FIN 48 is effective for the Company’s 2008 fiscal
year beginning December 1, 2007. The Company expects the impact of adoption will result in an increase to
retained earnings of no more than $1 million. ’

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company’s 2009
fiscal year beginning December 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that adoption of
SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R” (SFAS No. 158).
The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 effective as of November 30, 2007, This statement requires employers to
recognize, on a prospective basis, the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other post-retirement
plans on their consolidated balance sheet and, subsequent to the effective adoption date, recognize as a
component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that
arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs. The adoption of
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SFAS No. 158 as of November 30, 2007 resulted in a decrease of total assets by $20.5 miliion, an increase of
total liabilities by $6.8 million and a reduction to total shareholders” equity by $27.3 million. The adoption of
SFAS No. 158 does not affect the Company’s results of operations or cash flows. Adoption of SFAS No. 158 has
no effect on the Company’s compliance with its debt covenants,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities; Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 gives entities the
option to measure eligible items at fair value at specified dates. Unrealized gains and losses on the eligible items
for which the fair value option has been elected should be reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the
Company’s 2008 fiscal year beginning December 1, 2007. The Company expects the adoption of SFAS No. 159
will not have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 160,
“Noncontroiling Interests in Consolidated Finance Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS
No. 141(R) will change how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact financial statements both on
the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS No. 160 will change the accounting and reporting for
minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of
equity. Early adoption is prohibited for both standards. The provisions of SFAS No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160
are effective for the Company’s 2010 fiscal year beginning December 1, 2009, are to be applied prospectively.

Outlook

The Company’s strategies to achieve sustainable revenue and earnings growth can be summarized as
follows:

*  Ongoing focus on growing luxury and upscale product lines through expansion of existing brands and
through acquisitions in men’s sportswear and womenswear that meet clearly defined financial and other
criteria.

* Implement multi-channel (wholesale, regular retail, outlet, web, catalog) and muiti-product growth
scenarios for the Hickey Freeman, Hart Schaffner Marx and Bobby Jones brands by expanding product
categories and by prudently increasing retail and outlet stores.

* Reduce dependence on moderate priced tailored clothing by aggressively eliminating unprofitable
licensed brands.

» Focus on geographical expansion in a manner that continues to position the Company as an upscale
global apparel company.

» - Continue to manage debt levels prudently, utilizing excess cash flow for acquisitions and, if market
conditions are favorable, share repurchases. Through February 4th, 423,400 shares have been acquired
during fiscal 2008.

Apparel retailers, in general, including many of the Company’s major customers, reported disappointing
holiday season comparable store sales. Accordingly, the Company continues to be cautious about the near term
retail environment and the residual effect of the actions taken in 2007 to more aggressively reduce those
unprofitable licensed moderate tailored lines that have been or will be terminated by the end of 2008.
Nonetheless, the Company expects that for the full year 2008 it is positioned to achieve a sales increase and
return to profitability.
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Item 7A—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company does not hold financial instruments for trading purposes or engage in currency speculation.
The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts from time to time to limit the currency risks,
primarily associated with purchase obligations denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign exchange contracts
are generally for amounts not to exceed forecasted purchase obligations or receipts and require the Company to
exchange U.S. dollars for foreign currencies at rates agreed to at the inception of the contracts. These contracts
are typically settled by actual delivery of goods or receipt of funds. The effects of movements in currency
exchange rates on these instruments, which have not been significant, are recognized in earnings in the period in
which the purchase obligations are satisfied or funds are received. At November 30, 2007, there was an aggregate
of approximately $1.4 million of outstanding foreign exchange contracts attributable to the sale of approximately
77.7 million Japanese yen primarily for anticipated licensing revenues to be received in the next six months.

The Company is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business, primarily as
a result of the variable rate borrowings under its Credit Facility. Rates may fluctuate over time based on
economic conditions, and the Company could be subject to increased interest payments if market interest rates
rise rapidly. A 1% change in the effective interest rate on the Company’s anticipated borrowings under its Credit
Facility would impact annual interest expense by approximately $.9 million based on borrowings under the
Credit Facility at November 30, 2007. In the last three years, the Company has not used derivative financial
instruments to manage interest rate risk.

The Company’s customers include major U.S. retailers, certain of which are under common ownership and
control. The ten largest customers represented approximately 50% of consolidated sales during fiscal 2007 with
the two largest customers representing approximately 21% and 13% of sales, respectively. A decision by the
controlling management of a group of stores or any significant customer, whether motivated by competitive
conditions, financial difficulties or otherwise, to decrease the amount of merchandise purchased from the
Company, or change their manner of doing business, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Hartmarx Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Hartmarx Corporation and its subsidiaries at November 30, 2007 and
November 30, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended November 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. Also in cur opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial
statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9-A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement
and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits
of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Qur audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which
it accounts for pension plans in 2007. In addition, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed the manner in which it accounis for share-based compensation in 2006.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for ¢xternal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generaily accepted accounting principles, receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has
excluded certain elements of the internal control over financial reporting of Monarchy from its assessment of
internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2007 because it was acquired by the Company in a
purchase business combination during 2007. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain elements of Monarchy’s
internal control over financial reporting and related processes were integrated into the Company’s existing
systems and internal control over financial reporting. Those controls that were not integrated have been excluded
from management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of November
30, 2007, We have also excluded these elements of the internal control over financial reporting of Monarchy
from our audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. The excluded elements represent
controls over accounts that are less than 2% of consolidated total assets and consolidated net sales as of and for
the vear ended November 30, 2007.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chicago, lllinois
February 8, 2008
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HARTMARX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(004’s Omitted, except per share data)

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,

2007 2006 2005
=LA 1= R e $562,416 $597,890 $598,167
Licensing and otherincome . ........... ..o it iinenan. 2,454 2,573 2,118
564,870 600,463 600,285
Costofgoodssold ... . i 384,110 404,618 395,680
Selling, general and administrative eXpenses .. ............oovvvinnnnn.. 178,271 174,924 159,063
562,381 579,542 554,743
Operating €amings . ... ....... ..t iuuuinannniir i anannanaas 2,489 20,921 45,542
INIETESE EXPEIISE . oottt v e e e et e eie s s v e e e a e 9,238 9,169 7,182
Earnings (loss) before taxes . ...... ... i 6,749) 11,752 38,360
Tax provision (benefity .. ... . 2,571) 4,466 14,805
Net earnings (J0SS) ... ...t e $ (4,178 $ 7,286 $ 23,555

Earnings (loss) per share: :

BaSiC « .ottt e s $ (1) 38 20 % .65
DIlted ..o e e e $ (1) s 20 % .63

(See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)
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HARTMARX CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(000’s Omitted)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cashand cash equivalents ... ... .. ... i i i it e
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,212 in 2007 and $4,792 in

2000 . e e e e e e e
RS 110 3 = O,
Prepaid eXPENSeS .. et
Defermed InCOmE 1aKES .. ottt et ittt ettt et e e

Total CUMTENE ASSEES . L 4 o v\ vt vt vt it e e e e et er it v s aanrnaarenseeaarronsans
GOODWILL ... it e ettt e et i i
INTANGIBLE ASSET S ... it ittt it e et iaaaa s
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES ... ittt e tiia e e iaa e
OTHER AS S TS L o i i e e e e et e e
PREPAID / INTANGIBLE PENSION ASSET ... ... it i iiiiee e e

PROPERTIES
5 4
Buildings and building improvements .. .. ... .. .. o e
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment .............. ... i
Leasehold improvements .. ... ... ... ..t it

Accumulated depreciation and amortizalion . ... .. ... e
Nt PrOPEITIES . . . ittt it e e e
MO AL ASSE TS .. it e e e e e et e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-termdebt . ....... ... . e
Accounts payable .. ... L
Accrued payrolls . e
Other accrued EXPENSES . ... .. vttt ettt ae ittt e ta ettt e i s r e

Total current liabilities . .. ... ... ... e e
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES . ... ... i ittt e iae e e anes
LONG-TERM DEBT . . . et i
ACCRUED PENSION LIABILITY ... . it et et eiira e eeiaaanas

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred shares, $1 par value; 2,500,000 shares authorized and unissued ..................
Common shares, $2.50 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized; 38,423,931 shares issued at
November 30, 2007, 37,748,354 shares issued at November

Capital SUIPIUS .. ...t i e e e
Rt amEd AT S « . ottt e e e e e e e
Common shares in treasury, at cost, 2,716,780 at November 30, 2007 and 1,167,800 at
November 30, 2000. . ... . i e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10S8) . .. ... ... .. i i

Total shareholders’ equity ....... ... ... it i
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY ...................ccooninn,

(See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)
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November 30,

2007 2006
$ 4430 2,304
93,465 113,688
142,399 146,440
7,664 8,708
21,590 21,990
269,548 293,130
36,977 27,957
63,127 55,501
38,388 17,322
16,539 8,660
— 36,550
1,859 1,883
43,008 42,676
76,265 103,667
26,016 28,183
147,148 176,409

(111,875) (142,445)

35,273 33,964

$ 459,852 § 473,084

£ 5850 § 25040

41,945 36,517
12,664 13,840
22,342 19,748
32.801 95,145
19,237 20,659
114,895 88,315
14,882 8,309
96,060 94,371
90,882 87,322
80,238 84416
(16,382) (7.876)
(22,761) 2,423
228,037 260,656

$ 459852 § 473,084




HARTMARX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(000’s Omitted)
Fiscal Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash flows from operating activities:
Netearnings (1085) ... vt it e e et s $ (4,178) $ 7,286 §$ 23,555
Reconciling items to adjust net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets .. ................. 5,541 6,301 5111
Amortization of intangible assets and other long-lived assets .. .. ... 4124 3,627 3,241
Taxes and deferred taxes onearnings ......................... (3,519) 3,292 11,179
Stock compensation eXpense ... .......... .. . i iaaee o, 2,235 2,311 425
Tax effect of option exercises and vesting of restricted stock
AWATAS . .. L e — — 1,455
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
Accountsreceivable .......... ... ... 22,612 10,819 (1,867)
InVentoTiEs ... ..o i e 7,394 9419 (22,179)
Prepaidexpenses ........ ... . ... ... ... i, 1,558 4,259 (5,410)
Other assets . ...ttt i 4,302 (2,322) 263
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and non-current
liabilities . ...... ..o (1,955) (15,897) (8,349)
Net cash provided by operating activities .............................. 38,114 29,095 7,424
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures . .. ... .. .. . (17,286) (3,622) (13,815)
Payments made re: acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $6 in 2006 and
125 in 2005 .. e (2L,461) (16,102} (23,078)
Cash proceeds from sale of assets held forsale . . .................... — — 300
Net cash used in investing activities . .......... . ... .. .. ccviiririrnnn. (38,747 (19,724) (36,593)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings (payments) under Credit Facility, net . .. ................. 12,430 (54200 18,159
Paymentofotherdebt ... ... ... ... ... ... . . ... . e (5,040) (738) (678)
Grant proceeds related to facility modernization .. ................... — 1,702 4,607
Financing fees and expenses ........... ... ... i, — — (400)
Change in checks drawn in excess of bank balances .................. 557 1,431 1,525
Proceeds from exercise of stockoptions ........................... 1,076 707 3,316
Purchase of treasury shares .......... ... ... . ... . i, . {8,202) (7.876) —
Tax effect of option exercises ... ... . . . coveiiiiriiinnnnn.. 478 363 _—
Proceeds from sale of shares to employee benefit plans and other equity
EraNSACHIONS « . . .. ittt ettt e e e 1,460 1,507 1,541
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ...................... 2,759 (8,324 28,070
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivatents ..................... 2,126 1,047 (1,099)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . ........................ 2,304 1,257 2,356
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year . ....... ... . 0oiviiiiinnnaan. $ 4430 % 2304 § 1,257
Supplemental cash flow information
Net cash paid during the year for:
Interest ..o e $ 9166 $ 8303 3 6,823
INCOME taXES . . oo v it e i e e 552 818 2,160

{See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements)
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HARTMARX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—Summary of Accounting Policies

Principal Business Activity—Hartmarx Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the Company™) operate
exclusively in the apparel business. The Company is responsible for the design, manufacture and sourcing of s
appare! brands, both owned and under license, across a wide variety of fashion directions, price points and
distribution channels. Its men’s tailored clothing and slacks are manufactured in Company operated facilities
located in the United States and Canada, as well as at numerous independent contractors located principally
outside of the United States. Some of its dress furnishings are produced at a Company-operated facility in
Canada. The Company utilizes domestic and foreign contract manufacturers to produce its remaining products,
principally men’s sportswear, as well as women's career apparel, designer knitwear and sportswear, including
denim products, in accordance with Company specifications and production schedules.

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and all subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates—The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and, accordingly, include amounts based on informed
estimates and judgments of management with consideration given to materiality. Significant estimates which are
incorporated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements include allowances pertaining to receivables,
net realizable value of inventories, realization of deferred tax assets, impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets, the determination of discount rates and other assumptions associated with various employee benefit
expenses and obligations, and share based compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition / Accounts Receivable—Sales are recognized when the following criteria are met:
persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has occurred, the price is fixed and determinable and
collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenues are net of anticipated returns, discounts and allowances. Shipping
and handling revenues charged to customers are included in revenues. Sales taxes, if any, are excluded from
revenues. Income from licensing arrangements, which is reflected in the Licensing and Other Income caption in
the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Earnings, is recorded when received as minimum royalties are
normally received in the period to which they relate and amounts due for excess royalties cannot be reasonably
estimated prior to the receipt of the reports from the licensees as provided for under the various licensing
agreements. Co-op advertising is included as a component of Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

Trade accounis receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount, do not bear interest and are net of
anticipated returns, allowances and discounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing accounts receivable. The allowance is determined
based on historical write-off experience and the current retailer environment. The aliowance for doubtful
accounts is reviewed regularly. Balances over 90 days past due and over a specified amount are reviewed
individually for collectibility; other balances are considered on a pooled basis considering the agings of balances.
Account balances are charged off against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be recovered.
There is no off-balance sheet credit exposure related to the Company’s customers.

Cost of Goods Sold—Cost of goods sold includes the following components: product cost, including
inbound freight, duties, internal inspection costs, internal transfer costs, production labor and other
manufacturing overhead costs. The warehousing, picking and packing of finished products are included as a
component of Selling, General and Administrative Expenses and totaled $21.3 million in 2007, $22.2 million in
2006 and $20.0 million in 2005.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses—Selling, general and administrative expenses include costs
incurred subsequent to the receipt of finished goods at the Company’s distribution facilities, such as the cost of
inspection, stocking, warehousing, picking and packing. Selling, general and administrative expenses also
include product design costs, selling costs, advertising, promotion and marketing expenses, professional fees,
other general and administrative expenses and other administrative overhead costs,

Advertising expenditures, including co-op advertising, relating to the manufacturing and marketing
businesses, are expensed in the period the adventising initially takes place. Direct response advertising costs,
consisting primarily of catalog preparation, printing and postage expenditures, are amortized over the period
during which the benefits are expected. Advertising costs of $20.8 million in 2007, $24.7 million in 2006 and
$23.2 million in 2005 are included in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Earnings. Prepaid expenses at November 30, 2007 include deferred advertising costs
of $1.7 million ($1.6 million at November 30, 2006}, which will be reflected as an expense during the quarterly
pericd benefitted. Included in these amounts are $1.1 million at November 30, 2007 and $1.1 million at
November 30, 2006 relating to direct response advertising associated with the Women's Apparel Group catalog
operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Company considers as cash equivalents all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less. Checks drawn in excess of bank balances are included as a
compenent of accounts payable,

Inventories—Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, At November 30, 2007 and 2006,
approximately 43% and 45%, respectively, of the Company’s total inventories are valued using the last-in,
first-out (LIFO) method representing certain tailored clothing work in process and finished goods in the Men’s
Apparel Group. The first-in, first-out {FIFO) method is used for substantially all raw materials and the remaining
inventories. For inventory carried at the lower of FIFO cost or market, adjustments are charged to operations in
the period in which the facts giving rise to the adjustments become known, The Company periodically evaluates
the composition of its inventories for identification of obsolete or slow moving inventory. Quantities not
expected to be sold in the normal course of business are written down to expected net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Additions,
major renewals and betterments are capitalized; maintenance and repairs which do not extend asset lives are
charged against earnings. Profit or loss on disposition of properties is reflected in earnings, and the related asset
costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from the tespective accounts. Depreciation is generally
computed on the straight-line method based on useful lives of 20 to 45 years for buildings, 5 to 20 years for
building improvements and 3 to 15 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the terms of the respective leases or useful lives, whichever is shorter. During fiscal 2007 and
2006, impairment charges of $.3 million and $.6 million, respectively, were recorded related to Company
facilities no longer in use. During fiscal 2005, no impairments of property, plant and equipment were recorded,
as there were no events or changes in circumstances which indicated that the carrying amount was not
recoverabie.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets—Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid over the value
of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the respective reporting uvnit at the time of
acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise. Impairment tests, which involve the use of estimates related to the fair market values
of the reporting units with which goodwill is associated, are performed annually during the second quarter.
Impairment losses, if any, resulting from impairment tests would be reflected in operating income in the
Consolidated Statement of Eamings. During fiscal 2007, no impairment adjustment relating to goodwill was
determined to be required. Aggregate goodwill was $37.0 million and $28.0 million at November 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively, with the increase primarily attributable to acquisitions consummated during 2007, along with
current year earnouts payable as of November 30, 2007 related to acquisitions made in prior years.
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The estimated lives and the method of amortization for the components of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible Asset Life Amortization Method

Tradenames Indefinite Not amortized

Customer relationships 10 years Estimated weighted cash flows
over life

Supply agreement § years Straight line over life

Design services agreement 5 years Estimated weighted cash flows
over life

Covenant not lo compete 4 years to 10 years Estimated weighted cash flows
over life

License agreement 5 years Estimated weighted cash flows
over life

License rights Initial term of license agreement, Straight line over life

usually 5 years or less

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, aggregated $63.1 million and $55.5 million at
November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Accumulated amortization was $10.4 million and $7.3 million at
November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Amortization expense of intangible assets was $3.1 million in 2007,
$2.9 million in 2006 and $2.2 million in 2005,

The amounts allocated 1o Tradenames at November 30, 2007 and 2006 were $55.5 million and $46.8
million, respectively; the $8.8 million recorded in fiscal 2007 related to the Zooey and Monarchy acquisitions
and the remaining $46.7 million was attributable to the Sweater.com acquisition in August 2006, the Simply Blue
acquisition in Qctober 2005 and the Misook acquisition in July 2004. Impairment tests are performed on an
annual basis at the same time as the impairment tests for Goodwill are performed, or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, no impairment adjustment relating to intangible assets
was determined to be required. The intangibles related to customer relationships, covenant not to compete,
supply agreement, design services agreement and license agreement are also attributable to the Zooey,
Monarchy, Sweater.com, Simply Blue and Misook acquisitions and aggregated $7.6 million at November 30,
2007 and $8.7 million at November 30, 2006.

Amortization of intangible assets with finite lives is recognized over their estimated useful lives using a
method of amortization that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible assets are
consumed or otherwise realized, which is up to 10 years for some intangible assets. Intangible assets with finite
lives are reviewed for impairment periodically if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, If expected future undiscounted cash flows from operations are less than their
carrying amounts, an asset is determined to be impaired and a loss would be recorded for the amount by which
the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair value. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, no impairment adjustments
relating to intangible assets with finite lives was determined to be required.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Non-Current Assets, net—Amounts included in prepaid expenses primarily
consist of prepaid operating expenses including advertising, rent, taxes and insurance. Other non-current assets
primarily consist of deferred financing costs, cash surrender value of life insurance, software acquisition and
related costs. Capitalized software acquisition costs, net of amortization were $11.8 million and $3.4 million at
November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Capitalized software acquisition and related costs are amortized on a
straight line basis over the period benefitted, generally three to seven years, commencing in the period the
software is placed in service.

Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization, related to the Company’s borrowing agreements
in effect at November 30, 2007 and 2006, aggregated $.9 million and $1.3 million, respectively. These costs are
amortized over the term of the financing agreement, Accumulated amortization was $3.8 million and $3.4 million
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at November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Amortization expense of deferred financing costs related to the
Company’s current borrowing arrangements was $.4 mitlion in 2007, $.4 million in 2006 and 3.5 million in 2005.

The approximate amortization of deferred financing fees over the next five years is as follows: $.4 million in
2008, $.2 million in 2009, $.1 million in 2010 and 2011, and $.05 million in 2012.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of—If facts and circumstances
indicate that the cost of fixed assets or other assets, including amortizable intangible assets, may be impaired, an
evaluation of recoverability would be performed by comparing the estimated future undiscounted pre-tax cash
flows associated with the asset to the asset’s carrying value to determine if a write-down to market value would
be required. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
estimated costs to sell.

Accounts Payable, Accrued Payrolls and Accrued Expenses—Liabilities for accounts payable, accrued
payrolls and accrued expenses are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration expected to be paid
in the future for goods and services received.

The Company may be subject to certain claims and assessments related to legal, contractual or tax matters in
the ordinary course of business, For those matters where it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the loss,
or range of loss, can be reasonably estimated, an appropriate provision for loss has been recorded in the
consolidated financial statements. In other instances, provisions have not been recorded because of the
uncertainties related to both the probable outcome and the amount or range of loss.

The Company retains certain financial risks for insuring a portion of its workers’ compensation and certain
non-union employee group health claims. Operations are charged with the cost of claims reported and an
estimate of claims incurred but not reported. Insurance accruals include estimated settlements for known claims,
as well as accruals of estimates, some of which are actuarially determined, of incurred but not reported claims.
The determination of insurance claims and the appropriateness of the related accruals are reviewed and updated
at regular intervals. Stop loss coverage for an individual workers’ compensation claim takes effect upon the
claim exceeding $250,000. The individual lifetime limit for claims under the group medical plan is $1 million.
These limits are taken into consideration in determining the respective accruals for group medical insurance and
workers’ compensation. :

Income Taxes—Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to reverse. The Company recognizes net deferred tax assets, whose realization is
dependent on taxable eamnings in future years, after concluding that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax
assel would be realized in the future. No valuation allowances have been recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company has undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries of approximately $9.4 million which have
not been provided for in its income tax provision as the earnings are considered permanently invested outside of
the United States. If the earnings are repatriated to the United Sates, the earnings will be subject to United States
taxation at that time. The amount of deferred tax liability that would be recognized associated with the
undistributed earnings was approximately $.2 million at November 30, 2007, representing the approximate
excess of the United States tax liability over the creditable foreign taxes paid that would result from a fuli
remittance of undistributed earnings.

The Company receives a United States income tax benefit upon the exercise of the majority of employee
stock options. The benefit is equal to the difference between the fair market value of the stock at the time of the
exercise and the option price, times the approximate tax rate. The benefit associated with the exercise of
employee stock options has been reflected as a reduction to income taxes payable and a credit to capital surplus
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Retirement Plans—The Company and its subsidiaries maintain benefit plans covering substantially all
employees other than those covered by multi-employer plans. Pension expense for the Company’s defined
benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method. Retirement expense under each multi-
employer plan is based upon a percentage of the employer’s union payrol] established by bargaining agreements;
such expenses are funded as accrued.

Other Comprehensive [ncome—Other comprehensive income includes all changes in equity from
non-owner sources, adjustments to recognize the funded status of pension plans, foreign currency translation
adjustments and adjustments to the fair value of foreign exchange contracts qualifying for hedge accounting.

Foreign Currency Translation—Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are principally
located in Canada. They are translated at current exchange rates. Income and expense items are translated at
average rates during the year. Translation gains and losses are reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) and included as a component of Shareholders’ Equity.

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts—The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk for the purchase
of inventories or receipt of royalties when denominated in foreign currencies. The Company does not hold
financial instruments for trading purposes or engage in currency speculation. The Company enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts from time to time in the ordinary course of business to limit the currency risks
associated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations related to purchases of Euro denominated inventory or receipt
of royalties in foreign currencies. Foreign exchange contracts are generally for amounts not to exceed forecasted
purchase obligations or receipts and require the Company to exchange U.S. dollars for foreign currencies at rates
agreed to at the inception of the contracts. These contracts are typically settled by actual delivery of goods or
receipt of funds. The effects of movements in currency exchange rates on these instruments, which have not been
significant, are recognized in earnings in the period in which the purchase obligations are satisfied or funds are
received. These forward foreign exchange contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges for accounting
purposes; accordingly, the changes in fair value of the derivative instruments are included in other
comprehensive income. Fair values for such contracts are generally obtained from counter parties. At
November 30, 2007, the Company had the following foreign exchange contracts outstanding (in millions}:

Accounts Receivable Collections in Canadian Dollars ......... s )
Licensing revenues in YEI ... ... i 71.7
Gross U.S. Dollar equivalents . ...........ooieeoiiniaiiiiiiiaie e, $ 14

At November 30, 2006, the Company did not have any outstanding foreign exchange contracts.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and long-term debt. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate fair value due to their short-term nature. The carrying amount of debt and credit facilities
approximate fair value due to their stated interest rate approximating a market rate. These estimated fair value
amounts have been determined using available market information or other appropriate valuation methodologies.

The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents—The amounts reported approximate market value.

Long-term debt—The market value of debt at November 30, 2007, of which a major portion is variable rate
debt, approximates its carrying value of $120.7 million, based on the terms, interest rates and maturities currently
available for similar debt instruments.

Foreign exchange contracts—The amounts reported are estimated using quoted market prices for similar
instruments, when applicable.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk and Financial Instruments—Financial instruments which subject the
Company to credit risk are primarily trade accounts receivable. The Company sells its products to department
stores, specialty retail stores, value-oriented retailers, catalogs and through electronic commerce channels. The
Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally does not
require collateral. While concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable are somewhat
mitigated due to the large number and diversity of customers comprising the Company’s customer base, the
Company’s ten largest customers represented approximately 50%, 54% and 55% of consolidated sales in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Management believes that the risk associated with trade accounts receivable is
adequately provided for in the altowance for doubtful accounts.

In fiscal 2007, sales to two customers represented approximately 21% and 13% of sales. In fiscai 2006, sales
to two customers represented approximately 21% and 12% of sales. Accounts receivable from the largest
customer represented approximately 24% of the Company’s gross accounts receivable at November 30, 2007 and
21% of gross accounts receivable at November 30, 2006.

The Company is subject to the risk of fluctuating interest rates in the normal course of business, primarily as
a result of borrowings under its Credit Facility, which bear interest at variable rates. The variable rates may
fluctuate over time based on economic conditions, and the Company could be subject to increased interest
payments if market interest rates rise. In the last three years, the Company has not used derivative financial
instruments to manage interest rate risk.

Leases—In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into lease agreements for manufacturing,
warehouse/distribution, office and retail space as well as leases for certain plant and equipment. The leases have
varying terms and expirations and frequently have provisions to extend or renew the lease agreement, among
other terms and conditions, as negotiated. At inception, the lease is assessed to determine whether the lease
qualifies as a capital or operating lease. Assets leased under operating leases and the related lease obligations are
not recognized as assets and liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet.

When a non-cancelable operating lease includes any fixed escalation clauses and lease incentives for rent
holidays or build-out contributions, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the initial term of the
lease from the date of possession of the space. The excess between the average rental amount charged to expense
and amounts payable under the [ease is recorded either in accrued expenses or int non-current liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Contingent rents, including those based on a percentage of retail
sales over stated levels, and rental payment increases based on a contingent future event are recognized as the
expense is incurred.

Stock Based Compensation—Effective December 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS
No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. §23R"), which requires the Company to recognize
expense for the grant date fair value of its employee stock option awards. The Company recognizes the expense
of all share-based awards on a straighi-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period (generally the
vesting period of the award).

Prior to December 1, 2003, the Company accounted for its stock option plans under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related Interpretations (“APB 25™), as permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” The Company elected to adopt the modified-prospective transition method as provided by
SFAS No. 123(R). Under that transition method, share-based compensation cost recognized in fiscal 2006
includes: (a) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of
December 1, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of
SFAS No. 123, and (b) compensation expense for all share-based awards granted subsequent to December 1,
2005, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R).
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Financial statement amounts for the prior periods presented have not been restated to reflect the fair value
method of expensing share based compensation. The Company uses the short cut method to calculate the pool of
windfall tax benefits.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on December 1, 2005, the Company’s earnings before taxes and
net earnings for the year ended November 30, 2006 were lower by $1.4 miltion pre-tax and $.9 million after tax.
In 2007, the Company’s eamings before taxes and net earnings for the year ended November 30, 2007 were
lower by $1.4 million pre-tax and $.9 million after-tax. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company
presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in the
Statement of Cash Flows. Effective December 1, 2005 and in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R}, the Company
changed its cash flow presentation so that the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits arising from tax
deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) are now
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company estimates the fair value of its option awards using the Black-Scholes option valuation model
that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The stock volatility for each grant is measured using the
weighted average of historical daily price changes of the Company’s common stock over the most recent period
equal to the expected life of the grant. The expected term of options granted is derived from historical data to
estimate option exercises and employee terminations, and represents the period of time that options granted are
expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The weighted average fair value of options granted in
2007 and 2006 was calculated to be $2.46 and $2.97 per share using the following assumptions for the years
ended November 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively:

2007 2006
Risk-free interest rate .. .. .. ooiuun i it ir e ia s 44% 4.3%
Expected life (inyears) . ... 36 3.6
Expected volatility .............. it 44% 44%
Expected dividend yield ....... ... 0% 0%

The Company did not recognize compensation expense for employee stock based awards for the year ended
November 30, 2005 when the exercise price of the awards equaled the market price of the underlying stock on
the date of grant. The Company did recognize compensation expense under APB 25 relating to certain restricted
stock awards.
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The following table illustrates the effects on net earnings and earnings per share if the Company had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to employee stock based awards under the Company’s
stock option plans during the year ended November 30, 2005. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the
value of the options is amortized to expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period and forfeitures are
recognized as they occur (amounts in millions, except per share amounts):

Year Ended
November 30,
2005
Net earnings, asreported . ... ... ... ... .ttt $23.6
Add: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under intrinsic
value based method for all awards, net of related tax effect. ............. 2
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effect .......... (1.2)
Pro formanet earnings . ........ ... e, $22.6
Earnings per share:
Basic—asreported ..... ... .. ... ... ... i $ 65
proforma ... e $ .62
Diluted—asrteported ......... ...t e $ .63
proforma ... ... .. $ .61

The weighted average fair value of options granted was estimated to be $3.46 in 2005, The fair value of
each option granted in 2005 is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The
following weighted average assumptions were used for grants in 2005:

25
Risk-free interest FALE .. . . o .ottt ettt ettt et s 3.6%
Expected life (in years) ... ... it i e e 4

Expected volatility . ... .. ... .. e 50%
Expected dividend yield ........ ... .. ... . 0%

Per Share Information—The calculation of basic earnings per share in each year is based on the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share reflects the
potential dilution that would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or
converted into common stock using the treasury stock method. The number of shares used in computing basic
and diluted earnings per share were as follows (000’s omitted):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005
Basic ... e e e 35974 36,427 36,433
Dilutive effect of:
Stock optionsandawards .. .................. ... — 562 730
Restricted stockawards ............. ... .. .o ... — 92 49
Diluted .. ... i e 35974 37,081 37212




For the years ended November 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the following number of options and restricted
stock awards were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, as the average price of the
Company’s common stock was below the grant or award price for the respective year or where inclusion would
otherwise be anti-dilutive (000’s omitted):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005

Ant-dilutive:
Stock OPLONS . . oo v vt e 1,885 837 2
Restricted stockawards . ... .o v in it 622 — 192

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted SFAS No. 154, “Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” as of December 1, 2006. SFAS No. 154 changes the
requirements with regard to the accounting for and reporting a change in an accounting principle. The provisions
of SFAS No. 154 require, unless impracticable, retrospective application to prior periods presented in financial
statements for all voluntary changes in an accounting principle and changes required by the adoption of a new
accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the new pronouncement does not indicate a specific
transition method. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in depreciation, amortization or depletion method
for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, which requires
prospective application of the new method. Adoption of SFAS No. 154 had no effect on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
SFAS No. 109, FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes that a company
should use a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold based on the technical merits of the tax position taken.
Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be measured in order to determine
the tax benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 is effective for the Company’s 2008 fiscal
year beginning December 1, 2007. The Company expects the impact of adoption will result in an increase to
retained earnings of no more than $1 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company’s
2009 fiscal year beginning December 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132R” (SFAS No. 158).
The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 effective as of November 30, 2007. This statement requires employers to
recognize, on a prospective basis, the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other postretirement
plans on their consolidated balance sheet and recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of
tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as
components of net periodic benefit costs. SFAS No. 158 also requires certain additional disclosures in the notes
to financial statements. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 as of November 30, 2007 resulted in a decrease of total
assets by $20.5 million, an increase of total liabilities by $6.8 million and a reduction to total Shareholders’
Equity by $27.3 million. The adoption of SFAS 158 does not affect the Company’s results of operations.
Adoption of SFAS No. 158 has no effect on the Company’s compliance with its debt covenants.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities; Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 gives entities the
option to measure eligible items at fair value at specified dates. Unrealized gains and losses on the eligible itemns
for which the fair value option has been elected should be reported in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for the
Company’s 2008 fiscal year beginning December 1, 2007. The Company expects the adoption of SFAS No. 159
will not have a material impact on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB jssued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations”, and FASB No. 160,
“Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Finance Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS
No. 141(R) will change how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact financial statements both on
the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS 160 will change the accounting and reporting for minority
interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. Early
adoption is prohibited for both standards. The provisions of SFAS No, 141(R) and SFAS No. 160, effective for
the Company’s 2010 fiscal year beginning December 1, 2009, are to be applied prospectively.

NOTE 2—Acquisitions
The following summarizes acquisition activities during the three year period ended November 30, 2007:

On August 14, 2007, the Company acquired certain assets and operations of Monarchy, LLC, a designer and
marketer of premium casual sportswear to leading specialty stores nationwide principally under the Monarchy
and Manchester Escapes brands. The purchase price for Monarchy as of the acquisition date was $12 million plus
assurnption of certain liabilities. Additional cash purchase consideration is due if Monarchy achieves certain
specified financial performance targets over a seven-year period commencing December 1, 2007, This additional
contingent cash purchase consideration is calculated based on a formula applied to operating results. A minimum
level of performance, as defined in the purchase agreement, must be achieved during any of the annual perieds in
order for the additional cash consideration to be paid. At the minimum level of performance (annualized
operating earnings, as defined in the purchase agreement, of at least $3.0 million), additional annual
consideration of $.75 million would be paid over the seven-year period commencing December 1, 2007. The
amount of consideration increases with increased level of earnings and there is no maximum amount of
incremental purchase price.

Effective December 11, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets and operations related to the Zooey
brand, marketed principally to upscale women’s specialty stores. The purchase price for Zooey as of the
acquisition date was $3.0 million. Additional cash purchase consideration is due if Zooey achieves certain
specified financial performance targets over a five-year period commencing December 1, 2006. This additional
contingent cash purchase consideration is calculated based on a formula applied to operating results. A minimum
level of performance, as defined in the purchase agreement, must be achieved during any of the annual periods in
order for the additional consideration to be paid. At the minimum level of performance (annualized operating
earnings, as defined in the purchase agreement, of at least $1.0 million), additional annual consideration of $.15
million would be paid over the five-year period commencing December 1, 2006. The amount of consideration
increases with increased levels of earnings and there is no maximum amount of incremental purchase price. No
additional consideration was recorded for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2007.

On August 29, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets, properties and operations of Sweater.com, Inc.
(“Sweater.com”™), a designer and marketer of high quality women's knitwear, tops and related products sold to
leading speciaity stores under its One Girl Who ... and b.chyll brands and directly through its Sweater.com
website. The purchase price for Sweater.com as of the acquisition date was $12.4 million. Additional cash
purchase consideration is due if Sweater.com achieves certain specified financial performance targets over a five-
year period commencing December 1, 2006. This additional contingent cash purchase consideration is calculated
based on a formula applied to operating results. A minimum level of performance, as defined in the purchase
agreement, must be achieved during any of the annual periods in order for the additional cash consideration to be
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paid. At the minimum level of performance (annualized operating earnings, as defined in the purchase
agreement, of at least $2.0 million), additional annual consideration of $.5 million would be paid over the five
year period commencing December 1, 2006. The amount of consideration increases with increased level of
earnings and there is no maximum amount of incremental purchase price. No additional consideration was
recorded for the year ended November 30, 2007,

On October 31, 2005, the Company acquired certain assels, properties and operations of Simply Blue, Inc.
and Seymour Blue, LLC (together “Simply Blue™), a designer and marketer of upscale women’s denim products
sold through leading specialty and department stores. The purchase price for Simply Blue as of the acquisition
date was $21 million. Additional cash purchase consideration is due if Simply Blue achieves certain specified
financial performance targets over a five-year period commencing December 1, 2005. This additional contingent
cash purchase consideration is calculated based on a formula applied to operating results. A minimum level of
performance, as defined in the purchase agreement, must be achieved during any of the periods in order for the
additional consideration to be paid. At the minimum level of performance (annualized operating earnings, as
defined, of at least $6.7 million), additional annual consideration of $1.3 million, less deductions as defined,
would be paid over the five year period commencing December 1, 2005. The amount of consideration increases
with increased levels of earnings and there is no maximum amount of incremental purchase price. The additional
consideration for fiscal 2007 of approximately $1.7 million was included in Other Accrued Expenses at
November 30, 2007 and is payable during fiscal 2008.

The acquisitions of Monarchy, Zooey, Sweater.com and Simply Blue are expected to provide for strategic
growth opportunities in premium casual sportswear and womenswear and further diversification of product
categories.

These acquisitions are being accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the
results of Monarchy, Zooey, Sweater.com and Simply Blue are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the respective acquisition dates. Monarchy results of operations and assets are included in the Men’s
Apparel Group segment, while Sweater.com, Zooey and Simply Blue results of operations and assels are
included in the Women’s Apparel Group segtment.
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The Company has allocated the purchase price to the Monarchy, Zooey, Sweater.com and Simply Blue
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at estimated fair values, considering a number of factors, including the
assistance of an independent third party appraisal. For Sweater.com, the excess of fair value of the net assets
acquired compared to the amount paid as of the acquisition date has been reflected as “estimated amount due
seller”, in accordance with SFAS No. 141 (“Business Combinations”). Any contingent consideration payable
subsequent to the acquisition date is first applied to reduce the amount recorded as “estimated amount due
seller”, and thereafter to goodwill. For Monarchy, Zooey and Simply Blue, any contingent consideration payable
subsequent to acquisition will increase goodwill. The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the respective date of acquisition (000’s omitted):

Sweater. Simply
Monarchy Zooey com Blue

Cashconsideration . ............ ... ....ccueen... $12,000 $3,000 $12,354  $21,000
Direct acquisition costs . ......... ... ... ... 125 75 135 150
Total purchaseprice ........... .. coiiiiivan.., $12,125  $3,075 $12489  $21,150
Atlocation of purchase price:
Cash e $ — $ — $ 6 % 125
Accountsreceivable . ... ... . ... .. .. .., 2,371 18 1,315 2,101
INVENLOTIES ..ot v it it e et 2,749 604 2,620 945
Other current asSets . ... ..ttt it e iiieeis 456 58 312 454
Intangible assets .............. .. ... 9.460 1,255 8,765 16,200
Goodwill .. ... . e, 1,920 1,414 — 2,077
Property, plant and equipment . .................... 202 24 228 116
Other 55615 ..ot it e e _ — 52 21
Current liabilities . ...........o it i, (5,033) (298) (475) (889)
Estimated amountdue seller ...................... —_— —_ (334) —
Total purchase price .. ... ... ... ... ieennann, $12,125  $3,075 $12,489  $21,150

The components of the Intangible Assets listed in the above table as of the acquisition date were determined
by the Company with the assistance of an independent third party appraisal and were as follows (000’s omitted):

Monarchy Zooey Sweater.com Simply Blue
Amount Life Amourt Life Amount Life Amount Life
Tradename ........... $8,130 Indefinite $ 625 Indefinite $6,540 Indefinite $11,850 Indefinite
Customer
relationships ........ 1,080 10 years 600 10years 2,050 10 years 2,650 10 years
License agreement .. ... 75 5 years 1,450 5 years
Covenant not to
compete ........... 250 5 years 30 10 years 100 10 years 250 10 years
$9,460 $1.,255 $8,765 $16,200

The tradenames were deemed to have an indefinite life and, accordingly, are not being amortized, but are
subject to periodic impairment testing at future periods in accordance with SFAS No. 142 (“Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets™). The customer relationships, design services agreement, covenant not to compete and license
agreement are being amortized based on estimated weighted cash flows over their life.

Each of the acquisitions was financed utilizing borrowing availability under the Company’s Credit Facility.

Pro forma amounts are not included for Monarchy, Zooey, Sweater.com and Simply Blue, as the amounts
would not be significant.
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NOTE 3—Financing
At November 30, 2007 and 2006, long term debt was comprised of the following (000’s omitted):

2007 2006
Borrowings under Credit Facility ............ ... ..o $ 92099 $ 79,670
Industnal developmentbonds . ... ... .. ... o i 15,500 17,250
Mortgages and otherdebt ....... ... ... . oo 13,146 16,435
Tota  debt . . ot e e e 120,745 113,355
LeSS—CUITENE . o oottt e et tae e n oot annanennn 5,850 25,040
Longtermdebt ....... ... . e $114895 § 88,315

Effective August 30, 2002, the Company entered into a new $200 million senior revolving credit facility
(“Credit Facility”) replacing a $200 million facility scheduled to mature in June 2003. Pursuant to an amendment
dated January 3, 2005, and effective January 1, 2005, the Credit Facility was amended, extending its original
term by three years, to February 28, 2009; the Company retained its option to extend the term for an additional
year, to February 28, 2010. The Company paid $.4 million to the lender group related to the January 2005 Credit
Facility amendment. The Credit Facility provides for a $50 million letter of credit sub-facility. Interest rates
under the Credit Facility are based on a spread in excess of LIBOR or prime as the benchmark rate and on the
level of excess availability. The weighted average interest rate was approximately 6.6% at November 30, 2007,
based on LIBOR and prime rate loans. The Credit Facility provides for an unused commitment fee of 375% per
annum based on the $200 million maximum less the outstanding borrowings and letters of credit issued. Eligible
receivables and inventories provide the principal collateral for the borrowings, along with certain other tangible
and intangible assets of the Company.

The Credit Facility includes various events of default and contains certain restrictions on the operation of
the business, including covenants pertaining to minimum net worth, operating leases, incurrence or existence of
additional indebtedness and Hens, asset sales and limitations on dividends, as well as other costomary covenants,
representations and warranties, and events of default. During fiscal 2007 and as of November 30, 2007, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants under the Credit Facility and its other borrowing agreements. At
November 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $16 million of letters of credit outstanding, relating to
either contractual commitments for the purchase of inventories from unrelated third parties or for such matters as
workers’ compensation requirements in licu of cash deposits. Such letters of credit are issued pursuant to the
Company's Credit Facility and are considered as usage for purposes of determining borrowing availability.
During fiscal 2007, additional availability levels ranged from $32 million to $99 million. At November 30, 2007,
additional borrowing availability under the Credit Facility was approximately $70 million.

Industrial development bonds (“IDBs”), which mature on varying dates through 2015, were issued by
development authorities for the purchase or construction of various manufacturing facilities having a carrying
value of $4.9 million at November 30, 2007. Interest rates on the various borrowing agreements were 7.25% at
November 30, 2007 (average of 7.4% at November 30, 2006). The two IDBs, totaling $15.5 million, are each
callable by the Company at par.

Mortgages and other debt includes $13.1 million remaining principal amount of mortgages on two of its
owned manufacturing facilities, which mature in 2011 and 2016. Interest rates range from 7.5% to 7.7% per
annum (average of 7.7% at November 30, 2007 and 2006).

Accrued interest, included in the Other Accrued Expenses caption in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet, was $1.1 million at November 30, 2007 and $1.2 million at November 30, 2006,
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The approximate principal reductions during the next five fiscal years are as follows: $5.9 million in 2008,
$88.0 million in 2009, $1.0 million in 2010, $6.5 million in 2011 and $.8 million in 2012. The $5.9 million of
principal reduction in 2008 reflects $.9 million of required payments and $5 million represents the Company’s
estimate of additional debt reduction during fiscal 2008,

NOTE 4—Borrowings Under Principal Credit Facility

The following summarizes information concerning borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit
facility in place during the applicable periods, all of which were variable rate borrowings (000’s omitted):

2007 2006 2005
Qutstanding at November 30 .................... $92099 § 79,670 $ 85,089
Maximum month end balance during the year . ...... 114,542 121,545 110,481
Average amount outstanding during the year ....... 85,033 84,042 75,609
Weighted daily average interest rate during the
FOAM L oottt e e e 7.0% 6.7% 5.0%
Weighted average interest rate on borrowings at
November30 ........ ... ... ... iiiia, 6.6% 7.2% 5.9%
NOTE 5—Inventories
Inventories at each date consisted of (000’s omitted):
November 30
2007 2006
Rawmaterials ........vvvr ittt ittt e ennenns $ 39,022 $ 38,621
Work In process . . ... .ottt e 6,238 5,756
Finishedgoods . ......... ... ... i i 97,139 102,063

$142,399  $146,440

The excess of current cost over LIFO costs for inventories valued using LIFO was $31.2 million in 2007 and
$29.8 million in 2006.
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NOTE 6—Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets by category are summarized below (000’s omitted):

Intangible assets with finite lives:

Gross carrying amount:
Customer relationships .......... .. . iireiii e,
Supply agreement .. ... i
Design services agreement ............ocvveeenrrnaeeos
Covenant NOLtO COMPELE . ... ..o oir vt iaiin e
Licenseagreement .. ... ...t rreiiiiniaanraronan.
01171

Accumulated amortization:
Customer relationships ......... .. .l i
Supply agreement ............ui it
Design services agreement .. ..........oeevrnneren-nnoaus
Covenant Notto COMPELE . ... ... vvrirrniernnan ey
License agreement . . .. ......ovviinin it
Other .. e

Total intangible assets with finite lives,net ................. ...,
Indefinite lived intangible assets: Tradenames ...................

Total intangible assets, net

November 30,
2007 2006
$9380 §$ 7,700

4,400 4,400
1,450 1,450
980 700

75 75
1,700 1,700
17,985 16,025
3,937 2,219
2,958 2,078
1,194 884
562 422
42 11
1,700 1,700
10,393 7314
7,592 8,711
55,535 46,790
$63,127  $55,501

The increase reflected the acquisition of Zooey and Monarchy in fiscal 2007 offset by amortization of
intangible assets with finite lives of Misook, Simply Blue, Sweater.com, Zooey and Monarchy.

Based on the current estimated useful lives assigned to the Company’s intangible assets with finite lives,
amortization expense for fiscal 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is projected to total $2.7 million, $1.9 million,
$1.0 million, $.7 million and $.5 million, respectively.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended November 30, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows (000’s omitted):

Men’s Women’s
Apparel Apparel
Group Group Total

Balance, November 30,2005 ........... ... oot $24,156 % 2,077 $26,233
Simply Blue fiscal 2006 earnout payable . .. ........... — 1,691 1,691
Translationeffect .. ... ... .. .. .o it 33 — 33
Balance, November 30,2006 . ...................... 24,189 3,768 27,957
Simply Blue fiscal 2007 earnout payable .. ............ — 1,643 1,643
Misook fiscal 2007 earnout payable ................. — 3,822 3,822
Monarchy and Zoocy acquisitions ................... 1,920 1,414 3,334
Translationeffect .......... .. ... i, 221 — 221
Balance, November 30,2007 .. ... ..o vininnaen .. $26,330 $10,647 $36,977




NOTE 7—Taxes on Earnings

The tax proviston (benefit) is summarized as follows (000’s omitied):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005

Federal ..... ... ... .. . i $ 26 § 141 $ 336
Stateandlocal ........ ... ... . i, 571 585 1,983
Foreign ....... ..o e — — —

Totalcurrent . ........... ... covviiiiiiiii 597 726 2,339
Federal .. ... ... ... . . . e (2,506) 3,120 11,998
Stateandlocal ......... ... ... . i (758) — —
FOreign ........coiiiini i i 96 620 468

Totaldeferred ................... . ... ....... (3,168) 3,740 12,466
Total tax provision (benefit) ......................... $(2,571) 344606 $14,805

Eamnings (loss) before taxes applicable to the United States and foreign is summarized as follows (000's
omitted):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005
UnitedStates . ........... . ... .. $(6,853) $10,088 $37,443
Foreign ... ...... ..o 104 1,664 917

$(6,74%) 811,752  $38,360

The difference between the tax provision (benefit) reflected in the accompanying statement of earnings
(loss) and the amount computed by applying the federal statutory tax rate to eamnings (loss) before taxes is
summarized as foltows (000’s omitted):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005

Tax provision (benefit) computed at statutory rate . . .. ... $(2,295) $3996 $13,042
State and local taxes on earnings, net of federal tax

benefit ........... ... (123) 386 1,309
Foreign .. ... 61 54 156
Compensation inexcess of $1million................. - 473 28
Meals and entertainment .................... . ...... 296 255 244
Renewal community tax credits ..................... 2700 (1,029 _
Tax over book loss—foreign investment .............. a91) — —_
Other—Ret . ...t i e 151 331 26
Total tax provision (benefit) ........................ $(2,571) $ 4466 $14.805
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The significant components of the net deferred tax asset at November 30, 2007 and 2006 were as follows
(000’s omitted):

November 30,
2007 2006

Deferred Tax Assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards ............ ... .....oo.oe. $ 26,698 $ 27,259
AMT credit carryforwards ... ... ol 6,297 6,202
Employment-related liabilities .. ................. .. ...ouh 6,284 6,240
T 10 11,242 6,909
Receivables . .ottt e e 4,075 3,255
PEmISION .. oot e e e 5,363 —
£ 1147 A AU 10,430 10,265

Total deferred tax assels .. ..ot ienennrneneniin, 70,389 60,130
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Tax over book depreciation ............ .. . i (246) (508)
AMOMZAION &+ . oo vttt ettt te e e ae et te e ar e enaanaonaenns {3,101) (1,809)
PeSION ot e e — (12,674)
Prepaidsand other ......... .. ... oot (7,064) (5,827)

Total deferred tax liabilities . ...... .. ... oo, (10,411)  (20,818)
Netdeferred tax @sse18 . .. oottt e it iecaea e aaenn $59,978 § 39312
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet:

L0010 1| AU R $21,590 § 21,990

NON-CUITEIL & . v v vt et e et e e et ittt ama e 38,388 17,322

$59,978  $ 39312

The Company has recorded a net deferred tax asset of $60.0 million and $39.3 million as of November 30,
2007 and 2006, respectively. There was no valuation allowance offsetting the deferred tax asset as the Company
has concluded it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset would be fully realized. The net tax asset
recorded considers recent earnings history plus amounts expected to be realized through future earnings and
available 1ax planning realization strategies (such as the ability to adopt the FIFQ inventory valuation method for
those inventories currently valued under the LIFO vatuation method).

Federal income taxes have not been provided on aggregate undistributed earnings of $9.4 million of the
Company’s Canadian based foreign subsidiaries. The Company intends to permanently invest these earnings in
its foreign operations.

At November 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $76 million of federal tax operating loss
carryforwards available to offset future taxable income; in general, the substantial portion of such carryforwards
must be utilized within fifteen years of incurring the net operating loss. The loss carryforwards for years prior to
2001 aggregate approximately $56 million of which $54 million expire in the 2008-2009 period and $2 million
will expire in 2010. Fully utilizing the $54 million of available operating loss carryforwards expiring by the end
of fiscal 2009 would require average annual taxable earnings of approximately $27 million over the 2008-2009
period before consideration of available tax planning strategies. The estimated $13 million of tax operating losses
attributable to the fiscal year ended November 30, 2001 will be available for utilization through November 30,
2021 and the $7 million of tax operating losses attributable to the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002 will be
available for utilization through November 30, 2022. AMT tax credit carryforwards of $6.3 million can be
carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTE 8—Commitments and Contingencies

The Company and its subsidiaries lease office space, manufacturing, warchouse and distribution facilities,
showrooms and outlet stores, automobiles, computers and other equipment under various noncancellabte
operating leases. A number of the leases contain renewal options ranging up to 10 years.

At November 30, 2007, total minimum rentals under noncancellable operating leases were as follows (000’s
omitted);

_Y_ﬂ Amount
2008 L e $13,966
2000 e e e e e 13,191
2000 L e e e e e 11,488
200 ] e e e e 8,936
200 e 7,532
Thereafter ... e e e 25,258
Total minimum rentals due . ........... . .. .. e $80,371

Rental expense, including rentals under short term leases, aggregated $15.9 million, $14.6 million and $13.8
million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Most leases provide for additional payments of real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses
applicable to the property, generally over a base amount. Total rental expense includes such base amounts and
the additional expense payments.

At November 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $16 million of letters of credit outstanding relating
to zither contractual commitments for the purchase of inventories from unrelated third parties or for such matters
as workers’ compensation requirements in lieu of cash deposits. Such letters of credit are issued pursuant to the
Company’s $200 million Credit Facility and are considered as usage for purposes of determining the maximum
available credit line and excess availability. The Company has also entered into surety bond arrangements
aggregating approximately $12 million with unrelated parties for the purposes of satisfying workers’
compensation deposit requirements of various states where the Company has operations.

The Company has employment agreements in place covering certain of its corporate and subsidiary officers
providing for the payment of base salaries and contingent additional compensation; severance amounts would be
payable in lieu of compensation in the event of involuntary termination by the Company. Aggregate annual base
salaries for these covered employees are approximately $4.6 million. In the event of a change in control and
termination of employment, as defined in the agreements, the Company would be required to make severance
payments in lieu of compensation under the employment agreements.

In fiscal 2005, the Company completed a significant modernization of its Hickey-Freeman manufacturing
and distribution facility in Rochester, New York, at a cost of $8.0 million. In connection with this project, the
Company entered into agreements with various local and state governmental agencies, and such agencies agreed
to reimburse the Company $5.0 million of the renovation costs in the form of participating grants; an additional
$.7 million was received related to this modernization from non-governmental sources. Among other things, the
terms of the governmental grant monies require that a minimum employment level be maintained at the facility
through 201 L. If the required minimum employment level is not maintained, a portion of the grant monies could
be converted into loans based on a sliding amortization schedule through 2011, The facility’s employment levels
have been substantially in excess of the minimum level for a number of years and the Company expects that
employment will exceed the minimum level through 2011.
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The Company manufactures and markets certain of its product offerings pursuant to exclusive license agreements
with unaffiliated licensors for specified product lines. Royalty amounts are generally based on a stipulated percentage
of revenues, although certain of these agreements contain provisions for the payment of minimum annual royalty
amounts. The licensing agreements are generally for a three to five year term with additional renewal options, provided
that minimum sales levels are achieved. Under terms of the agreements currently in place, the Company has minimum
obligations of approximately $13 million in 2008, $7 million in 2009, $3 million in 2010, $2 million in 2011 and $2
million in 2012. Additionally, there are certain license agreements that have a perpetual term and annual minimum
payments under these agreements are approximately $2 million.

The Company is involved in various claims and lawsuits incidental to its business. In the opinion of
management, these claims and lawsuits in the aggregate will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Additional cash purchase consideration is payable to the extent that Monarchy, Zooey, Sweater.com, Simply Blue
andfor Misook achieve certain specified financial performance targets over a seven-year period for Monarchy
commencing December 1, 2007 and over five year periods commencing December 1, 2006 for Zooey and
Sweater.com, December 1, 2005 for Simply Blue and August 1, 2004 for Misook. These additional contingent cash
purchase considerations are calculated based on a formula applied to the respective operating results of each entity. A
minimum level of performance, as defined in each purchase agreement, must be achieved during any of the periods in
order for additional consideration to be paid. Regarding Misook, at the minimum level of performance (annualized
operating earnings, as defined, of at least $12 million), additional annual consideration of $3.6 million would be paid
applicable to the five year period following the acquisition; the additional consideration applicable to fiscal 2007 was
approximately $4.7 million, payable in 2008, and has been recorded as an increase in Goodwill and Accrued Expenses.
Regarding Simply Blue, annualized operating earnings, as defined, of at least $6.7 million would result in additional
annual consideration of $1.3 million applicable to the five year period commencing December 1, 2005. The additional
consideration applicable to Simply Blue for fiscal 2007 was approximately $1.7 million, payable in 2008, and has been
recorded as an increase in Goodwill and Accrued Expenses. Regarding Sweater.com, annualized operating earnings as
defined of at least $2.0 million would result in annual consideration of $.5 million applicable to the five year period
commencing December 1, 2006, Regarding Zooey, annualized operating earnings as defined of at least $1.0 million
would result in annual consideration of $.15 million. Regarding Monarchy, at the minimum level of performance
(annualized operating earnings, as defined in the purchase agreement, of at least $3.0 million) additional annual
consideration of $.75 million would be paid. The amount of consideration increases with increased levels of earnings
and there is no maximum amount of incremental purchase price associated with these acquisitions.

NOTE 9—Employee Benefits
Pension Plans

The Company’s principal pensiori plan is a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially ali eligible U.S. non-union employees who have elected to participate in the plan and who
participate in the Company’s defined contribution plan, as well as certain union employees who participate
pursuant to the terms of collective bargaining agreements. Non-union employees hired subsequent to March 31,
2003 are not eligible to participate in the principal Company sponsored pension plan. Under this pension plan,
non-union retirement benefits are a function of years of service and average compensation levels during the
highest five consecutive salary years occurring during the last ten years before retirement; union employee
benefits are based on collectively bargained amounts per year of credited service. Under the provisions of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993, the annual compensation limit that can be taken into account for
computing benefits and contributions under qualified plans was $225,000 for 2007, $220,000 for 2006 and
$210,000 for 2005 and is subject 1o indexing increases in subsequent years. To the extent that the calculated
retirement benefit under the formula specified in the plan exceeds the maximum allowable under the provisions
of the tax regulations, the excess is provided on a non-qualified supplemental basis. The Company also sponsors
a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan for its non-union Canadian employees.
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The Company’s non-qualified supplemental pension plan, which covers certain U.S. employees, provides
for incremental pension payments from the Company’s funds, so that total pension payments equal amounts that
would have been payable from the Company’s principal pension plan but for limitations imposed by income tax
regulations.

Company contributions to its pension plans are intended to provide for benefits attributed to service to date
and also for those expected to be earned in the future. The Company contributed $2.5 million to its pension plans
during fiscal 2007, $7.9 million during fiscal 2006 and $7.2 million during fiscal 2005, Also, the Company
contributed $.3 million, $1.2 million and $.4 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, 1o trusts for one
employee related to the non-qualified supplemental pension plan.

Effective November 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and
132(R).” The statement requires an employer to record non-cash adjustments to recognize the funded status of
each of its defined pension and postretirement benefit plans as a net asset or liability in its statement of financial
position with the offsetting amount in accumulated other comprehensive income. Any changes to the funded
status during the year will be recognized prospectively through charges to accumulated other comprehensive
income.

The following table summarizes the effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet as of November 30, 2007 (000’s omitted):

Before After
Application Application
: of SFAS of SFAS
Balance Sheet Caption No. 158 Adjustments No. 158
Prepaid/intangible pension asset ....................... $37.607 $(37.607) 5 —
Deferred income taxes—noncurrent . ...............cv.... 21,248 17,140 38,388
Accrued pension liability ........... .. ... .. L oL 8,084 6,798 14,882
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . ......... 4,504 (27,265) (22,761)

Pre-tax amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of November 30, 2007 that have not vet been
recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

2007
Net actuarial oSS .o vr vttt et e e e e e e e e e e e $15,706
PO SEIVICE COSE . . o ottt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e 28,699
$44,405

The prior service cost for the Company’s defined benefit and non-qualified supplemental pension plans that
will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension expense over the next
fiscal year is $3.4 million. The Company is expecting the net actuarial loss to remain unchanged at $t5.7 million.

Components of net periodic pension expense for the Company’s defined benefit and non-qualified
supplemental pension plans for the three years ended November 30, 2007 were as follows (000’s omitted):

2007 2006 2005
B EIVICE COBE ottt ittt e e ettt e e e e $ 4945 $ 5195 §$ 5317
Interest COSt .ot e e e 14,943 14,515 14,514
Expectedreturnon planassets . ............. ... ... ... ..., (21,749  (19,644) (18,943)
Recognized net actuarial {gainYloss ....................... (92) 50 (720)
Net amortization . . ..o e e e et er e oo 3,482 3,464 3,386
Net periodic pension expense . . .............oovuuinnnan. $ 1,529 % 3580 §$ 3,554




The following sets forth the information related to the change in the benefit obligation and change in plan
assets for the Company’s defined benefit and non-qualified supplemental pension plans at November 30 (000's
omitted):

November 30,
2007 2006
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ... ........ ..o il $275,983 $270,330
ETVICE COBE o vttt e et e et e e e et iaa e e 4,945 5,195
TOLELESE COSE &+ v v e o e v e e et st e am e et e s 14,943 14,515
Actuarial (gain) 10SS .. ...t (5,061) 1,251
Other changes in benefit obligation .......... ... .. . .ol — —
Benefits paid ... .. oo s (16,888) (15,308)
Benefit obligation atend of year . ... 273,922 275,983
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginningof year .............. . ....ooiiiiiat 256,121 231,690
Employer contribUtions . .. ..o v oot 2,810 9.147
Actual Teturn on Plan @sSels . . ... ... 16,997 30,592
Benefits paid .. ... ...ttt (16,888) (15,308)
Fair value of plan assets atendof year .......... ... oo 259,040 256,121
FUunded SIS « . .ottt e s e e b et anassenne e saan e (14,882) (19,862)
Unrecognized net actuarial 108s . ... ..o — 15,921
Unrecognized prior SErvICE COSE . ..o r vt it aa i — 32,182
Net amount recognized . . ....oonueerrne oot it $(14,882) § 28,241
Recorded as follows:
Accrued pension Lability ... ... i $(14,882) § (8,309)
Prepaid/intangible pension asset .. ........... i — 36,550
Net amount reCOZMZE - . . ..ottt ittt aiea e $(14,882) $ 28,241

The accumulated benefit obligations of the Company’s pension plans as of the measurement dates in 2007,
2006 and 2005 were $258 million, $257 million and $256 million, respectively. The accumulated benefit
obligation represents the present value of pension benefits (whether vested or unvested) atrributed to employee
service rendered before the measurement date and based on employee service and compensation prior to that
date. The accumulated benefit obligation differs from the projected benefit obligation in that it includes no
assumption about future compensation levels. At November 30, 2007 and 2006, the assets of the Company’s
principal pension plan exceeded the plan’s accumulated benefit obligation and the Company was not required to
record a minimum pension liability and offsetting intangible pension asset, deferred tax and charge to
accumulated other comprehensive income in its financial statements.

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows
(000’ s omitted):

November 30,
2067 2006
Projected benefit obligation ........... ... ..ol $9.507 $9,694
Accumulated berefit obligation ........... ... o il 5,531 5,214
Fair value of plan assets ......... ... v 1.972 1,798

57



Additional information (000’s omitted):

November 30,
2007 2006

Decrease in minimum liability, net of tax, included in other comprehensive
)T u ] 1 1L S — 39,895

The weighted-average actuarial assumptions used in measuring the net periodic benefit cost and plan
obligations for the three years ending November 30, 2007 were:
2007 2006 2005

Net periodic benefit cost:

Discountrate . ........... it e 550% 5.50% 5.75%

Long-term rate of return on plan assets ...............ccooiiiiiann B.75% 8.75% B8.15%

Rate of compensation inCrease . ... ... ..viiir it inenrnennas 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Plan obligations:

Discountrate ... ...... ... i i e 5.80% 5.50% 35.50%

Rate of compensation increase .. ....... ... oot 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

In determining the discount rate, the Company considered the average duration of its pension liabilities in
relation to the rate derived by reference to the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve. In determining the expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets, the Company considers the investment allocation of plan assets along
with the long-term return rates (both historical and anticipated) of equity, fixed-income and alternative
investments as an indicator of future returns of similar investments in the plan portfolio. Investment management
and other fees paid out of plan assets are factored into the determination of asset return assumptions, Salary
increase assumptions are based upon historical experience and anticipated future management actions. The
RP2000 Blended Healthy Employees and Retiree Tables were used for mortality assumptions at November 30,
2007.

The Company’s investment asset allocation ranges for each major asset class and the actual asset allocations
at November 30, 2007 and 2006 by asset category are as follows:

Plan Assets at

November 30,

Allocation -

—Range = 2007 2006

Asset Category

Equity securities .. ... ..., e e 65% - 80% 760% 78%
Debtsecurities . ......coo i e 15% - 25% 12% 12%
s L e e e 2% - 5% 4% 3%
Real Estate/Other ... ... it e ee e 5% - 10% __§% 1%
TOtal L. e e e e }_(E% 100%

The plans’ assets consist primarily of publicly traded common stocks and corporate debt instruments, or
funds which invest in those securities. Venture capital funds and private equity funds, representing approximately
5% of plan assets at November 30, 2007, are included in the Real Estate/Other caption above. Plan assets
attributable to the Company’s non-11.S, pension plan represent approximately $7 million of the total $259 million
of aggregate assets of the Company’s pension plans. The target asset allocation is generally at the midpoint of the
expected range noted above. The actual asset allocation at any specific date may vary from the allocation range
due to market conditions and other factors, such as market appreciation in one asset category relative to the other
asset categories. At November 30, 2007, plan assets included approximately 2.4 million shares of the Company’s
common stock with a market value of approximately $9.5 million. The market related value of plan assets is
determined using fair value as of each November 30.
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The investment objectives for the pension plan assets (the Funds) are designed to generate returns that will
enable the Funds to meet their future obligations. The precise amount for which these obligations will be settled
depends on future events, including the life expectancy of the plan participants and salary inflation. The
obligations are estimates developed by using actuarial assumptions, based on the current economic environment.
This strategy balances the requirements to generate returns, using higher-returning assets such as equity
securities, with the need to control risk in the Funds with less volatile assets, such as fixed-income securities.
Risks include, among others, the likelihood of the plans becoming underfunded, thereby increasing their
dependence on contributions from the Company. The assets are managed by professional investment firms and
performance is evaluated against specific benchmarks.

The Company makes periodic cash contributions to its defined benefit plans within the minimum and
maximum amounts as prescribed for the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. During fiscal 2008, the
Company expects to contribute within a range of $3 million to $4 million to its pension plans.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid (in millions):

Year Amount
200 e e e s $15.8
2000 L e e e e 16.0
2000 e e e e 16.3
200 e e e s 16.6
3 17.3
) . 1 99.6

The Company’s Canadian operation also makes collectively-bargained payments to a group registered
retirement savings plan (similar to a defined contribution plan) which is not administered by the Company’s
Canadian operation. The contribution rate of applicable payroll is based on the amounts negotiated between the
union and the Company’s Canadian operation. Annual expense relating to this plan was approximately $.5
million in 2007 and $.3 million in 2006 and 2005.

Savings Investment and Stock Ownership Plan

The Company offers a qualified defined contribution plan, the Hartmarx Savings Investment and Stock
Ownership Plan (“SIPSOP"), which is a combined salary reduction plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code and an after-tax savings plan. SIPSOP is available to most non-union U.S. employees. Eligible
participants in SIPSOP can invest from 1% to 16% of eamings among several investment alternatives, inchuding
a Company stock fund. Participation in SIPSOP is required to earn retirement benefits for eligible employees
under the Company’s principal pension plan for employees hired prior to April 2003. An employer contribution
is made based on the employee’s level of participation, and is invested in common stock of the Company,
although participants can subsequently elect investments from among several investment alternatives. While
employee contributions up to 16% of earnings are permitted, contributions in excess of 6% are not subject 1o an
employer contribution. The employer contribution is fifty percent of the first 6% of carnings contributed by the
employee. The Company’s expense is based upon the cost and market value of shares allocated to employees’
accounts. The Company's annual expense and annual contributions were $1.1 miilion in 2007 and $1.2 million in
2006 and 2005. At November 30, 2007, the assets of SIPSOP funds had a market value of approximately $73.6
million, of which approximately $7.5 million was invested in 1,871,383 shares of the Company’s common stock.

Health Care Benefits

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries make contributions to multi-employer union health and welfare funds
pursuant to collective bargaining agreements. These paymenis are based upon wages paid to the Company’s active
union employees. Health and insurance programs are also made available to non-union active employees and their
eligible dependents. The Company does not sponsor health and insurance programs for its retired employees.
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NOTE 10—Stock Option Plans and Restricted Stock

The Company has in effect the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan (1998 Plan™), the 2003 Incentive Stock Plan (#2003
Plan”), the 2006 Incentive Stock Plan (“2006 Plan”) (collectively, the “Employee Plans™), the 1995 Stock Plan for
Non-Employee Directors (1995 Director Plan”) and the 2006 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors
(2006 Director Plan™) (collectively, the “Director Plans”) under which officers, key employees and directors (with
respect to the 2006 Director Plan) may be granted options to purchase the Company’s common stock at prices equal to
or exceeding the fair market value at the date of grant. The 2006 Director Plan also allows for the awarding of Deferred
Director Stock Awards to non-employee directors. Options granted to employees in 2007, 2006 and 2005 have five
year terms. Options which were outstanding at November 30, 2007 granted to employees in 2004 and prior years have
ten year terms. Options granted to employees are priced at the average of the high and low of the Company’s stock
price on the grant date of the award as approved by the Compensation and Stock Option Commiittee of the Board of
Directors (the “Compensation Committee”). Fair market value option awards 1o outside directors are priced at the
average of the high and the low of the Company’s stock price on the date of the award, usually the day of the
Company's annual meeting of shareholders. Options granted to employees under the Employee Plans generally
become exercisable in cumulative one-third installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date;
however, for participants employed by the Company for at least three years on the first anniversary of the grant date,
all or any portion of the options granted are exercisable beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant. For
participants employed by the Company for at least two years but less than three years on the first anniversary of the
grant date, two-thirds of the options granted are exercisable beginning one year after the date of grant. No additional
grants will be made under the 1998 and 2003 Plans. Following stockholder approval of the 2006 Incentive Stock Plan
in April 2006, shares covered by grants or awards under the terms of the 1998 or 2003 Plans which terminate, lapse or
are forfeited will be added to the aggregate number of shares authorized under the 2006 Plan and will become available
for grants under the 2006 Plan. Options granted under the 2006 Plan are evidenced by agreements that set forth the
terms, conditions and limitations for such grants, including the term of the award, limitations on exercisability, and
other provisions as determined by the Compensation Committee.

The Employee Plans also provide for the discretionary grant of stock appreciation rights in conjunction with
the stock option, which atlows the holder to receive cash, stock or a combination of stock and cash equal to the
gain in market price from the date of grant until its exercise. Under certain circumstances, the entire gain
attributable to rights granted under the 1998, 2003 and 2006 Plans may be paid in cash; in the case of stock
appreciation rights granted in tandem with a stock option, the cash payment under the 1998 Plan and the 2003
Plan is limited to one-half the gain. When options and stock appreciation rights are granted in tandem, the
exercise of one cancels the other. There were no stock appreciation rights outstanding at November 30, 2007 or
November 30, 2006. The Employee Plans also aliow for granting of restricted stock awards enabling the holder
to obtain full ownership rights subject to terms and conditions specified at the time each award is granted. The
2006 Plan also allows for the granting of restricted stock units enabling the holder to receive awards of common
stock subject to terms and conditions specified al the time such an award is granted.

As of November 30, 2007, there are 489,700 options outstanding under the 1998 Plan, 884,510 options
outstanding under the 2003 Plan and 314,000 options outstanding under the 2006 Plan.

Information regarding employee stock option activity for the year ended November 30, 2007 is as follows:

Aggregate
Weighted Intrinsic
Average  Remaining Value)
Number of Exercise Contractual 000’s

Shares Price Term omitted)
Balance at November 30,2006 . .. ... .. ... ittt 1,809,950 $5.38
Granted . ... e e 332.000 6.51
Exercised .. ..o e i e e e e (313,140) 3.04
Expiredorforfeited . ........ ... .. .o i (140,600) 6.56
Balance at November 30, 2007 .. ... ..o e 1,688,210 $5.93 3.21 $625
Exercisable at November 30,2007 ... ..o vr i an .. 1,352,750 $5.76 3.06 $625




(1) Based on the difference between the closing market price on the last trading day of the year and the grant
price of in-the-money options.

Stock compensation expense recognized by the Company for the year ended November 30, 2007 related to
employee stock option awards and principally included in Selling, General and Administrative Expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Earnings was approximately $1.4 million pre-tax and $.9 million after-tax.

Shares issued upon the exercise of stock options are normally from authorized but unissved common shares
of the Company. However, to the extent that the Company has treasury shares outstanding, such shares may be
reissued upon the exercise of stock options.

Information on employee stock options outstanding and exercisable at November 30, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Remaining
Number Life Number Life in
Range of Prices Quistanding in Years Price Exercisable Years Price
$250t0%8264 ............. 402,500 39 $2.54 402,500 39 $2.54
$3.2810%430 ... ... 207,200 38 $4.00 207,200 38 $4.00
$6.49t039.54 ... ......... 1,078,510 29 $7.57 743,050 24 $8.00
1,688,210 32 $5.93 1,352,750 $5.76

A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested stock options as of November 30, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
November 30, 2006 . . . ...\ttt e e 404,614 $3.01
GEANEEA o ot e e e e e e 332,000 $2.47
RV T K PP (364,334) $3.00
Expired or forfeited . ..... ... ... oo iiiii e (36,820)  $2.63
November 30, 2007 . ..ottt et e 335,460 $2.50

The fair value of options vested in fiscal 2007 was $1.1 million.

As of November 30, 2007, there was approximately $.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost related
to nonvested stock options which is expected to be recognized in fiscal 2008.

On December 3, 2007, the Company granted 327,500 employee stock options and on January 2, 2008, the
Company granted 20,000 employee stock options.

With respect to the Company's long term incentive plan restricted stock awards pursuant to the 1998, 2003
and 2006 Plans, compensation expense is measured at fair value on the date of grant based on the number of
shares awarded and the quoted market price of the Company’s stock. The Company has assumed no forfeitures
as the impact of expected forfeitures is immaterial. In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Unearned Employee
Benefits, which had been reported as a separate component of Shareholders’ Equity prior to December 1, 2005, is
now included in Capital Surplus. Restricted stock awards vest at the earlier of five years from the date of grant,
retirement at age 65 or the Company’s share price exceeding performance measures established at the date of
grant. Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, or on an accelerated
basis if the share price exceeds the vesting threshold price for thirty consecutive days. The restricted stock
awards resulted in compensation expense included in Selling, General and Administrative Expense of $.9 million
in fiscal 2007, $.7 million in fiscal 2006 and $.4 million in fiscal 2005.
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As of November 30, 2007, unrecognized compensation cost associated with restricted stock awards was
approximately $2.9 million, which will be recognized as follows: $1.0 million in 2008, $.9 million in 2009, $.6
million in 2010, $.3 million in 2011 and $.1 million in 2012. However, if the vesting thresholds are achieved
prior to the end of the five year term, the related compensation expense will be accelerated.

Information regarding long term incentive plan restricted stock awards for the year ended November 30,
2007 is as follows:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Number of Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Balance November 30, 2006 . ... ... .. 536,500 $7.96
L 1111« ER A U 169,500 $7.42
Forfeited ...... . i i e e (84,000) $8.13
Balance November 30, 2007 . . ... ... 0ttt e e 622,000 $7.79

At November 30, 2007, none of the outstanding restricted stock awards were vested. The vesting threshold
for restricted stock awards outstanding is as follows:

Number of Vesting Latest
Shares Threshold Vesting Date
163,500 .. o e $11.00 August 4, 2009
155,500 e e $14,00 August 3, 2010
140,500 .. oot . $1000  August8 2011
162,500 . o e e e $12.00 April 10, 2012

The Director Plans provide for possible annual grants under the 1995 Director Plan of Director Dollar Stock
Options (“DDSO™) 1o non-employee members of the Board of Directors at market value on the date of grant. In
additton, under the 1995 Director Plan, each non-employee director had the right to make an irrevocable election
to receive a DDSO in lieu of all or part of his or her retainer. The number of whole shares which could be granted
is based on the unpaid annual retainer divided by the market value of a share on such date minus $1.00, and the
exercise price is $1.00. DDSOs are exercisable in full six months after the date of grant or earlier in the event of
death or disability. Under the 2006 Director Plan, upon election (or re-election, as the case may be) to the Board
by stockholders at an annual meeting, each non-employee director is entitled to receive a stock option grant of
5,000 options at the fair market value on the date of grant; no DDSQOs may be granted under the 2006 Director
Plan. Under the 2006 Director Plan, an option is forfeited if Board service terminates before the option vests (six
months after grant) for reasons other than death or disability. Each non-employee director is also eligible for a
possible annual grant of a Director Deferred Stock Award (“DDSA™) equal to the number of DDSA units
computed by dividing the director’s annual retainer by the fair market value of a share on the date of the annual
meeting. Pursuant to the terms of the 2006 Director Plan, each non-employee director receives a DDSA award
upon election (or re-election, as the case may be) to the Board by stockholders at an annual meeting. In 2007,
each non-employee director received an award of 2,681 units. Prior to 1998, each non-employee director
received a DDSA equal to 150 units and for years 2000-2004, no DDSA’s were awarded. A DDSA unit equals
one share of the Company’s common stock. DDSA units are payable in shares of common stock upon death,
disability or termination of service and any fractional units are payable in cash. Dividend equivalents may be
earned on qualifying DDSOs and DDSA units and allocated to directors’ respective accounts in accordance with
the terms of the Director Plans. DDSOs are charged to expense at the time the director elects to receive the
DDSQ. DDSAs vest at the time of grant and are charged to expense at the time the grant is made to the director.
Dividend equivalents, if any, would be charged to expense at the time the dividend would be declared.
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Stock compensation expense related to non-employee director stock options and DDSAs and included in
Selling, General and Administrative Expense in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings for fiscal 2007 was
approximately $.27 million pre-tax and approximately $.17 million after tax. For fiscal 2006, these amounts were
$.29 million pre-tax and approximately $.17 million after tax.

The fair value of options granted to directors was calculated to be $2.83 per share in 2007 and $3.15 per
share in 2006, using the same option valuation model and assumptions similar to those for employee stock option
awards.

For fiscal 2005, stock compensation expense included in Selling, General and Administrative Expense
related to DDSAs was $.16 million pre-tax and $.10 million after-tax. No fair value or DDSOs were granted to
non-employee directors in fiscal 20035.

Information regarding director stock option activity for the year ended November 30, 2007 is as follows:

2007
Weighted
Average
Shares Price
Balance November 30,2006 .. ... ...ttt ittt iianans 171,387 $3.76
Grants:
Fair market value options . ........ooiiiiiiiirrrerrceeeeranss 40,000 7.46
) 01 N N P 21,448 —_
Exercises:
SLODOPHON . ..ottt ii it ama it {10,782) 1.00
Fair market value options . ...........coiiviiiiiii i, (9,362) 5.21
Cancellations:
Fair market value options ......... .. ..ot {15,443) 7.69
Balance November 30, 2007 . . ... .. i it e 197,248
Aggregate
Intrinsic
Weighted Remaining Value
Average Contractual 000’s
Shares Price Term omitted)
Balance at November 30, 2007 consists of:
$1.000ption . ...... ... oo 10,553 $1.00 11 $ 32
DS A ... e 86,985 —_ — —
Fair market value options .................. 99,710 7.56 33 $—

197,248 $3.87

At November 30, 2007, 170,521 shares were available for future director stock options and DDSAs
(216,526 at November 30, 2006.)
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For the three years ended November 30, 2007, the total intrinsic value for awards exercised, representing the
difference between the underlying stock’s market price and the exercise price for options exercised or for
restricted stock awards and the difference between the underlying stock market price and the value of the
restricted stock award on the day the restricted stock award vested, was as follows (000’s omitted):

Year Ended November 30,
2007 2006 2005
Intrinsic value:
StOCK OPLONS L .ttt e e it e e e $1,389 $954  $3,755

Restricted stock awards . . .. ..o it r e i e — —_ —
$1,380  $954  $3,755

Tax benefit realized from option or award exercise under all share based

ATTANGEIMENES . . . ..\ttt e ettt e e e e e et eaiaeeeeeirneesn $ 529 %363 $1,455

At November 30, 2007 2,507,458 shares were reserved for options and restricted stock awards outstanding,
and 1,532,780 shares were available for future stock options and/or restricted stock awards (1,826,930 shares
available at November 30, 2006).

NOTE 11—Share Repurchase Authorization

In Gctober 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program to acquire up to
two million of the Company’s common shares. Repurchases under this authorization commenced in April 2006
and were completed in October 2007 at an average cost of $6.47 per share. In October 2007, the Company’s
Board authorized up to three million additional shares for repurchase from time to time based on prevailing
market conditions and other factors. As of November 30, 2007, 710,232 shares have been repurchased pursuant
to this second authorization at an average cost of $4.79 per share; 423,400 shares were repurchased subsequent to
November 30, 2007 through Februvary 4, 2008 and additional shares may be repurchased as conditions warrant.
The current authorization expires on December 31, 2009,

NOTE 12—Other Comprehensive Income

The pre-tax amounis, the related income tax (provision) benefit and after-tax amounts allocated to each
component of the change in other comprehensive income (loss) in each year was as follows (000's omitted):

Pre-Tax Tax After-Tax
Year ended November 30, 2007
Fair value of foreign exchange contracts ..................... $ an s 7 % (10)
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. .................... 2,091 — 2,091
$ 2074 §% 7 $ 2,081
Year ended November 30, 2006
Minimum pension liability ................................ $ 16,157  $(6,262) $ 9,895
Fair value of foreign exchange contracts ..................... 2) 1 (1)
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . .................... 257 — 257
$16412  $(6261) $10,151
Year ended November 30, 2005
Minimum pension liability .................. ... ... $(10494) $4,024 $(6,470)
Fair value of foreign exchange contracts ..................... (192) 70 (122
Foreign currency translation adjustment . ... .................. 386 —_— 386
$(10,300) $4,094 $(6,206)




The change in Accurnulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) was as follows, all amounts are net of tax
(000’s omitted);

Fair Valoe Foreign Adjustment Accumulated
Minimum of Foreign Currency Pursuant to Other
Pension Exchange Translation SFAS No. Comprehensive
Liability Contracts Adjustment 158 Income {Loss)
Balance Nov. 30,2004 ........ $(3,425) $123 $1,780 $ — $ (1,522)
Change in fiscal 2005 ......... (6,470) (122) 386 — (6,206)
Balance Nov. 30,2005 ........ {9,895) 1 2,166 — (71,728)
Change in fiscal 2006 ......... 9,895 (1) 257 — 10,151
Balance Nov. 30,2006 ........ — — 2,423 — 2,423
Change in fiscal 2007 ......... — (10) 2,091 (27,265) (25,184)
Balance Nov. 30,2007 ........ $ — $(10) $4,514 $(27,265) $(22,761)

NOTE 13—Operating Segment Information

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of apparel and has two operating segments for
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance, which are based on products distributed. The
Company’s customers comprise major department and specialty stores, value oriented retailers and direct mail
companies. Products are sold over a wide range of price points under a broad variety of apparel brands, both
owned and under license, to an extensive range of retail channels. The Company’s operations are comprised of
the Men's Apparel Group and Women's Apparel Group. The Men’s Apparel Group designs, manufactures and
markets tailored clothing, slacks, sportswear (including golfwear) and dress furnishings (shirts and ties). The
Women’s Apparel Group designs and markets women’s career apparel, designer knitwear, sportswear, including
denim products, and accessories to retailers and to individuals who purchase women’s apparel through its
catalogs and e-commerce websites.

Information on the Company’s operations for the three years ended November 30, 2007 is summarized as
follows (in millions):

Men’s Women's
Apparel Apparel
_2_0E Group Group Adj. Consol.
) LS 2 PP U U U $4329  $1295 $ — $562.4
Earnings (toss) before taxes .. ... .oooiiiii i 2.1 13.6 (22.4) (6.7)
Total assets at yearend .............ccoviiiiirnnnnnn- 282.0 104.7 73.2 459.9
Depreciation and amortization . . ............. . ..o.oa.. 4.7 0.7 0.1 5.5
Capital additions ......... .. . o 17.1 0.9 — 18.0
Men's Women’s
Appare! Apparel
2006 Group Group Adj. Consol.
IS © ot t  eeeeee $4797 §$1182 $ — $597.9
Eamnings (loss) beforetaxes .. ......... ... vvioont. 234 12.2 (23.8) 11.8
Total assets at yearend .. ........ ...t 286.9 98.6 87.6 473.1
Depreciation and amortization . ........... ... ... 5.5 0.8 _ 6.3
Capital additions ......... .. .o, 31 04 0.1 36
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Men’s Women’s

Apparel Apparel
@g Group Group Adj. Consol.
Sales .. e 35111 $87.1 $ — $598.2
Earnings (loss) beforetaxes .. ........................ 513 8.9 (21.8) 384
Total assetsatyearend ., .......... ... .. ... ... ..., 3124 87.0 952 49456
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... ................ 45 0.6 —_ 5.1
Capital additions .......... ... ... i, 12.8 0.9 0.1 13.8

Sales from the Men's Apparel Group to the Women’s Apparel Group were $.3 miilion for the years ended
November 30, 2007 and 2006 and $.1 million for the year ended November 30, 2005. These sales have been
eliminated from Men's Apparel Group sales. During all periods, there was no change in the basis of measurement
of group earnings or loss.

Operating expenses incurred by the Company in generating sales are charged against the respective group;
indirect operating expenses are allocated to the groups benefitted. Group results exclude any allocation of general
corporate expense, interest expense or income taxes.

Amounts included in the “adjustment” column for earnings (loss) before taxes consist principally of interest
expense and general corporate expenses. Adjustments of total assets are for cash, deferred income taxes,
investments, other assets, corporate propertics and the prepaid/intangible pension asset. Adjustments of
depreciation and amortization and net property additions are for corporate properties.

Sales and long-lived assets by geographic region are as follows (in miltions):

Sales Long-Lived
Years Ended November 30, Assets November 30,
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006
USA e $538.7 $574.6 $576.1 $1479 $1594
Canada ............ ... .o i 221 21.8 20.5 4.0 3.2
AllOther . ... ... ... ... .. ... i ool 1.6 1.5 1.6 — —

$562.4  $597.9 $598.2 51519 $162.6

Sales by Canadian subsidiaries to customers in the United States are included in USA sales. Sales to
customers in countries other than USA or Canada are included in All Other.

Long-lived assets includes the prepaidfintangible pension asset, net properties, goodwill, intangible assets
and other assets.

Quarterly Financial Summary (Unaudited)

Unaudited quarterly financial data for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows
(000’s omitted, except per share data):

Year Ended November 30, 2007 1¢ Quarter 254 Quarter 3 Quarter 4% Quarter
Net5alES . .ovtr et et et $120,045 $155,935  $135202 $151,234
Grossprofit ........... ... ... ... ... 40,123 55,884 46,708 35,591
Netearnings (loss) . ........... ... iieen, (3,412) 5,379 542 (6,687)
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare . ............. (.09) 15 01 .19)
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Year Ended November 30, 2006 12 Quarter 204 Quarter 3 Quarter 4t Quarter

Netsales ..oovvunnnaniiinenrenroroneeens $144204  $152,566  $137,691  $163,429
Grossprofit ... 48,295 49,644 47,545 47,788
Neteamings .......oecveevvrrrnveersssnnns 2,585 3,880 490 331
Diluted eamings pershare . .. ................ 07 10 01 .01

The results of operations of Sweater.com, Zooey and Monarchy are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the respective acquisition dates of August 29, 2006, December 11, 2006 and August 14, 2007,
respectively.

Item 9—Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9-A—Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company’s management, under the supervision
of and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”}, as
of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures are effective and are reasonably designed to ensure that all material information relating to the
Company required to be included in the Company’s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. The Company’s management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as that term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has

conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of November 30,
2007 based on the framework established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
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of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO™). Based on this evaluation, management
concluded that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of November 30, 2007 based on criteria
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

Management has excluded certain elements of the internal control over financial reporting of Monarchy
from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2007, because they were
acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2007. Subsequent to the acquisition, certain
elements of Maonarchy’s internal control over financial reporting and related processes were integrated into the
Company’s existing systems and internal control over financial reporting. Those controls that were not integrated
have been excluded from management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of November 30, 2007. The excluded elements represent controls over accounts that are less than 2%
of consolidated total assets and consolidated net sales as of and for the year ended November 30, 2007,

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have not been any changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Exchange Act during the Company’s fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2007 that have materially
affected, or are reasonable likely to materially affect the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9-B—Other Information

None.
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PART I

Item 10—Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant and Corporate Governance

Information contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the caption “Information
About Nominees For Directors” and “Section 16{(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” is
incorporated herein by reference.

Information on Executive Officers of the Registrant is included under “Executive Officers of the Registrant™
in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics, including a *Code of Ethics for Chief Executive
and Senior Financial Officers” which applies to the Company’s principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. The Code of Conduct
and Ethics is available on the Company’s website at www.hartmarx.com, under the heading “Investor Relations”.
In addition, the Company will provide a copy of the Code of Conduct and Ethics to any person without charge,
upon request, addressed to the Corporate Secretary at Hartimarx Corporation, 101 North Wacker Drive, Chicago,
IL 60606.

The Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors (“Audit Committee™) consists of the following
members of the Company’s Board of Directors: Michael B. Rohlfs, Chairman, Michael F. Anthony, Jeffrey A.
Cole and James P. Dollive, each of whom is an “independent director” under the New York Stock Exchange
listing standards applicable to audit committee members. The Board of Directors has determined that each
member of the Audit Committee is financially literate and that Mr. Rohlfs, Chairman of the Committee, and
Mr. Dollive are each qualified as an audit committee financial expert. Mr. Rohlfs has served on the Audit
Committee since 1996, and has served as Chairman of the Audit Committee since 2001. He is a certified public
accountant, with many years of experience in the practice of public and private accounting. Mr. Dollive is the
retired executive vice president and chief financial officer for Kraft Foods Inc. and was elected to serve on the
Audit Committee in May 2003,

Item 11—Executive Compensation

[nformation contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meecting under the captions
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Compensation Committee Report for the Year
Ended November 30, 2007, “Executive Officer Compensation” and “Compensation of Directors™ is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12—Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Equity Compensation Plan Information*

(a) (b) {c)
Number of Securities Remaining
Number of Securities to Weighted-average Available for Future Issuance under
Be Lssued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (excluding securities reflected
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights in column (a))

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders . . . 2,507,458 $6.23 1,703,301
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . . —

Total ..........ovviiiiiia. 2,507,458 $6.23 1,703,301

*  As of November 30, 2007.
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Information contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the captions “QOwnership
of Equity Securities by Directors and Officers” and “Ownership of Common Stock” is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13—Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information coniained in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the captions “Director
Independence” and “Related Party Transactions” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14—Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the captions
“PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Fees and Services” and “Pre-Approval of Non-Audit Services” is incorporated
herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a){1) Financial Statements

Financial statements for Hartmarx Corporation listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data on page 30 are filed as part of this Annual Report,

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule

Financial Statement Schedule for Hartmarx Corporation listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data on page F-1 are filed as part of this Annual Report.

(a)(3) See the “Index to Exhibits™ set forth below.
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Exhibit No.

and
Applicable
Section of
601 of
Regulation
S.K

*2-B

*2.C

*2-D

*2-E

*3-A

* 3-A-1

*3-A-2

*3-B

*4.C-1

*4.C-2

*4.C-3

*4.C-4

*4-C.5

*4-C-6 .

*4.C-7

HARTMARX CORPORATION
Index to Exhibits

Purchase Agreement dated June 25, 2004 by and among EM Acquisition Corp., Hartmarx
Corporation, Exclusively Misook, Inc., Misook Doolittle and Harry Doolittle (Exhibit 2.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 23, 2004), (1).

Purchase Agreement dated October 31, 2005 by and among SB Acquisition Corp., Hartmarx
Corporation, Simply Blue, Inc., Seymour J. Blue, LLC, Melvin T. Matsui, Barbara J. Matsui and
Thomas Hermann (Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 2, 2005), (1).

Purchase Agreement dated August 29, 2006 by and among SC Acquisition Corp., Sweater.com, Inc.,
NYC Sweaters, Inc., Bruce Gifford and Daniel Jaffee (Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed September 5, 2006}, (1).

Purchase Agreement dated as of August 14, 2007, by and among M Acquisition Corp., Hartmarx
Corporation, Monarchy, LLC, Eric Kim and Hyung Tae Kim (Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007), (1).

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Exhibit 3-A to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30,
1993), (1).

Certificate of Amendment for increase in authorized shares of Common Stock (Exhibit 3-A-2 to
Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1993), (1).

Certificate of Amendment adding Article Fourteenth limiting director liability as provided under
Delaware General Corporation Law §102(b)(7) (Exhibit 3-A-3 to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 1993), (1).

Amended and Restated by-laws of the Company (Exhibit 3-B-1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on November 30, 2007), (1).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of August 30, 2002 (Exhibit 4-C-1 to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended August 31, 2002), (1).

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2003, (Exhibit 4-C-2 to
Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2002), (1).

Amendment No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of July 22, 2004. (Exhibit 4-C-3 to Form
10-K for the year ended November 30, 2004), (1).

Amendment No. 3 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of January 3, 2005. (Exhibit 4-C-3 to
Form 8-K filed on January 5, 2005), (1).

Amendment No. 4 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of October 31, 2005 (Exhibit 4-C-5 to
Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2005), (1).

Amendment No. 5 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of September 29, 2006 (Exhibit 4-C-6 to
Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2006), (1).

Amendment No. 6 to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of May 26, 2007 (Exhibit 4-C-7 1o Form
10-Q for the period ended May 31, 2007), (1).
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Exhibit No.

and
Applicable
Section of
01 of

Regulation
S-K

*10-A-1

*10-A-2

*10-A-3
* 10-A-4
* 10-A-5
* 10-A-6

* 10-A-7

* 10-B-1

10-B-2
*10-C-1
* [0-C-2
* 10-D-1
* 10-D-2
* 10-D-3
* 10-E-1

* 10-E-2

* 10-F-1

Hartmarx Corporation 2006 Incentive Stock Plan (Exhibit A to definitive proxy statement for the
2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on February 24, 2006), (1), **

Hartmarx Corporation 2006 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit B to
definitive proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on February 24, 2006),
(1). ek

Form of Employee Stock Option (Non-quatified) Grant Document Under the 2006 Incentive Stock
Plan (Exhibit 10-A-1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 6, 2006), (1). **

Form of Incentive Stock Option Grant Document Under the 2006 Incentive Stock Plan (Exhibit 10-
A-2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 6, 2006), (1), **

Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant Document Under the 2006 Incentive Stock Plan (Exhibit 10-
A-5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 25, 2006), (1). **

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Document Under the 2006 Incentive Stock Plan (Exhibit 10-A-6
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 25, 2006), (1), **

Form of Director Stock Option (Non-Qualified) Grant Document Under the 2006 Stock
Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit 10-A-7 to the Current Report on Form §-K
filed April 25, 20006), (1). **

Hartmarx Management Incentive Plan (Exhibit A to Proxy Statement of the Company relating to the
2004 Annual Meeting), (1). **

Amendment to Hartmarx Corporation Management Incentive Plan, **

Description of Hartmarx Long Term Incentive Plan (information included under the caption “Report
of Compensation and Stock Option Committee—Executive Compensation Program--Long-Term
Incentives” in the Proxy Statement of the Company relating to the 2006 Annual Meeting), (1). **

Description of Long-Term EBIT Bonus Plan 2006-2007-2008 Established Under the Management
Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10-C-3 to Form 10-Q for the period ended February 28, 2006), (1). **

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement, as amended, between the Company and Director Farley
(Exhibit 10-D-1 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1993), (1). **

Form of First Amendment to Director Deferred Compensation Agreement between the Company and
Director Farley (Exhibit 10-D-2 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1994), (1). **

Consulting Agreement dated April 15, 2004 between the Company and Elbert . Hand (Exhibit 10-
D-3 to Form 10-Q for the period ended May 31, 2004), (1). **

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement, as amended, between the Company and Messrs. Patel,
Morgan and Proczko (Exhibit 10-E-1 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1993), (1). **

Form of First Amendment to Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between the Company
and Messrs. Patel, Morgan and Proczke (Exhibit 10-E-2 to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 1994), (1). **

Employment Agreement dated August 1, 1996 between the Company and Homi B. Patel, amended
and restated effective November 27, 2000 (Exhibit 10-F-2 to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 2000), (1). **
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Exhibit No.
and
Applicable
Section of
601 of

Regulation
S-K

* 10-F-2

* 10-F-3

* 10-F-4
* 10-F-5
* 10-E-6
* 10-F-7
* 10-F-8
* 10-F-9
* 10-F-10
*10-F-11

* 10-F-12

* 10-F-13

* 10-F-14

*10-G-1

* 10-G-2

*10-G-3

Employment Agreement dated August 1, 1996 between the Company and Glenn R. Morgan,
amended and restated effective November 27, 2000 (Exhibit 10-F-3 to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 2000), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated April 11, 2002 to Employment Agreement and Severance Agreement
between the Company and Homi B. Patel (Exhibit 10-F-5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May
31,2002), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated August 8, 2002 to Employment Agreement between the Company and
Glenn R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-F-5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2002), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated December 17, 2004 to Employment Agreement between the Company and
Glenn R. Morgan.(Exhibit 10-F-5 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2004), (1). **

Employment Agreement dated August 8, 2002 between the Company and Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit
10-F-6 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2002), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated December 17, 2004 to Employment Agreement between the Company and
Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-F-7 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2004), (1), **

Letter Amendment dated March 10, 2005 to Employment and Severance Agreement between the
Company and Homi B. Patel (Exhibit 10-F-1 to Form 8-K dated March 14, 2005), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated June 30, 2005 to Employment Agreement between the Company and Glenn
R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-F-8 to Form 10-Q for the petiod ended May 31, 2005), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated December 27, 2005 to Employment Agreement between the Company and
Glenn R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-F-9 to Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2005), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated December 27, 2005 to Employment Agreement between the Company and
Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-F-10 to Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2005), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated November 26, 2007, to the Employment and Severance Agreements
between the Company and Homi P. Patel (Exhibit 10-G-1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 30, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated November 26, 2007, to the Employment and Severance Agreements
between the Company and Glenn R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-G-2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on November 30, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated November 26, 2007, to the Employment and Severance Agreements
between the Company and Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-G-3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on November 30, 2007), (1). **

Severance Agreement dated August 8, 2002 between the Company and Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-
F-7 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2002), (1). **

Severance Agreement dated August 1, 1996 between the Company and Homi B. Patel, amended and
restated effective November 27, 2000 (Exhibit 10-G-2 to Form 10-K for the year ended November
30, 2000, (1). **

Severance Agreement dated August 1, 1996 between the Company and Glenn R. Morgan, amended
and restated effective November 27, 2000 (Exhibit 10-G-3 to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 2000}, (1). **
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* 10-G-4

*10-G-5

* 10-G-6

* 10-G-7

*10-G-8

* 10-G-9

*10-G-10

10-G-11

* 10-H-1

*10-H-2

*10-1

* 10-J-1

*10-1-2

*10-5-3

10-J-4

* 10-K-1

* 10-K-2

Form of Severance Agreement between the Company and Executive Officers Raymond C. Giuriceo
and Andrew A. Zahr (Exhibit 10-G-7 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2000), (1). **
Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007, to Amended and Restated Severance Agreement between
the Company and Homi B. Paiel (Exhibit 10-G-1 to Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007, to Amended and Restated Severance Agreement between
the Company and Glenn R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-G-2 to Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007, to Severance Agreement between the Company and Taras
R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-G-3 to Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007 to Amended and Restated Severance Agreement between
the Company and Homi B. Patel (Exhibit 10-G-1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 29, 2007), (1), **

Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007 to Amended and Restaled Severance Agreement between
the Company and Glenn R. Morgan (Exhibit 10-G-2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 29, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated January 24, 2007 to Amended and Restated Severance Agreement between
the Company and Taras R. Proczko (Exhibit 10-G-3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 29, 2007), (1). **

Letter Amendment dated November 26 between the Company and Raymond C. Giuriceo. **

Supplemental Benefit Compensation Agreement dated December 23, 1999 between the Company
and Homi B. Patel (Exhibit 10-H-2 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 1999), (1). **

First Amendment to Supplemental Benefit Compensation Agreement between the Company and
Homi B. Patel, effective November 27, 2000 (Exhibit 10-H-4 10 Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 2000), (1).%¥*

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Directors Anthony, Cole, Dollive, Farley,
Hand, Jain, Patel, Rohlfs and Scott (Exhibit 10-G-1 to Form 10-K for the year ended November 30,
1993), (1). **

Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 1996 (Exhibit 10-I to Form 10-K for the year ended
November 30, 1995), (1), **

Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 2001 (Exhibit 10-J-2 to Form 10-K for the year
ended November 30, 2000), (1). **

Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 2002 (Exhibit 10-J-3 to Form 10-K for the year
ended November 30, 2001), (1). **

First Amendment effective November 26, 2007 to Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1,
2002, **,

Retirement Income Security Plan effective January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 10-K-1 to Form 10-Q for the
period ended August 31, 2006), (1). **

Retirement Income Security Plan Trust effective January 1, 2006 (Exhibit 10-K-2 to Form 10-Q for
the period ended August 31, 2006), (1). **
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Exhibit No.

and
Applicable
Section of
601 of
Regulation
5-K
21
23
24

311

312

321

322

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Powers of Attorney.

Certification of Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-
14(a) as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a} or
15d-14(a) as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*  Exhibits incorporated herein by reference. (1) File No. 1-8501

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form
10-K pursuant to Item 15(c) of Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HARTMARX CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ GLENN R, MORGAN

Glenn R. Morgan
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 8, 2008

and By: /8/_ TARAS R. PROCZKO

Taras R. Proczko
Senior Vice President, Generat
Counsel and Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below hy
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ Homi B. PATEL

Homi B. Patel

Chairman of the Board, President,
Chiefl Execuotive Officer, Director

/s/  MICHAEL F, ANTHONY*

/s/  ELBERT O, HAND*

Michael F. Anthony, Director

/s/  JEFFREY A. COLE*

Elbert O. Hand, Director

Isf  Dipak Jaln*

Jeffrey A. Cole, Director

Is! JAMES P. DOLLIVE*

Dipak Jain, Director

/s/ MICHAEL B. ROHLFS*

James P. Dollive, Director

Isi RAYMOND F. FARLEY*

Michael B. Rohifs, Director

/sl STUARTL. SCcoTT*

Raymond F. Farley, Director

/s GLENN R. MORGAN

Stuart L. Scott, Director

fsf JamEes T. CONNERS

Glenn R. Morgan
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ GLENN R. MORGAN

Glenn R. Morgan

* Pursuant to Power of Attorney

Date: February 8, 2008

James T. Conners
Vice President and Controller
Principal Accounting Officer

By: /s, TaRAS R. PrOCZKO
Taras R. Proczko
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HARTMARX CORPORATION

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{000’s Omitted)

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year .. ..., ... i $ 4792 $ 5237 % 6,735
Charged 10 costs and XPenses . . ... .. .. ...urrrireennnnnnnnneraiiiaas 2,025 1,820 1,590
Deductions from reservestl) L .. i i (1,630  (2,366) (3,104)
Reserve related to acquired businesses . ....... ... oo 25 101 16
Balance atend Of YEAT .. ... .. .ot i $ 5212 § 4792 $ 5237

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,
Sales Return Reserve 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginningof year . .......... .. . $12623 $ 8455 $ 10,462
Charged tosales@ ... ... . . i s 38,878 50,395 47,109
Deductions from reserves ) .. . i i i e (41997) (46,240) (49,164)
Reserve related to acquired businesses ......... ..o iiiiiiiiiiiiaan, 202 13 43
Balance atend Of YEar .. .. ... ..o e $ 9,706 $12623 § 8455

Fiscal Year Ended November 30,
Inventory Markdowns and Allowances 2067 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year ........ ... .. i $13318 & 9842 § 7,703
Charged to cos1S and €XPENSES . ... ..ottt ittt 12,411 4,942 4,882
Deductions fTOmM TESBIVES . . . ..ttt ettt e ettt raem i aasannns (4330) (3,812) (2,743)
Reserve related to acquired business ........... . o0 i 50 — —_
Other) . e e e e — 2,346 —
Balanceatend of year ....... .. ... e $21449 $13318 § 9,842

(1) Notes and accounts written off as uncollectible, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off as
uncollectible.

(2} Includes returns and exchanges related to women’s catalog operation.

(3) Reclassification of certain inventory reserves previously netted against gross inventory accounts.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Homi B. Patel, certify that:

L.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hartmarx Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financiat information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has matertally affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal contro! over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the
registrant’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated:February 8, 2008

/s HOMI B. PATEL

Homi B. Patel
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Glenn R. Morgan, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hartmarx Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: February 8, 2008

fs/ GLENN R. MORGAN

Glenn R. Morgan
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CEO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOFPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hartmarx Corporation (the “Company”) for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report™), I, Homi B. Patel, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of
my knowledge:

(1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 8, 2008

/s/ HOM1 B. PATEL

Name: Hom: B. Patel
Title: Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hartmarx Corporation (the “Company”) for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Glenn R. Morgan, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to
the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2y The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 8, 2008

/s/ GLENN R. MORGAN

Name: Glenn R. Morgan
Executive Vice President and
Title: Chief Financial Officer
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A PORTFOLIO OF UPSCALE BRANIDS

BRINGING LUXURY TO EVERY DAY

Each of our product groups—Luxury, Tailored, Sportswear, Womenswear and International—
deliver fashionable, high-quality clothing for both men and women in a wide range of market

categories—from popular to luxury—under a growing portfolio of highly recognized brands.

Men's Apparel Women's Apparel Sales %
007 | 2006 | 2005
Luxury Hickey Freeman Bobby Jones Sobby Jones Christopher Blue 29% | 26% | 21%
hickey Bu[k%eg!dm b.chvll pine iv
Monarchy s o " zooey by alice heller
Bridge/ Hart Schaffner Marx Austin Reed Ausfin Reed Exclusively Misook | 51% | 48% | 46%
Better Jack Nicklous Ted Baker Jag feans Bairie Pace
Society Brand Manchester Escapes One Girl Who... eye
Coppley Ted Baker Pursuit of Harmony
Blue House Drive Worn
Moderale/ | Tommy Hilfiger Claiborne % | 17% | 27%
Mainstream | Perry Ellis Sansobelt
Palm Beach Pusser’s
Popular Pierre Cardin tyle & Scott 9% | 9% | 6%
Golden Bear Concepts by Claibome
Noturalife Axcess by Claibomne

Harimarx Corporation Luxury. Everyday. 15
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A MODEL OF BALANCED DIVERSIFICATION

THE LUXURY GROUP

The Luxury Group's strategy is to operate as a diversified operation with multiple

brands, products and retail distribution channels. We expand market share for our
key brands— Hickey Freeman, Hart Schaffner Marx, hickey, Bobby Jones and Burberry

men’s tailored clothing—by marketing to consumers through fine specialty and

dcpartment stores, our own l'Cl'Elil stores and c-commerce.

Hickey Freeman's rexail stores in
New York outperformed expec-
tations in 2007. Responding 1o
positive consumer demand, we
opened a third Hickey Freeman
stare in San Francisco and will
open our fourth store in Chicago

in 2008.

In operation since 1887, Har:
Sehaffner Marx is the largest
men’s tailored clothing maker
in the United States, and its
name is widely recognired for
fashion, crafismanship and
innovation, In 2007, we brought
Hart Schaffner Marx into the
Luxury Group to berter reflect
the brand’s prestigious market
position. We have also started
the process of expanding Hart
Schaffner Marx to become a
lifestyle collection of formal and
casual apparel. [n conjunction

with rthis shift, we plan ro

showcase the brand in new mar-
keting venues. including dedi-
cated Hart Schaffner Marx
stores and the Internet. We
expect that these efforts will
support our goal of reposition-

ing this important brand.

The hickey brand features the
fine tailoring and derailing
of the Hickey Freeman brand,
combined with designs thar
are inspired by a “renegade
Americana” spirit. In 2007,
hickey opened its first rerail store
in the Soho district of New York
City, while expanding its dis-
tribution wo key specialty and
deparement stores and rto the
hickey e-commerce site. In
January of 2008, we continued
to extend this brand’s reach,
with hickey making a successful
international debur ac che Pitdi

Uomo Show in Florence, Ttaly.

The Bobby jones collection of
luxury sportswear for men and
WwOomen occupies a premier posi-
tion in the American sportswear
market. Products have been
expanded in golf “performance”
apparel for both men and women
under the Bobby fones X-H,0
label, and the total women’s col-
lection has been expanded to be
the most comprehensive line in
the luxury golf-country club
apparel category. We continue to
enhance the lifestyle collection
of Bobby Jones products by forg-
ing strategic partnerships in the
areas of golf equipment, time-
pieces and fragrances. In 2007,
the apparel and equipment com-
panies created an alliance with
their first major international
partner, The Woodford Group,
to represent this brand in most

of Europe and South Africa.

Horimarx Corporation The Luxury Group 17




RICKEY FREEMAM



Diversification is central to the Hartmarx growth stralegy. We market our key
luxury brands—Hickey Freeman, Hart Schaffner Marx, hickey, Bobby jones
and Burberry men's tailored clothing—through fine specialty and department

stores, our own dedicated refail stores, and e-commerce venues.

BOBBY JONES X-H,0—WOMENS BGBBY JONES X-H;0—MENS

Hartmorx Coiporation The Luxury Group 19
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HART SCHAFFNER MARX



BOBBY JONES GOLF CLUBS BOBBY JONES TIMEPIECES

H

HICKEY FREEMAN® @Hart Schaffner Marx *

hickey®

oty Joraa”

*The referenced tradematks are licensed to and not owned by Hartmarx Corporation or an affiliated company.

BURBERRY "

MEN‘S TAILORED CLOTHING

HICKEY FREEMAN—SAN FRANCISCC HICKEY—NYC

Hartmorx Corporation The Luxury Group 21







AN ELEVATED BRAND AND PRODUCT OFFERING

WOMENSWEAR

At $130 million in 2007 sales, Womenswear accounted for 23 percent of total Haremarx

sales. This group’s upscale retail distribution reflects its elevated brand and product

offerings. Our 14 brands, the majority of which are owned rather than licensed, are

positioned at the high-quality “bridge” to better and luxury retail price points.

In 2007, Exclusively Misook
had another growth year fueled
by new product initiatives and
by Misook’s well-attended per-
sonal appearances at fine stores

throughout the country.

The Simply Blue operation also
drove significant growth, both
through erganic initiatives and
through product extensions in
the Christopher Blue and Jag
Jeans brands, which are mar-
keted to consumers through
1,400 specialty stores, including
Neiman Marcus and Nordstrom.
The Wern brand, introduced in
2005, cominues ro grow rapidly
in the fashion jeans market. jag
Jeans will launch its first major
national advertising campaign
this coming Fall and is project

ing substantial growth in 2008.

Sweater.com introduced the new
b.chyll brand in 2007. Based on
cashmere yarns, this contempo-
rary sweater collection had a
successful launch ac fine wom-
en’s specialty stores. In 2008, the
Womenswear unit will expand
distribution of &.chy!l and intro-
duce additional product offer-
ings thart urilize high-quality
yarns and expand its eco-focused
Pursuit of Harmony line. Zooey,
acquired in 2006, introduced its
“Green Line” in 2007, thereby
staking a differentiated position
in the contemporary marker at
the leading edge of the eco-

friendly products segment.

During 2007, we updated the
Austin Reed collection at Barrie
Pace with new fabrics and sil-

houettes for the contemporary

professional woman. We also
expanded Austin Reed 10 bridge
price points in response to the
shift within our consumer direct
women's channel to a focus on
fewer, more proprietary brands,
and introduced Ted Baker at ber-
ter specialty stores throughout

the country.

We also have expanded our mar-
keting of women’s garments 1o
the professional services indus-
try. In 2007, we formed a pare-
nership with Supetior Uniform
Group, Inc. to distribute prod-
ucts to high-end segments of the
horel, restaurant and real estate

industries.

Hanmarx Corporation Womenswear 23
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Hartmarx is committed fo delivering style and value to welldefined consumer
groups who represent the top tier of their respective markets. Womenswear
encompasses 14 distinct brands, all of which are positioned at the high-quality

“bridge” to better and luxury retail levels.

AUSTIN REED

Hartmarx Corporation Womenswear 25






misook’ Gt M " el - Gre Gl Who...

Austin Reed*’ TED BAKER™ Jog peens®

LONDON

bchyll” WoRN Barrie Preerm”

2 SRR comTm'
Eellan

"The referenced crademarks are licensed 1o 20d not owned by Hartmarx Corporation or an affiliated company.

ZOOEY BY ALICE HELLER B.CHYLL

Harimorx Corporation Womensweor 27







A FOCUSED BRAND PORTFOLIO

HMX TAILORED

HMX Tailored initiated sweeping changes in 2007, including repositioning its brands

and making major marketing and operational adjustments to meet the dynamics

of the changing retail market. Over the past two years, the department store

channel has undergone significant consolidation, fueling changes to established

retail distribution channels and making many mid-market brands redundant.

In 2007, we responded ro these
issues by working, to nartow our
brand portfolio, reduce inven-
tories ﬂnd lower GPCl'ﬂting
expenses. We also eliminared
several designer programs that
were part of the HMX Tailored
brand portfolic. This process
resulted in reduced sales,
increased residual inventories
and unabsorbed operating costs,
conttibuting o disappointing
resules in 2007 However, we
are confident that our reposi-
tioning efforts will enable HMX
Tailored to generate more pre-
dictable and favorable results in

the future.

Having made the decision to
eliminate unproducrive licensed
programs upon their expiration,
we enter 2008 with a redefined

offering of brands. The Austin

Reed brand continues o enjoy a
significant posicion as an upscale
label in better department and
specialty stores. Moreover, we
are developing new marketing
and merchandising programs
geared to enhance our growth in
other select distribution chan-
nels, For example, in the moder-
ate arena, we are working to
build sales with the Claiborne
labels, which include Conceprs
at JCPenney and Axcess at
Kohl’s, Both of these programs
offer consumers sophisticated,
high-fashion products that rep-
resent great value-for-maney.
We are also remerchandising
our Palm Beach label, which cue-
rently helds a strong position in
the “big and rall” marker, with
the goal of recapruring this
brand’s historic prominence in

the better section of the moderate

market. In addition to chese
etfores, we are carefully evaluat-
ing new initiatives to spur future

sales and drive profitable growth.

On the operating side, we are
working to make significant
inventory reductions, lower
operating costs and implement
new IT systems. We expect that,
when complete, these initiatives
will yield improved margins and
operating efficiencies. As we
move into 2008, we anticipate
thae HMX Tailored will con-
tinue to face many of the mar-
keting challenges experienced in
the past year. However, we are
confident thar our repositioning
iniriatives will restore HMX
Tailored to its traditional posi-
tion as a positive sales and profit

contributor.

Hartmorx Corporation HMX Tailored 29
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: Hartmarx is sharply focused on responding 1o the changing
demands of the retail market. Today, we offer a streamlined

collection of profitable brands that serve the needs of consumers

in a range of market segments, from popular to upscale.

PALM BEACH CLAIBCRNE TED BAKER

ﬁu&m Austin Reed"’ TED BAKER™

LONDON

* L2

TOMMY @ HILFIGER™ claiborne
PErRYELLIS®* pierre cardin”"’ axcess®
SOCIETY BRAND, LTD: Tin s GONGERTS®

*The referenced 1zademarks are licensed 1w and not owned by Hartmarx Corporation or an affiliated company.

Hartmarx Corporation HMX Tailored 31







A CONSUMER-DRIVEN MARKETING PROGRAM

HMX SPORTSWVWEAR

For HMX Sportswear, 2007 was an active year of new product and brand marketing

developments designed to drive our futute retail performance. During the year, we

clearly defined each of our brand’s “personalities,” and we developed related brand

messages to communicare them to the market. To assure that these brand messages

are consistent and clear, we engaged Rerail Coordination Services to monitor

and update our retail presenta-
tions. As a result of these iniria-
tives, each of our sportswear
labels is now delivering a clear
message to {ts target consumer
group, demonstrating our acute
focus on brand definition and

consumer segmentation.

Austin Reed is classic British
sportswear with a “twist.” Pusser’s
of the West Indies is casualwear
that is at once sophisticated,
comfortable and fun. Lyl &
Scout is a youthful Scottish golf
collection. In 2007, we helped 10
reinforce the unique characteris-
tics of each of these labels by
leveraging customized fixtures
and brand imagery in our cus-
tomers’ stores. To date, we have
installed Lyle & Scort shops in 15
doors within the Bon Ton

department store group, and we

plan to expand that ro 30 doors

in 2008. Moreover, in 2008,
collections from Austin Reed,
Nicklaus and Pusser’s will be pre-
sented at Dillard’s stores, with
cach brand using signage and
fixtures that connecr its prod-

ucts wich irs rarget consumer

group.

During the vear, we reestab-
lished Jack Nicklaus Sportswear
as a premier golf collection by
greatly enhancing the line’s
product designs, and by increas-
ing our distribution to country
clubs, resorts, and department
and specialty stores. Through
the development of new perfor-
mance products, which combine
next-generation textiles and
action-oriented designs, we
have successfully positioned
the Nicklaus family of brands
—including jack Nicklaus,
Nicklaus and Golden Bear—as

leaders in the contemporary golf

apparel marker.

In 2007, the Ted Baker offering
expanded both in producr clas-
sification and rerail distribution.
The railored clothing and sports-
wear collections for men were
launched ar Lord & Taylor
during Fall of 2007.

In August of 2007, we acquired
Monarchy, LLC, significantly
accelerating our growth in the
sportswear category. Monarchy
markets a wide range of inno-
vative garments, including embel-
lished designer denim thar use
innovative wash treatments,
as well as signature ariwork
T-shirts, woven shirts and ourter-
wear, to 800 upscale specialty
stores and depariment stores,
including Nordstrom and

Bloomingdale’s.
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JACK NICKLAUS

Maintaining strong brand identities is vital to our ability to gain markg
of the diverse sportswear brands relies on a unique and carelully de

personality to target a speciic consumer group.
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AUSTIN REED

LYLE & SCOTT
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LYLE & SCOTT"” TED BAKER™
reaTame LONDON
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*The refeeenced trademarks are licensed o and nod pweed by Hartmarx Corporation or an affiliated company.
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A PARTNER IN DRIVING PROFITABILITY

INTERNATIONAL

In 2007, Coppley completed an important strategic conversion, consolidating the 11

separate brands it was producing and marketing under a single owned brand. Fall 2007

was the first season during which Coppley delivered all of its tailored cloching and

accessories exclusively under the Coppley label. Every key retail customer made this shift

with us, and the division experienced a 9 percent revenue increase during the year.

Coppley maintains a structured
business sales model that is
predicated on producing 40 per-
cent advance orders, 40 percent
custom orders and 20 percent
fill-in purchases. This balanced
purchasing plan, which was
developed in partnership with
our customers, enhances mar-
gins for both Coppley and its
retail partners. Coppley sales
representatives support the
40/40/20 plan by collaborating

with their customers to conduct

profitability reviews twice a
vear. This pracrice not anly
solidifies the unique business
relarionship between Coppley
and its rerail cliencele, but it
also provides a solid foundarion
for driving sales and profitability

in the furure.

Coppiey’s "Custom in 7 Days”
tailored clothing program
remains a key differentiator for

this business unir, and, in 2007,

this program was expanded 1o

Coppley custom shirts and cus-
rom ties. In Fzll 2007, 150
upscale specialty stores pur-
chased these new accessories

lines.

As we move into 2008, we are
concenrrating our marketing
efforts on a narional adverris-
ing campaign that leverages
Cappley's single brand status and

targets an upscale consumer,
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Cultivating strong relationships with our retail partners fuels their success
as well as our own. Coppley maintains a struciured business sales
model that actively involves our retail partners and provides a solid

foundation for driving mutual profitability.

Hartmarx Corporolion International 3¢
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A CATALYST FOR LEVERAGING OUR BRAND POWER

INTERNATIONAL MARKETING

International Marketing manages a collection of owned and licensed brands. With 57

license programs in 35 countries, International Marketing has partnerships with apparel

companies in most of the world’s major markets, positioning Hartmarx as an upscale

global apparel enterprise.

We provide international licens-
ces with expertise in manu-
facturing, merchandising and
marketing, and enable them w0
capitalize on the strengths of
several of our premier brands,
including Hart Schaffner Marsx,
Hickey Freeman, Bobby Jones,
Jack Nicklaus, Ted Baker,
Sansabelt, Claiborne and Pierre
Cardin. Our licensing programs

are synergistally devised 1o align

with local business needs and 10
accommodate the unique con-
sumer requirements of each mar-
ket thar we serve. The consistent
focus on customizing these pro-
grams fuels the steady growth of
our Internarional Marketing
business; and, in 2007, we signed
11 new licenses. Specifically, we
established new fack Nicklaus
licenses in Taiwan, South Africa,

Switzerland, England, Ireland

and the United States; a Pierre
Cardin license in Colombia;
Axcess by Clatborne licenses in
Canada and Mexico; Hare
Schaffner Marx boys’ apparel
licenses in the U.S. and Canada;
and Bebby Jones licenses for
apparel and golf equipment in
the Eurepean Union, Monaco,
Norway, Switzerland, Turkey
and South Africa.

Hartmarx Corporation  Intarnational Marketing 4!
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International & Domestic Llicensees & Distribution

INTERNATIONAL LICENSEES

Canada
BHT Group. [nc.
Cardinal Clothes Inc.

Empire Clothing Manufaciuring
Company, Inc,

J.A. Besner & Sons (Canada) Lid.

Majestic Industries (Canada) Led.
No Ordinary Shoes USA LLC
Raymond Lanctdt Leée

Superba, Inc,

Swank, Inc.

Tura L.P.

China

FnC Kolon (Shanghai)
Corporation

Youngor Group Ca., Led,

Colombia
Falabella Colombia §.A.

Czech Republic
AZ Golf s.ro.

European Union (15 countries)
Bobby Jones (Europe} Limited
Bobby Jones Lifestyle Lid.

indonesia
IT. Transindo Global Fashion
TAS Luggage Centers Co.

Ireland
IN Apparel (UK & {reland) led.

Japan

Alps Kawamura Co., Lid,
Eminento, Inc.

Flex Japan Co., Lid.
Futata Co., Lid.

Goto Co., Lid.

JNJ, Inc.

K-Niche Co., Lid.
Kosugi Sangyo Company, Lid.
Litegear Corporation

San Marco Co., Ltd.
Swany Corporation
Trenza Limited

Uchino Co., Led.
Yamani, [ncorporated

Young Sangyo Co. Lid.

Koreo
Dae Han Corpoeration, inc.
FnC Kolon Corporation

Jinkyoung Co. Ltd.

Mexico

Fussii, S.A. de C.V.

Industrias Cavalier S.A. de C.V.
Yale de Mexico $.A. de C.V.

Monaco
Bobby Jones (Europe) Limited

Bobby Jones Lifestyle Lid.

New Zealand
Linkz Markering Limired

Norway
Bobby Jones (Europe) Limited
Bobby Jones Lifestyle Led.

Philippines

Rustan Marketing Corporation

Slovakia
AZ Golf s.r.o.

South Africa

Bobby Jones (Europe) Limited
Bohby Jones Lilestyle Led.
INSA Apparel (Pry) Lad.

Switzerland
Bobby Jones (Europe) Limited
Bobby jones Lifestyle Lid.

Taiwan

Far Eastern Textile, Ltd.

Louis Wise Corporation

Shin Hua Hang Fashion Co. Lid.

Turkey
Bobby Jones (Europe) Limited
Bobby Jones Lifestyle Led.

United Kingdom
JN Apparel (UK & Ireland) Ldd.

Worldwide

Signature Eyewear, Inc.

DOMESTIC LICENSEES

A.C.A, Accessories Corp.
of America

BHT Group, Inc.
Cardinal Clothes Inc.

Luxury Accessories
International, LLC

Majestic Internarional USA, Inc.

Superba, Inc.
Swank, Inc.
The Bobby Jones Golf Co,, LLC

No Ordinary Shoes USA LLC Tura L.D.
J.A. Besner & Sons Seiko Instruments USA, Inc.
BOBBY JONES DISTRIBUTION
Antigua and Barbuda Ireland Spain
Bahamas Ttaly St. Kitts and Nevis
Barbados Jamaica St. Lucia
Brazil Korea Sweden
Canada Mexico Switzerland
Costa Rica Philippines Trinidad and Tobago
Dominican Republic Portugal United Kingdom
France Russia
Germany South Africa
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Operating Segmeni Selected Data

The Company operates exclusively in the apparel business. Its operations are comprised of the Men's Apparel Group and
Women’s Apparel Group. The Men’s Apparel Group designs, manufactures and markets men’s railored clothing, slacks,
sportswear (including golfwear) and dress furnishings (shirts and ties). Products are sold at luxury, premium and moderate
price points under a broad variety of apparel brands, both owned and under license, to an extensive range of retail channels.
The Women's Apparel Group designs and markets women’s career apparel, designer knitwear, sportswear, including denim
products, and accessories to department and specialty stores under owned and licensed brand names and directly to consum-

ers through its catalogs and e-commerce website.

The following rable is management’s unaudited summary of sales, earnings and investment in the major components of

Hartmarx Corporation operations for the five years ended November 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Years ended November 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Sales
Men’s apparel group $432,904 | $479,669 3511,040 £506,673 $501,710
Women’s apparel group 129,512 118,221 87,127 79,740 60,139
Toral $562,416 | $597,890 $598,167 $586,413 $561,849
Earnings (loss) before taxes
Men's apparel group $ 2,042 | $ 23357 351,349 §$ 40,992 § 29,828
Women's apparel group 13,597 12,224 8,881 7,540 4,343
Corporate expenses, interest,
consolidating entries {22,488) (23,829) (21,870) (22,627) (19,786}
Total $ (6,749) $ 11,752 $ 38360 % 25905 § 14,385
Toral assers ar November 30
Men’s apparel group $281,996 | $286,845 $312,396 $274,781  $268,497
Women's apparel group 104,677 98,644 87,023 66,556 30,224
Corporate 73,179 87,595 95,226 107,204 122,643
Total $459,852 | $473,084 $494,645 $448,541  $421,304

* Sales are net of any intra-group transactions.
» The “Corporate expenses, interest, consolidating entries” line includes interest on all debt and refinancing expense.

» Corporate assets include corporate properties, deferred income taxes, and other assets not atiributable to a specific operating segment.
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Selected Financial Data

Income statement data in thousands,

except per share data, for years ended November 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net sales $562,416 | 3597.890  $598,167 $586,413  $561,849
Licensing and other income 2,454 2,573 2,118 2,445 1,898
Cost of goods sold 384,110 | 404,618 395680 396,272 392,350
Selling, general and administrative expenses 178,271 174,924 159,063 160,207 148,788
Operating earnings 2,489 20,921 45,542 32,379 22,609
Interest expense (9,238) (9,169) {7,182) (6,.474) (7,429)
Refinancing expense — — — — (795)
Earnings (loss) before taxes (6,749) 11,752 38,360 25,905 14,385
Tax benclit (provision) 2,571 {4,466) {14,805) (10,040) (5,680)
Ner earnings (loss) (4,178) 7.286 23,555 15,865 8,705
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (.12} .20 63 44 .25
Cash dividends per share — -— — — -_—
Average number of common shares

and equivalents—diluted 35,974 37,081 37,212 36,286 34,645

Balance sheet data in thousands,
except per share data, at November 30,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4430 | $§ 2304 $ 1257 % 2356 3% 2964
Accounts receivable, net 93,465 113,688 123,058 119,033 117,778
Inventories 142,399 146,440 153,263 130,139 124,010
Prepaid expenses and other assets 24,203 17,368 19,158 14,284 12,485
Ner properties 35,273 33,964 37,250 27.643 29,323
Prepaid/intangible pension asset — 36,550 35,963 39,411 42,860
Goodwill and intangible assers 100,104 83,458 75,831 59,725 23,787
Deferred taxes 59,978 39,312 48,865 55,950 68,157
Total assets 459,852 | 473,084 494,645 448,541 421,364
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 96,188 90,764 99,841 98,307 78,342
Total debt 120,745 113,355 119,513 102,032 104,404
Accrued pension liability 14,882 8,309 29,445 26416 46,167
Sharcholders” equity 228,037 260,656 245,846 221,786 192,451
Equity per share 6.39 7.13 6.62 6.16 5.49
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Selected Quarterly Data

Ist quarter

2nd quarter

In thousands, excepe per share data 2007 2006 2007 2000
Net sales $120,045 | $144.204 | $155,935 | $152,566 i
Gross profit 40,123 48,295 55,884 49 644 |
Net earnings (loss) (3.412) 2,585 5,379 3,880 }
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (.09) 07 15 10
3rd quarter 4¢h quarter

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net sales $135,202 | $137,.6M $151,234 | $163,429
Gross profic 46,708 47,545 3559 47,788
Net earnings (loss) 542 490 {6,687) 331
Diluted earnings (loss) per share .01 .01 {.19) 13|

Hartmarx common shares are traded on the New York and Chicago Stock Exchanges. The stock symbol is HMX. The quar-

terly composite price ranges of the Company’s common stock for the past three fiscal years were:

2007 2006 2005
High Low High Low High Low
First quarter $7.40 $6.38 $8.96 $7.33 $ 9.05 $7.38
Second quarter 7.77 5.65 9.97 7.37 10,29 8.11
Third quarter 8.69 6.00 7.53 5.73 10.48 8.34
Fourth quarter 7.35 398 786  5.50 9.25  6.09

HMX
NYSE
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Boord of Directors

Michael F. Anthony"?
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Things Remembered

Jeffrey A. Cole "%?
President
Cole Limited

James P. Dollive ™*#

Retired Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Kraft Foods Inc.

Raymond F. Farley%*
Retired Presidens and
Chief Executive Officer
SC Johnson Wax

Elbert O. Hand*%
Retired Chairman
Harimars Corporation

Dipak C. Jain®*?
Dean, Kellogg

School of Management
Northwestern University

Corporate and Subsidiary Officers

Corporate Officers

Homi B. Patel”
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Glenn R, Morgan®
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

Taras R. Proczko*
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

Raymond C. Giuriceo
Vice President

and Managing Director
International Marketing

James T. Conners
Vice Presidenr and Controller

1. Audit and Finance

2. Compensarion and Stock Option

3. Executive

4. Management Operasions

5. Nominating and Governance
*Member of Executive Operating Board

Men's Apparel Group

Paulette Garafalo”
Group President
Luxury Group

Michael S. Parker*
Group President
HMX Tailored

Eric G. Prengel*
Group President
HMX Sportswear

Eric Kim
President
Monarchy Group

Brett Schenck
President
Hart Schaffner Marx

Effie Zeyra

President

Consolidated Apparel Group

Homi B. Patel*
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Hartmarx Corporation

Michaet B. Rohlfs 2
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Dearborn Financial, Inc.

Stuarr L. Scorr? 33
Retired Chairman
Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated

Women's Appare! Group
Susan G. Falk~

Group President Womenswear

Misook Doolircle
President
Exclusively Misook Apparel

Bruce Gifford
Presiden:

Sweater.com Apparel

Thomas L. Hall
President
International Women's Apparel

Alice Heller
President
Zooey Apparel

Melvin T. Martsui
President
Simply Blue Apparel

Maureen P. Vear
Vice Presidens and General Manager
Barrie Pace Lid.

International

Warwick Q. Jones®

President and Managing Direcror
Coppley Apparel Group

Canada

Richard K. Sexton
Executive Vice President
and Managing Director
Coppley Apparel Group
Canada
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Investor Information

Hartmarx Websites

Hartmarx
www.hartmarx.com

Harr Schaffner Marx

www.hartschaffnermarx.com

HMX Tailored

www.hmxtailored.com

Hickey-Freeman
www.hickeyfreeman.com
www.hickeystyle.com

Coppley

www.coppley.com

Sansabelt
www.sansabelt.com

Bobby Jones

www.bobbyjonesshop.com

Exclusively Misook

www,misook.com

Barrie Pace
W“’\V.barricpﬂce.col“

International Women’s Apparel
www.iwainc.com

Simply Blue

www.Christopher-blue.com

Sweater.com
WWW, SWEeRTer.com

Zooey

WWW.I00CYIecs.com

Monarchy

www,monarchycollection.com

all photogrephy shot on focation ot
Spring lslond, South Carolina
www.springisland.com
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Hartmarx Corpnration

101 Norch Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL 60606
312 372 6300

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Trust
Company, N.A.

P.O. Box 43069
Providence, RI 02940-3069
877 282 1168
www.computershare.com

Form 10-K

Hartmarx will provide to any
investor, without charge, a copy
of its annual report on Form
10-K, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (but
without exhibits). Requests
should be in writing to:

Hartmarx Corporarion
Artention:

M, Taras R. Proczko

Senior Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary
101 North Wacker Drive
Chicago, 1L 60606

designed by curron & connars, inc. fashion photography by karl simane

Forward-Looking Statements

This 2007 annual report contains
forward-looking statements that are
made in reliance upon the Safe Harbor
Provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
forward-looking statements are subject
to risks and uncertainties including,
but not limited o, the demand for the
Company’s products by the consumer
and the overall retail environment,
These and other risk factors are identi-
fied in caudionary statements included
from time to time in the Company’s
filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Annual CEO Certification
The Annual CEO Certification,

withour qualification, was filed with
the New York Stock Exchange on
April 18, 2007, as required

by Section 303A.12(a) of the

New York Stock Exchange Listed
Company Manual.

48 Lluxury, Everyday. Hartmanx Corperation




Rl ¥

o T -
) :v .-

L -'—-' a
- - gl - -y iy, e P

HARTMARX BRINGS LUXURY TO EVERYDAY I.IFE. -~
L™ 2 * - - - . g ]
e o,

S

s - W







